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Blount International, Inc. is a leading provider of equipment, accessories 

and replacement parts to the global forestry, lawncare and construction 

industries. Blount manufactures and markets branded products in focused end markets, serving pro

fessional loggers, construction workers and homeowners through a distribution network consisting of 

equipment dealers and distributors, original equipment manufacturers and mass merchants. We believe 

we are a global leader in chainsaw chain, guide bars and related accessories. The Company sells its 

products in over 100 countries around the world with approximately 64% of 2007 sales generated outside 

the United States. Blount is headquartered in Portland, Oregon.
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The Company’s primary business is the Outdoor Products Segment. This segment manufactures and markets 
sawchain, guidebars, sprockets and accessories for the chainsaw industry, outdoor care products for the lawn and 
garden industry and concrete cutting systems for the construction industry. The segment operates six manufacturing 
facilities and distributes its products through a diverse network of distributors, dealers, mass merchants and original 
equipment manufacturers. The segment sells its products under the Oregon, ICS and Windsor brand names. The 
Company also owns and operates Gear Products, Inc., a manufacturer of rotational bearings, hydraulic pump drives 
and winches used by heavy equipment manufacturers for the forestry, construction and utility industries.
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Inquiries
Stockholders with questions about 
their stockholdings are invited  
to call 1-877-498-8865 between 
8am and 7pm Eastern Time, 
Monday through Friday. Internet 
account access is available at  
www.computershare.com. 
Inquiries for general information 
about Blount International, Inc., 
including stock records or address 
changes, should be directed to 
Richard H. Irving, III, Senior  
Vice President, General Counsel 
and Secretary, at the Corporate 
office. Security analysts, portfolio 
managers and others seeking 
financial information, should 
contact Calvin E. Jenness, Senior 
Vice President and Chief Financial 
Officer, at the Corporate office. 
Also, please see Blount’s Website 
at www.blount.com.

Year End
The Company’s fiscal year ends 
December 31.

Annual Meeting of Stockholders
A Proxy Statement and Notice of 
Annual Meeting is being mailed  
to stockholders of record as of 
March 25, 2008.

Please see page 1 of such statement 
and notice for information regard -
ing the date, time and location of 
the annual meeting of stock holders.

Blount International, Inc.  
Common Stock
The common stock is traded on  
the New York Stock Exchange 
under the ticker symbol “BLT”. 
Blount International, Inc. is 
incorporated under the laws of  
the State of Delaware.

Trademarks
The following are trademarks  
of the Company: Oregon®, 
Windsor™, Power-Match®, 
INTENZ®, Jet-Fit™, Gator 
Mulcher™, Magnum Gatorline™, 
ICS®, FORCE4™, PRK®, SealPro  
and Speedhook. Some forms of 
Windsor® are used under license 
from affiliates of Snap-On, Inc.

Registrar and Transfer Agent
Computershare Investor Services
250 Royall Street 
Canton, MA 02021
1-877-498-8865

Independent Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Portland, OR

Corporate Office
4909 SE International Way
Portland, OR 97222 U.S.A.
Ph: 503-653-8881
Fx: 503-653-4201

ForwardLooking Statements
Forward-looking statements in  
this report, as defined by the 
Private Securities Litigation 
Reform Act of 1995, are based 
upon available information and 
upon assumptions that the 
Company believes are reasonable; 
however, these forward looking 
statements involve certain risks 
and uncertainties and should not  
be considered indicative of actual 
results that the Company may 
achieve in the future.
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(Dollar amounts in millions except per share data)  
Year Ended December 31  2007  2006  2005  2004  2003

Sales $ 515.5 $ 487.5 $ 478.8 $ 445.3 $ 375.1

Operating income  80.7  80.5  91.6  89.3  72.9

Interest expense, net of interest income  31.7  35.4  36.7  59.0  65.4

Income (loss) from continuing operations  32.1  32.6  88.2  (11.5)  (36.7)

Net income (loss)  42.9  42.5  106.6  6.3  (30.1)

Diluted earnings (loss) per share from  
 continuing operations  0.67  0.68  1.86  (0.30)  (1.19)

Diluted earnings (loss) per share  0.89  0.89  2.24  0.16  (0.98)

Cash provided by operating activities  31.3  60.0  65.1  75.8  55.9

Capital spending  18.5  21.7  17.3  19.3  15.1

Cash and cash equivalents  57.6  27.6  12.9  48.6  35.2

Working capital  128.6  117.9  112.2  98.0  86.9

Property, plant and equipment, net  89.7  99.7  101.5  97.9  92.0

Total assets  411.9  430.5  455.2  424.7  404.0

Total debt  297.0  350.9  407.7  494.2  610.5

Stockholders’ deficit  (54.1)  (105.3)  (145.2)  (256.2)  (393.7)

Backlog  69.3  61.3  90.5  84.3  71.3

Shares outstanding (in thousands)  47,292  47,243  47,004  44,970  30,828

Operating income as % of sales  15.7%  16.5%  19.1%  20.1%  19.4%

Capital spending as % of sales  3.6%  4.5%  3.6%  4.3%  4.0%

Ratio of total debt to operating income  3.7  4.4  4.5  5.5  8.4

Employees  3,200  3,050  3,150  3,050  2,700

The financial highlights above reflect the treatment of the Company’s Lawnmower Segment (sold in July 2006) and Forestry Division  
(sold in November 2007) as discontinued operations for all periods presented.

Financial highlights
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 This past year was another one of change for Blount 

International. We initiated several actions during 2007 

that will enable us to sharpen our focus in our core 

businesses. Paramount was the sale of our Forestry 

Division in November that significantly reduced 

Blount’s exposure to the cyclical United States forest 

products industry and further reduced debt levels. We 

ended the year as a smaller but stronger company with a 

heightened focus on building and growing our brands in 

our remaining businesses. As we move forward, we will 

now increase investments in our core business, the 

Outdoor Products Segment, and leverage our market 

leadership with the objective of continuing to increase 

revenues to record levels.

 The establishment of a new business development 

group in December of 2007, with a mission of increasing 

and accel er

ating product 

innovation, 

illustrates 

our commit

ment to our 

growth plans. 

Additional 

investments in 

capacity and cost reductions will be 

made during 2008 to ensure that we not only can meet 

the demands of growing markets, but that we remain 

cost competitive. I have also imple ment ed a new 

organization structure that is appropriate for our  

smaller company, but more importantly will allow  

us to operate more efficiently and improve 

decisionmaking by moving executive 

management closer to operations. I am 

confident about the future of Blount’s  

growth prospects, given the improvement  

in our balance sheet and the removal of the 

uncertainty caused by our prior ownership  

of the Forestry Division.

2007 Highlights

 Sales for 2007 were $515.5 million, a  

6% increase from 2007 and a record level  

Pictured here are a professional grade Oregon® saw chain and 
Oregon Power Match® guide bar in use. These products are available 
in a variety of lengths and configurations to satisfy the needs of 
professional timber cutters worldwide.

Focused
on providing shareholder value, maintaining strength of our brands,  

and delivering consistent growth.



for the Company’s continuing 

operations. The Outdoor Products 

Segment achieved its fifth con

secutive year of record sales with 

$486.7 million in 2007. The 7% 

growth in sales for the Outdoor 

Products Segment in 2007 was the 

result of robust increases in most  

of our international markets. Sales  

in the segment’s international 

markets represented 68% of total 

sales and increased by 12% from 

2006. Our strength in these inter

national markets continues to be 

driven by both the expansion of 

chainsaw use, as well as the focus of 

our sales personnel located in our eight international 

sales and marketing offices. Sales of the Company’s 

products in the United States declined by 3% in 2007  

as weaker market conditions for lawn care products  

and gear components resulted in a reduction in unit 

volume. Worldwide sales of concrete cutting saws and 

accessories increased again in 2007 despite the weaker 

conditions experienced in the United States.

    Our 2007 bottom line results  

were in line with the results from 

2006, despite the improvement in 

sales. Our operating income was 

$80.7 million in 2007, up slightly 

from $80.5 million in 2006. 

Exclusive of a $3.7 million expense 

in 2006 for the redesign of the 

Company’s pension plans, the 

Company’s year over year profit

ability declined by $3.5 million. 

This decline in profit includes the 

negative effect of $3.3 million from 

foreign currency fluctuations as 

compared to the previous year. In 

recent years, our operating income 

has been suppressed by higher costs on product pro

duced in the Brazilian and Canadian manufacturing 

facilities, as those countries currencies strengthened 

compared to the U.S. Dollar. Despite the pressure from 

these recent currency fluctuations, we believe that our 

portfolio of manufacturing plants in four countries 

provides us with flexibility and lower costs to be com

petitive and service our customers across the globe.

As part of the remodeling of Falstaff Brewery 
in New Orleans, a worker from Specialty Demo
lition cuts a 24inch deep opening in brick 
using an ICS® 853PRO Plus hydraulic con crete 
chain saw, multiple ICS® Speed hooks® and an 
ICS® 12gpm hydraulic powerpack.

James S. Osterman, 
Chairman and Chief 

Executive Officer, at our 
manufacturing facility in 

Fuzhou, China. Qingxiang 
Zeng and Deguang Pang 

assemble chain in the 
background.
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 The profit decline from 2007 includes $1.7 million 

from our gear components business, primarily due to 

reduced unit shipments. Additionally, we incurred $1.1 

million of expenses in connection with the closure and 

relocation of a distribution warehouse. This action will 

improve costs of logistics in future periods.

 In 2007 we again made substantial progress in reduc

ing debt. We closed the year with $297.0 million in debt 

outstanding, a $53.9 million decline from the previous 

yearend. This follows the progress we made in the 

previous two years, which reduced outstanding debt 

$197.2 million, or 40%, since the end of 2004. Much of 

the debt reduc tion has been funded by the sale 

of noncore businesses in 2006 and 

2007. We believe that the exit from 

these businesses 

is good for the 

remainder of  

the Company. 

The cyclical nature of the Lawnmower and Forestry 

Equipment businesses created unnecessary uncertainty 

that limited our ability to focus properly and make  

key investment decisions for our core business. As  

we move into the future, we will utilize our financial 

liquidity and our expected continuous growth to make 

timely and appropriate investments in the Outdoor 

Products Segment.

2008 Outlook

 We have many initiatives underway for 2008, with an 

eye on surpassing the record sales achieved in 2007.  

Our new organization structure with focused resources 

in product innovation, capital investments for efficiency 

and capacity and improved logistics are all factors that 

should allow us to meet our sales goal and increase 

Company profitability. The state of the economy, trends 

in foreign currency and commodity cost pressures are 

our biggest concerns, but the consistent historical 

performance of the Outdoor Products Segment gives us 

confidence that 2008 should be another year of growth.

 Our recent investment into innovation is starting to 

bear fruit. Prior to the establishment of a separate new 

product development group, concepts were originated  

in a limited scope manner with focus on upgrades. 

Although the Company has had success in the past  

with patented innovations, 

such as the organic 

develop ment of ICS®  

and concrete chain 

technology, recently, the 

rate of bringing new 

products to market has 

been slower than desired. 

Today, we have a focused new technical staff dedicated 

to originating ideas, testing concepts, prototyping 
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Steady reduction in debt has 
strengthened the balance sheet.

Ratio of Debt to 
Operating Income
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products and commercializing new products. We have 

many unique potential products in the planning phase 

that we are currently evaluating for commercial 

applications. I am confident that this dedicated team 

will come forth with some breakthrough products and 

new market opportunities that will fuel additional 

growth in 2009 and beyond.

 We will continue to invest in our plants, processes 

and people in the next year. Capital has been allocated 

in our plans for the expansion of our international 

manufact ur ing capacity to feed demand and maintain  

a competitive cost profile. Debt will be repaid from 

available funds and we will continue to review comple

mentary acquisitions. Any acquisition will need to be 

close to our core products and distribution channels, as 

well as provide appropriate value to shareholders.

 In closing, I want to reiterate my excitement about 

Blount for the future. Although 2007 was a year of 

significant change for the Company, the future is bright. 

We are focused on growing and expanding our higher 

margin businesses with a strong management team  

and an improved balance sheet. Thank you for your 

support as we continue to build value for owners, 

investors and employees.

James S. Osterman

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Strong sales in Europe lead year over year revenue growth in 2007. 
Here, JensUwe Walter loads a customer order in our Tübingen, 
Germany distribution branch.

2007 Sales By Region
BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL, INC.

North America
40%

Europe & Russia
37%

Asia Pacific
13%

Rest of World
10%

2007 Sales By Product Category
BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL, INC.

Chainsaw components & accessories
74%

Outdoor equipment 
& accessories
14%

Concrete cutting 
saws & components
6%

Gears, winches & bearings
6%
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in over 100 countries.
 Approximately twothirds of  
the Company’s sawchain products  
are sold outside of North America. 
This geographic mix allowed the 
Outdoor Products Segment to achieve 

You’ll find Oregon® products at work everywhere wood is harvested. Blount continues to 
make positive contributions to the world’s forest industries with innovative products while 
encouraging sound environmental practices to meet the evergrowing needs for clean air, 
water, wildlife habitat and wood products.
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The patented Oregon® JetFit™ bar mounting 
system is used on mechanical timber  
harvesters. This unique design significantly 
reduces bar changeout time compared  
to conventional mounting systems.

 Oregon® and Windsor® are the 
familiar brand names manufactured 
and distributed by the Outdoor 
Products Segment. The products 
include the widest available variety  
of cutting chain, chainsaw guide  
bars, cuttingchain drive sprockets, 
and maintenance tools for use on 
handheld chainsaws and mechanical 
timber harvesters. The products serve 
a wide range of customers, including 
original equipment manufacturers, 
timber harvesters, arborists, small 
woodlot owners and homeowners  
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its fifth consecutive year of record 
sales in 2007, despite a cyclical 
slowdown in North America. The 
Company has been able to target 
rapidly growing markets such as 
Russia and Asia to keep total  
sales growing.
 As an innovative product leader, 
the Company is able to develop 
specialized products for distinct  
forest conditions and harvesting 
require ments around the globe. In 
2007, we introduced a new profes
sional saw chain focused on the Asia
Pacific market. This sawchain was 
launched specifically for the con
ditions, tree species and equipment 
common in parts of Asia, based on 
field research and customer input. 
Sales of this new sawchain have 
already exceeded early forecasts.
 In 2005, the Company began 
production in its facility in Fuzhou, 
Fujian Province, China to accom mo
date the growing customer base in  
the region. In 2007, the Fuzhou loca
tion added manufacturing capacity 

and product breadth to its operation, 
and it will continue to expand in the 
coming years.
 Warehouse and distribution 
efficiencies have been improved  
as well. In 2007 the Company 
embarked on a major restructuring  
of its North American distribution 
chain. A new and expanded central 
distribution center in Kansas City 
replaced exist ing facilities in Kansas 
City and Portland, Oregon. The geo
graphic location allows us to reduce 
transit times to most cus tomers, and 
thus improve customer service. In a 

related project, we imple mented best 
practice warehouse optimization 
strategies and software. The success
ful launch of these distribution chain 
elements in Kansas City will be fol
low ed by deployment in the Company’s 
other distribution centers in 2008.
 In 2008 the Company will focus  
on sales growth through continued 
leader    ship in product innovation  
and aggres sive pursuit of growing 
markets. n

Shuilan Zheng (left) and Yajuan Chen (right) operate our new automatic welding equip
ment in Fuzhou, China. 2007 marked the third year of rapidly growing manufacturing 
capacity at this, our newest, facility.

Regional Technical 
Sales Manager, Geoff 
Peters, conducts a 
training session in 
Nigeria for chainsaw 
operations on proper 
chain, guide bar and 
sprocket main ten ance.

The Oregon® forestry product line serves the  
needs of the arborist and casual user market with  
a complete line of commercial grade and low
kickback replacement chain, bars and accessories  
sold in servicing dealer shops, hardware stores,  
and massmerchandising outlets.
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Concrete Cutting
 As the inventor and category 
pioneer of concrete cutting chain 
saws, ICS® made great strides again  
in 2007 with a full palette of new 
products and marketing programs 
positioned to maximize growth in  
the construction industry. ICS’s line 
now includes the new proprietary 
FORCE4™ diamond chain, which is 
over 50% stronger than its predeces
sor and designed to extend into  
more new products for the profes
sional concrete sawing and drilling 
marketplace. Coupled with this 
innovation was the develop ment and 
launch of the ICS 680GC, an 80cc 

gaspowered concrete saw with all
new features that is creat ing a great 
leap forward in the general contractor 
and rental markets. These major line 
extensions are being mar keted under 
a new ICS mark and ad ver tising  
cam paign. Operating profit from  
ICS products remains excep tionally 
high and is expected to con tinue to 
increase. Growth in the com ing years 
will come from these principal new 
pro ducts and their derivatives, com
bined with global sales penetration 
into new segments that currently have  
low product awareness, such as pipe, 
excavation, utility, landscape con
struction and fire and rescue. n

An ICS® 853PRO Plus hydraulic concrete chain saw is put to use at the LAX tunnel extension 
project, cutting through 10inch thick concrete panels reinforced with 1" diameter rebar.

The new ICS® 880F4 hydraulic saw, designed 
to power patentpending FORCE4™ diamond 
chain, creates a strong combination that 
addresses long standing professional mar
ket needs and sets the stage for increased 
ICS® revenue growth.

Dannette Varner, employed at the ICS® fac tory 
in Portland, Oregon, inspects diamond chain 
after its processing in the laser welder, 
where diamond segments are bonded to a 
high carbon alloy steel chassis.



9

 The portfolio of brands sold to 
customers that distribute outdoor  
care products fall under the Oregon® 
umbrella and are well known in the 
landscape care business. They  
include the Gator Mulcher™ family  
of lawn mower blades, and the 
Magnum Gatorline™ family of string 
trimmer line.
 The entire outdoor care product 
line is comprised of over 5,000  
lawn mower blades, string trimmer 
accessories and small engine  
replace ment parts. The Company 
manu factures lawnmower blades  
for OEMs and as replacement parts 
for over 70 brands of riding and  
walkbehind mowers.

 In 2007, over 500 new products 
were introduced, including a premium 
assortment of lawnmower blades 
targeted for the mass merchant and 
featur ing the exclusive Fusion® feature.
 The product category has had its 

largest success in North America 
and represents a significant 
growth oppor tun ity for  
the Company through its 
distribution network around 
the world. n

The Oregon® product line includes a variety 
of string trimmer replacement heads and 
multiple grades of trimmer line. The heavy 
duty professional line is marketed under  
the trademark Magnum Gatorline™.
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outdoor care

Gear Products
 For over forty years, Gear Products 
has been a manufacturer of high 
quality planetary and gear swing 
drives, planetary and worm gear 
winches, hydraulic pump drives  
and large rotational bearings. 
Originally founded to serve the oil  
& gas indus try, Gear Products has 
grown to serve addi tion al industries, 
with its primary focus on the con
struction, utility and 
forestry markets. 
Backed by strong 
engineering know
how, Gear Products 
has devel oped a 
reputation for meeting 
the special needs of  
its customers — from 

conceptual design to production.  
In 2007, Gear Products continued  
to build for the future with capacity 
improvements made through capital 
investments and a continued focus  
on lean manufac turing tech niques. 
Looking forward into 2008, planned 
new product introductions will 
leverage new capacity and are 
anticipated to generate additional 

business with existing 
and new customers. n

At our Gear Products facility, Brian Nation 
programs a CNC Vertical Turning Lathe used 
to machine 62" diameter rotational bearings.

Capable of handling a 
350,000 ftlb. moment 
load, these large bearings 
manufactured at our 
Tulsa, Oklahoma facility 
are used throughout the 
utility, construction and 
forestry industries.

Many Oregon® replace
ment parts are now being 
packaged in clam shells to 
be more accessible to cus
tomers in a selfservice 
retail envi ron ment. The 
clam shell packages are 
easily dis played and help 
create brand recog ni tion 
for the Oregon® brand.
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CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS

O Blount International, Inc

 P.O. Box 22127 (972692127) 

4909 SE International Way 

Portland, OR 97222 U.S.A. 

Ph: 5036538881 

Fx: 5036534201 

www.blount.com

MANUFACTURING LOCATIONS

l Curitiba, Parana, Brazil

l Fuzhou, Fujian, China

l Guelph, Ontario Canada

l Kansas City, Missouri U.S.A.

l Milan, Tennessee U.S.A.

l Portland, Oregon U.S.A.

l Tulsa, Oklahoma U.S.A.

SALES AND DISTRIBUTION LOCATIONS

n Guelph, Ontario Canada

n Kansas City, Missouri U.S.A.

n Melbourne, Victoria, Australia

n Moscow, Russia

n Nishi-ku, Japan

n Nivelles, Belgium

n Tewkesbury, United Kingdom

n Tübingen, Germany

n Varberg, Sweden

n Vaulx-en-Velin, France

Worldwide locations
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[X] ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
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or

[ ] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF
1934. For the transition period from _______________________ to ______________________________________
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BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL, INC.
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Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (503) 653-8881

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as def ined in Rule 405 of the
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ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Blount International, Inc. (“Blount” or the “Company”)

is an international industrial company with one business
segment: Outdoor Products. We also wholly-own and oper-
ate a manufacturer of gear-related products. During 2007,
we sold our Forestry Division, which constituted the ma-
jority of our other business segment at the time. Our prod-
ucts are sold in over 100 countries and approximately 64%
of our 2007 sales were made outside the United States of
America (“U.S.”). Our Company is headquartered in Port-
land, Oregon. We have manufacturing operations in the
U.S., Canada, Brazil and the People’s Republic of China
(“China”). Additionally, we operate marketing, sales and
distribution centers in other parts of the world.

Oregon, Windsor, Power-Match, INTENZ, Jet-Fit, ICS,
Redzaw, PRK, SealPro and SpeedHook are registered or
pending trademarks of Blount and its subsidiaries. Some
forms of Windsor are used under license from affiliates of
Snap-On, Inc.

Outdoor Products Segment

Overview. Our Outdoor Products Segment accounted for
94% of our sales from continuing operations in 2007. This
segment manufactures and markets cutting chain, guide
bars, sprockets and accessories for chainsaw use, concrete-
cutting equipment and accessories and lawnmower blades.
This segment also markets branded parts and accessories
for the lawn and garden equipment market. The segment’s
products are sold to original equipment manufacturers
(“OEMs”) for use on new chainsaws and yard care equip-
ment, and to the retail replacement market through distrib-
utors, dealers and mass merchants. Oregon brand chainsaw
cutting chain, guide bars and other items are currently sold
to most of the chainsaw OEMs, and many of these prod-
ucts are privately branded for our OEM customers. During
2007, approximately 27% of the segment’s sales were to
OEMs, with the remainder sold into the replacement mar-
ket. Approximately 68% of the segment’s sales were out-
side of the U.S. in 2007.

The segment headquarters is in Portland, Oregon. Mar-
keting personnel are located throughout the U.S. and in a
number of foreign countries. We manufacture our products
in Portland, Oregon; Milan, Tennessee; Kansas City, Mis-
souri; Guelph, Ontario, Canada; Curitiba, Parana, Brazil;
and in Fuzhou, Fujian Province, China. A portion of our
accessories and spare parts, as well as our concrete-cutting
saws, are sourced from vendors in various locations around
the world.

Oregon® Products. The Oregon® product line includes a
broad range of cutting chain, chainsaw guide bars, cutting
chain drive sprockets and maintenance tools used primarily
on portable gasoline and electric chainsaws and mechani-
cal timber harvesting equipment. The Oregon product line
also includes various cutting attachments and spare parts to

service the lawn and garden industry. These lawn and gar-
den equipment parts include lawnmower blades to fit a va-
riety of machines and cutting conditions, as well as
replacement parts that meet product specifications of
OEMs.

Windsor Products. The Windsor product line includes cut-
ting chain, chainsaw guide bars and cutting chain drive
sprockets, as well as products to support mechanical har-
vesting equipment.

ICS Products. The ICS branded product lines provide spe-
cialized concrete-cutting equipment for construction mar-
kets. The principal product in the ICS line-up is a
proprietary diamond-segmented chain, which is used on
gasoline and hydraulic powered saws and equipment. ICS
also markets and distributes branded gasoline and hy-
draulic powered concrete-cutting chainsaws and circular
saws to its customers. These saws are manufactured
through an agreement with a third party.

Industry Overview. We believe we are the world leader in
the production of cutting chain. Oregon and Windsor
branded cutting chain and related products are used prima-
rily by professional loggers, farmers, arborists and home-
owners. Additionally, the Oregon line of
lawnmower-related parts and accessories are used by com-
mercial landscape companies and homeowners. Our ICS
products are used by tool rental companies, contractors
and concrete-cutting specialists.

Due to the high level of technical expertise and capital
investment required to manufacture cutting chain and
guide bars, we believe that we are able to produce durable,
high-quality cutting chain and guide bars more efficiently
than most of our competitors. We also work with our OEM
customers to improve the design and specifications of cut-
ting chain and bars used as original equipment on their
chainsaws.

Weather and natural disasters influence our sales cycle.
For example, severe weather patterns and events, such as
hurricanes, tornadoes and storms, generally result in
greater chainsaw use and, therefore, stronger sales of saw
chain and guide bars. Seasonal rainfall plays a role in de-
mand for our lawnmower blades and yard care-related
products. Above-average rainfall drives greater demand for
products in this category, while drought conditions tend to
reduce demand for these products.

The Outdoor Products Segment’s principal raw material,
cold-rolled strip steel, is purchased from multiple interme-
diate steel processors and can be obtained from other
sources. Changes in the price of steel can have a significant
effect on the manufactured cost of our products and on the
gross margin we earn from the sale of these products.

The segment’s profitability is also affected by changes
in currency exchange rates, changes in economic and
political conditions in the various markets in which we
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operate and changes in the regulatory environment in vari-
ous jurisdictions.

The segment’s competitors include Stihl, Carlton, G&B,
Tri-Link, Rotary, Stens, and most major outdoor power
equipment manufacturers such as Briggs & Stratton, MTD
and John Deere. In addition, new and existing competitors
are expanding capacity or contracting with suppliers in
China and other low cost manufacturing locations. We also
supply products or components to some of our competitors.

Gear Components
Our wholly-owned subsidiary, Gear Products, Inc.

(“Gear Products”), was formerly included in our discontin-
ued Industrial and Power Equipment Segment. Our pri-
mary gear-related products are rotation bearings, worm
gear reducers, hydraulic pump drives, swing drives and
winches. These products are used by heavy equipment
OEMs for the forestry, construction and utility industries,
and produced 6% of our consolidated 2007 sales. We also
sell these products in the replacement parts market in addi-
tion to our sales to OEMs. For 2007, approximately 93%
of Gear Products’ sales were to OEMs and approximately
3% of sales were outside the U.S.

Discontinued Forestry Equipment Division
On November 5, 2007, we sold our Forestry Division,

which constituted the majority of our Industrial and Power
Equipment segment, to Caterpillar Forest Products Inc., a
subsidiary of Caterpillar Inc. (“Caterpillar”), for gross
proceeds of $79.1 million. We recognized a pretax gain of
$26.0 million net of related transaction expenses on the
sale in 2007. This division accounted for 32% of our 2005
consolidated sales, 26% of our 2006 consolidated sales
and 21% of our consolidated sales for the first nine
months of 2007. The Forestry Division is reported as dis-
continued operations for all periods presented. This divi-
sion was headquartered in Zebulon, North Carolina and
manufactured and marketed timber harvesting and han-
dling equipment and industrial tractors and loaders. The
division had manufacturing facilities in Owatonna, Min-
nesota; Prentice, Wisconsin; and Söderhamn, Sweden. We
retained certain liabilities related to the business, as well
as a dormant manufacturing facility located in Menomi-
nee, Michigan. In December 2007, we sold the land and
building in Menominee, Michigan for net cash proceeds of
$0.5 million.

Discontinued Lawnmower Segment
On July 27, 2006, we sold our wholly-owned subsidiary

Dixon Industries, Inc. (“Dixon”), which constituted our
entire Lawnmower segment, to Husqvarna Professional
Outdoor Products Inc. (“Husqvarna Professional Outdoor
Products”) for gross proceeds of $33.1 million. We
recognized a pretax gain of $17.4 million net of related
transaction expenses on the sale in 2006. This segment

accounted for 7% of our sales in each of 2004, 2005 and
the first six months of 2006. The Lawnmower Segment is
reported as discontinued operations for all periods pre-
sented. Dixon was located in Coffeyville, Kansas, and
manufactured zero-turn radius lawnmowers and related at-
tachments. We retained certain liabilities and assets of the
business, including land and buildings in Coffeyville,
Kansas, following the sale. In September 2007, we sold
the land and buildings in Coffeyville, Kansas for net cash
proceeds of $1.5 million.

Capacity Utilization
Based on a five-day, three-shift work week, capacity uti-

lization for the year ended December 31, 2007 was as
follows:

% of Capacity

Outdoor Products segment 100%
Gear components 76%

Capacity for the Outdoor Products Segment has been ex-
panded with our manufacturing plant in Fuzhou, Fujian
Province, China, as well as investments in new machinery
and equipment for the manufacturing plants in Portland,
Oregon; Kansas City, Missouri; Guelph, Ontario Canada;
and Curitiba, Parana, Brazil. To meet the fluctuation in de-
mand for its products, this segment operates on an ex-
panded work week basis from time to time at certain
locations.

Backlog
The backlog for our continuing operations was as follows:

December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Outdoor Products Segment $ 63,289 $ 54,785 $ 82,523
Gear components 6,029 6,524 7,955

Total backlog $ 69,318 $ 61,309 $ 90,478

The total backlog as of December 31, 2007 is expected
to be completed and shipped within twelve months.

Employees
At December 31, 2007, we employed approximately

3,200 individuals. None of our domestic employees be-
longs to a union. The number of foreign employees who
belong to unions is not significant. We believe our rela-
tions with our employees are satisfactory, and we have not
experienced any significant labor-related work stoppages
in the last three years with the exception of a one week pe-
riod in June, 2007 at our Curitiba, Parana, Brazil location.

Environmental Matters
The Company’s operations are subject to comprehensive

U.S. and foreign laws and regulations relating to the pro-
tection of the environment, including those governing dis-
charges of pollutants into the air and water, the management
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and disposal of hazardous substances and the cleanup of
contaminated sites. Permits and environmental controls are
required for certain of those operations, including those
required to prevent or reduce air and water pollution, and our
permits are subject to modification, renewal and revocation
by issuing authorities.

On an ongoing basis, we incur capital and operating
costs to comply with environmental laws and regulations.
In 2007, we spent approximately $1.3 million for environ-
mental compliance, including approximately $0.2 million
in capital expenditures. We expect to spend approximately
$1.7 million to $2.5 million per year in capital and operat-
ing costs in years 2008 through 2010 for environmental
compliance. The actual cost to comply with environmental
laws and regulations may be greater than these estimated
amounts.

Some of our current and former manufacturing facilities
are located on properties with a long history of industrial
use, including the use of hazardous substances. For certain
of our former facilities, we retained responsibility for past
environmental matters under the terms of the agreements
by which we sold the properties to third party purchasers.
We have identified soil and groundwater contamination
from these historical activities at certain of our current and
former facilities, which we are currently investigating,
monitoring or remediating. Management believes that
costs incurred to investigate, monitor and remediate known
contamination at these sites will not have a material ad-
verse effect on our business, financial condition, results of
operations or cash flow. We cannot be sure, however, that
we have identified all existing contamination on our cur-
rent and former properties or that our operations will not
cause contamination in the future. As a result, we could in-
cur material future costs to clean up contamination.

From time to time we may be identified as a poten-
tially responsible party under the U.S. Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability
Act (commonly known as the Superfund law) or similar
state statutes with respect to sites at which we may have
disposed of wastes. The U.S. Environmental Protection
Agency (or an equivalent state agency) can either (a) allow
such parties to conduct and pay for a remedial investiga-
tion and feasibility study and remedial action or (b) con-
duct the remedial investigation and action on its own and
then seek reimbursement from the parties. Each party
can be held liable for all of the costs, but the parties can
then bring contribution actions against each other or po-
tentially responsible third parties. As a result, we may be
required to expend amounts on such remedial investiga-
tions and actions, which amounts cannot be determined
at the present time, but which may ultimately prove to be
material to the consolidated financial statements.

For additional information regarding certain environ-
mental matters, see Note 11 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Financial Information about Industry Segments and Foreign
and Domestic Operations

For financial information about industry segments and
foreign and domestic operations, see “Management’s Dis-
cussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Finan-
cial Condition” in Item 7 and Note 14 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Seasonality
The Company’s operations are somewhat seasonal in na-

ture. Year-to-year and quarter-to-quarter operating results
are impacted by economic and business trends within the
respective industries in which we compete, as well as sea-
sonal weather patterns. See further discussion within the
business descriptions above.

Available Information
Our website address is www.blount.com. You may ob-

tain free electronic copies of our annual reports on Form
10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on
Form 8-K, all amendments to those reports and other SEC
filings by accessing the Investor Relations section of the
Company’s website under the heading “SEC Filings”.
These reports are available on our Investor Relations web-
site as soon as reasonably practicable after we electroni-
cally file them with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”).

Once filed with the SEC, such documents may be read
and/or copied at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 450
Fifth Street, N.W. Washington, D.C. 20549. Information re-
garding the operation of the Public Reference Room may
be obtained by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. In ad-
dition, the SEC maintains an internet site at www.sec.gov
that contains reports, proxy and information statements,
and other information regarding issuers, including Blount,
who file electronically with the SEC.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Substantial Leverage—Due to our substantial leverage, we may
have difficulty operating our business and satisfying our debt
obligations.

As of December 31, 2007, we have $466.1 million of to-
tal liabilities, $297.0 million of total debt and a stockhold-
ers’ deficit of $54.1 million. While we have reduced our
total debt from $494.2 million at the end of 2004, our debt
remains significant. This substantial leverage may have im-
portant consequences for us, including the following:
� Our ability to obtain additional financing for working

capital, capital expenditures or other purposes may be
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impaired, or such financing may not be available on
terms favorable to us.

� A significant portion of our cash flow from operations is
dedicated to the payment of interest expense, which re-
duces the funds that would otherwise be available to us
for operations and future business opportunities.

� A substantial decrease in net operating income and cash
flows or an increase in expenses may make it difficult
for us to meet our debt service requirements or force us
to modify our operations.

� Our substantial leverage may make us more vulnerable
to economic downturns and competitive pressures.

The agreements governing our senior credit facilities
and the indenture for our 87⁄8% senior subordinated notes
due 2012 contain restrictions that affect our operations,
including our and certain of our subsidiaries’ ability to in-
cur indebtedness or make acquisitions or capital expendi-
tures. However, these restrictions do not fully prohibit us
or our subsidiaries from incurring additional indebtedness
or making certain types of acquisitions. In addition, we
have available borrowing capacity under the revolving
portion of our existing senior credit facilities of $140.9
million as of December 31, 2007. If we or any of our sub-
sidiaries incur additional indebtedness, the risks outlined
above could worsen.

Our ability to make payments on our indebtedness and to
fund planned capital expenditures and research and prod-
uct development efforts will depend on our ability to gen-
erate cash in the future. Our ability to generate cash, to a
certain extent, is subject to general economic, financial,
competitive, legislative, regulatory and other factors that
are beyond our control.

Our historical financial results have been, and we antici-
pate that our future financial results will be, subject to
fluctuations. Our business may not be able to generate suf-
ficient cash flow from our operations or future borrowings
may not be available to us in an amount sufficient to en-
able us to service our indebtedness or to fund our other liq-
uidity needs. Our inability to pay our debts would require
us to pursue one or more alternative strategies, such as
selling assets, refinancing or restructuring our indebted-
ness or selling equity capital. However, alternative strate-
gies may not be feasible at the time or may not prove
adequate, which could cause us to default on our obliga-
tions and would impair our liquidity. Also, some alterna-
tive strategies would require the prior consent of our
secured lenders, which we may not be able to obtain. See
also “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations.”

Restrictive Covenants—The terms of our indebtedness contain a
number of restrictive covenants, the breach of which could result in
acceleration of payment of our senior credit facilities and our 87⁄8%
senior subordinated notes.

The terms of our indebtedness contain a number of re-
strictive covenants, the breach of which could result in ac-
celeration of our obligations to repay amounts owed under
our senior credit facilities and our 87⁄8% senior subordinated
notes. An acceleration of our repayment obligation under
our senior credit facilities could result in a payment or dis-
tribution of substantially all of our assets to our secured
lenders, which would materially impair our ability to oper-
ate our business as a going concern. The indenture and our
senior credit facilities, among other things, restrict and/or
limit our and certain of our subsidiaries’ ability to:
� borrow money and issue preferred stock;
� guarantee indebtedness of others;
� pay dividends on our stock;
� purchase our stock or the stock of our “restricted

subsidiaries”, a defined term;
� make certain types of investments;
� use assets as security in other transactions;
� sell certain assets or merge with or into other companies;
� enter into sale and leaseback transactions;
� enter into certain types of transactions with affiliates;
� enter into new businesses; and
� make certain payments in respect of subordinated

indebtedness.

The senior credit facilities also restrict our ability to pre-
pay principal in respect of the 87⁄8% senior subordinated
notes and restrict our ability to engage in any business or
operations other than those that are incidental to our own-
ership of the capital stock of Blount, Inc., our wholly-
owned operating subsidiary. In addition, the senior credit
facilities require us to maintain certain financial ratios and
satisfy certain financial condition tests, which may require
that we take actions to reduce debt or to act in a manner
contrary to our business objectives. Our ability to meet
those financial ratios and tests could be affected by events
beyond our control, and there can be no assurance that we
will meet those ratios and tests. A breach of any of these
covenants could, if uncured, constitute an event of default
or a default under the notes or the senior credit facilities.
Upon the occurrence of an event of default under the sen-
ior credit facilities, the lenders could elect to declare all
amounts outstanding under the senior credit facilities, to-
gether with any accrued interest and commitment fees, to
be immediately due and payable. If we and certain of our
subsidiaries were unable to repay those amounts, the
lenders under the senior credit facilities could enforce the
guarantees from the guarantors and proceed against the
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collateral securing the senior credit facilities. The assets of
the applicable guarantors could be insufficient to repay in
full that indebtedness and our other indebtedness.

Assets Pledged as Security on Credit Facilities—The majority of
our assets and the capital stock of Blount, Inc. are pledged to
secure obligations under our senior credit facilities.

The Company and all of its domestic subsidiaries other
than Blount, Inc. guarantee Blount, Inc.’s obligations under
the senior credit facilities. The obligations under the senior
credit facilities are collateralized by a first priority security
interest in substantially all of the assets of Blount, Inc. and
its domestic subsidiaries, as well as a pledge of all of
Blount, Inc.’s capital stock held by Blount International,
Inc. and all of the stock of domestic subsidiaries held by
Blount, Inc. Blount, Inc. has also pledged 65% of the stock
of its non-domestic subsidiaries as additional collateral.

Further, our senior credit facilities provide that payments
on the 87⁄8% notes and the guarantees thereof will be
blocked in the event of a default under the senior credit fa-
cilities. In addition, upon any distribution to Blount, Inc.’s
creditors or the creditors of the guarantors in a bankruptcy,
liquidation, receivership, administration for the benefit of
creditors or reorganization or similar proceeding relating
to the property that constitutes security for the senior credit
facilities, the lenders under the senior credit facilities will
be entitled to be paid in full in cash before any payment
may be made with respect to such notes or the guarantees.

While Blount International, Inc. and all of Blount, Inc.’s
existing domestic subsidiaries guarantee the 87⁄8% senior
subordinated notes, none of Blount, Inc.’s existing foreign
subsidiaries guarantees these notes. We will not permit any
of our non-guarantor restricted subsidiaries to guarantee or
pledge any assets to secure the payment of our senior
credit facilities, unless that subsidiary is a guarantor of
those notes or that subsidiary becomes a guarantor. Any
existing or future non-guarantor subsidiary of Blount Inter-
national, Inc. that we properly designate as an unrestricted
subsidiary or a receivables subsidiary will not guarantee
those notes.

Competition—Competition may result in decreased sales, operating
income and cash flow.

The markets in which we operate are competitive. We
believe that design features, product quality, customer
service and price are the principal factors considered by
our customers. Some of our competitors may have greater
financial resources, lower costs, superior technology or
more favorable operating conditions than we do. For ex-
ample, our competitors are expanding capacity or con-
tracting with suppliers located in China and other low cost
manufacturing locations as a means to lower costs. Al-
though we have also established a manufacturing facility
in China, international competition from emerging
economies may nevertheless be formidable and negatively

affect our business. We may not be able to compete suc-
cessfully with our existing or any new competitors, and
the competitive pressures we face may result in decreased
sales, operating income and cash flows. Competitors
could also obtain knowledge of our proprietary manufac-
turing techniques and processes and reduce our competi-
tive advantage by copying such techniques and processes.

Key Customers—Loss of one or more key customers would
substantially decrease our sales.

In 2007, $71.6 million (14%) of our sales were to one
customer (Husqvarna AB) and our top five customers ac-
counted for $115.4 million (22%) of our sales. Aside from
our top customer, no other customer individually ac-
counted for more than 3% of our sales. While we expect
these business relationships to continue, the loss of any of
these customers, or a substantial portion of their business,
would most likely significantly decrease our sales, operat-
ing income and cash flows.

Key Suppliers and Raw Materials Costs—A loss of a few key
suppliers or increases in raw materials costs could substantially
decrease our sales or increase our costs.

We purchase important materials and parts from a lim-
ited number of suppliers that meet certain quality criteria.
We generally do not operate under long-term written sup-
ply contracts with our suppliers. Although alternative
sources of supply are available, the sudden elimination of
certain suppliers could result in manufacturing delays, an
increase in costs, a reduction in product quality and a pos-
sible loss of sales in the near term. In 2007, we purchased
approximately $10.0 million of raw material from our
largest supplier.

Some of these raw materials, in particular cold-rolled
strip steel, are subject to price volatility over periods of
time. We have not hedged against the price volatility of any
raw materials within our operating segments. It has been
our experience that such raw material price increases are
difficult to recover from our customers in the short term
through increased pricing. For example, we estimate that a
10% change in the price of steel would have affected 2007
income from continuing operations before taxes by an esti-
mated $6.3 million.

Key Employees—The loss of key employees could adversely
affect our manufacturing efficiency.

Many of our manufacturing processes require a high
level of expertise. For example, we build our own complex
dies for use in cutting and shaping steel into components
for our products. The design and manufacture of such dies
are highly dependent on the expertise of key employees.
We have also developed numerous proprietary manufactur-
ing techniques that rely on the expertise of key employees.
Our manufacturing efficiency and cost could be adversely
affected if we are unable to retain such key employees or
continue to train them and their replacements.
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Foreign Sales and Operations—We have substantial foreign sales
and operations, which could be adversely affected as a result of
changes in local economic or political conditions, fluctuations in
currency exchange rates, unexpected changes in regulatory
environments or potentially adverse tax consequences.

In 2007, approximately 64% of our sales by country of
destination occurred outside of the U.S. International sales
are subject to inherent risks, including changes in local eco-
nomic or political conditions, the imposition of currency
exchange restrictions, unexpected changes in regulatory en-
vironments and potentially adverse tax consequences. Un-
der some circumstances, these factors could result in
significant declines in international sales. Some of our sales
and expenses are denominated in local currencies that can
be affected by fluctuations in currency exchange rates in re-
lation to the U.S. Dollar. Historically, our principal expo-
sures have been related to local currency manufacturing
costs and expenses in Canada and Brazil, and local cur-
rency sales and expenses in Europe. From time to time, we
manage some of our exposure to currency exchange rate
fluctuations through derivative products. Any change in the
exchange rates of currencies of jurisdictions into which we
sell products or incur expenses could result in a significant
decrease in reported sales and operating income. For exam-
ple, we estimate that a 10% stronger Canadian Dollar in re-
lation to the U.S. Dollar would have reduced our operating
income by $6.0 million in 2007 and a 10% weaker Euro in
relation to the U.S. Dollar would have reduced our sales by
$4.3 million in 2007.

In addition, we own substantial manufacturing facilities
outside the U.S. As of December 31, 2007, 639,730 square
feet, or 51% of the total square feet of our owned facilities,
were located outside of the U.S. Also, 32% of our leased
square footage is located outside the U.S. This foreign-
based property, plant and equipment is subject to inherent
risks for the reasons cited above. Loss of these facilities or
restrictions on our ability to use them would have an ad-
verse effect on our manufacturing capabilities, and would
result in reduced sales, operating income and cash flows.

Weather—Sales of many of our products are affected by weather
patterns and the occurrence of natural disasters.

Sales of many of our products, such as yard care parts
and accessories, including lawnmower blades, are influ-
enced by weather patterns that are clearly outside our con-
trol. For example, drought conditions tend to reduce the
demand for yard care products. Natural disasters such as
hurricanes, typhoons, and ice and wind storms can stimu-
late demand for our chainsaw-related products. Conversely,
a relative lack of severe weather and natural disasters can
result in reduced demand for these same products.

General Economic Factors—We are subject to general economic
factors that are largely out of our control, any of which could,

among other things, result in a decrease in sales and net income
and an increase in our interest expense.

Our business is subject to a number of general eco-
nomic factors, many of which are largely out of our con-
trol, that may, among other things, result in a decrease in
sales and net income and an increase in our interest ex-
pense. These include recessionary economic cycles and
downturns in customers’ business cycles, as well as down-
turns in the principal regional economies where our opera-
tions are located. Our senior credit facilities permit us to
make borrowings at interest rates that are variable. In-
creases in interest rates could increase our interest ex-
pense payable under the senior credit facilities to levels in
excess of what we currently expect. We estimate a one
hundred basis point higher average level of interest rates
on our variable rate debt would have increased our interest
expense in 2007 by $1.8 million. Economic conditions
may adversely affect our customers’ business levels and
the amount of products that they need. Furthermore, cus-
tomers encountering adverse economic conditions may
have difficulty in paying for our products and actual bad
debts may exceed our allowances. Finally, terrorist activi-
ties, anti-terrorist efforts, war or other armed conflicts in-
volving the U.S. or its interests abroad may result in a
downturn in the U.S. and global economies and exacerbate
the risks to our business described in this paragraph.

Litigation—We may have litigation liabilities that could result in
significant costs to us.

Our historical and current business operations, including
discontinued operations, have resulted in a number of liti-
gation matters, including litigation involving personal in-
jury or death, as a result of alleged design or
manufacturing defects of our products. Some of these
product liability suits seek significant or unspecified dam-
ages for serious personal injuries for which there are reten-
tions or deductible amounts under our insurance policies.
In the future, we may face additional lawsuits, and it is dif-
ficult to predict the amount and type of litigation that we
may face. Litigation, insurance and other related costs
could result in future liabilities that are significant and that
could significantly reduce our cash flows and cash bal-
ances. See “Business—Legal Proceedings.”

Environmental Matters—We face potential exposure to environ-
mental liabilities and costs.

We are subject to various U.S. and foreign environmental
laws and regulations relating to the protection of the envi-
ronment, including those governing discharges of pollu-
tants into the air and water, the management and disposal
of hazardous substances and the cleanup of contaminated
sites. Violations of, or liabilities incurred under, these laws
and regulations could result in an assessment of significant
costs to us, including civil or criminal penalties, claims by
third parties for personal injury or property damage,
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requirements to investigate and remediate contamination
and the imposition of natural resource damages. Further-
more, under certain environmental laws, current and for-
mer owners and operators of contaminated property or
parties who sent waste to the contaminated site can be held
liable for cleanup, regardless of fault or the lawfulness of
the disposal activity at the time it was performed. This po-
tential exposure to environmental liabilities and costs can
apply to both our current and former operating facilities.

Future events, such as the discovery of additional con-
tamination or other information concerning past releases
of hazardous substances at our or others’ sites, changes in
existing environmental laws or their interpretation and
more rigorous enforcement by regulatory authorities may
require additional expenditures by us to modify opera-
tions, install pollution control equipment, clean contami-
nated sites or curtail our operations. These expenditures
could significantly reduce our net income and cash bal-
ances. See “Business—Environmental Matters” and
“Business—Legal Proceedings.”

Dividends—We may not pay dividends on our common stock in
the future.

We have not paid dividends on our common stock since
1999. We intend to retain future earnings for debt service
and for funding growth; therefore, we do not expect to pay
any dividends in the near term. In addition, our senior
credit facilities and the terms of the 87⁄8% senior subordi-
nated notes limit our ability to pay dividends. See “Item 5,
Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stock-
holder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities.”

Common Stock Sales—Future sales of our common stock in the
public market could lower our stock price.

We may sell additional shares of common stock in sub-
sequent public offerings, or our former majority owner,
Lehman Brothers Merchant Banking Partners II, L.P. and
its affiliates (“Lehman Brothers”), may sell a substantial
number of the 8.9 million shares they own in a secondary
stock offering or distribute some or all of their shares to in-
vestors in one or more of the investment funds they man-
age. Other stockholders with significant holdings of our
common stock may also sell large amounts of shares they
own in a secondary or open market stock offering. We may
also issue additional shares of common stock to finance
future transactions. We cannot predict the size of future is-
suances of our common stock or the effect, if any, that fu-
ture issuances and sales of shares of our common stock
will have on the market price of our common stock. Sales
of substantial amounts of Blount International, Inc.’s com-
mon stock (including shares issued in connection with an
acquisition or shares sold by existing stockholders), or the
perception that such sales could occur, may adversely af-
fect the prevailing market price of Blount International,
Inc.’s common stock.

Common Stock Price—The price of our common stock may fluc-
tuate significantly, and stockholders could lose all or part of their
investment.

Volatility in the market price of our common stock may
prevent stockholders from being able to sell their shares at
or above the price paid for the shares. The market price of
our common stock could fluctuate significantly for various
reasons that include:
� our quarterly or annual earnings or those of other com-

panies in our industries;
� the public’s reaction to events and results contained in

our press releases, our other public announcements and
our filings with the SEC;

� changes in earnings estimates or recommendations by
research analysts who track our common stock or the
stock of other comparable companies;

� changes in general conditions in the U.S. and global
economies, financial markets or forestry industry, in-
cluding those resulting from war, incidents of terrorism
or responses to such events;

� sales of common stock by our largest stockholders, di-
rectors and executive officers; and

� the other factors described in these “Risk Factors.”

In addition, in recent years, the stock market has experi-
enced extreme price and volume fluctuations. This volatil-
ity has had a significant impact on the market price of
securities issued by many companies, including companies
in our industries. The changes in prices frequently appear
to occur without regard to the operating performance of
these companies. For example, over the two preceding cal-
endar years, our highest closing stock price has exceeded
our lowest by 33% in 2007 and by 91% in 2006. The price
of our common stock could fluctuate based upon factors
that have little or nothing to do with our company, and
these fluctuations could materially reduce our stock price.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our corporate headquarters occupy executive offices at
4909 SE International Way, Portland, Oregon 97222-4679.
The other principal properties of the Company and its sub-
sidiaries are as follows:

Cutting chain and accessories manufacturing plants are
located in Portland, Oregon; Milan, Tennessee; Guelph,
Ontario Canada; Curitiba, Parana, Brazil; and Fuzhou, Fu-
jian Province, China. Sales offices and distribution centers
are located in Kansas City, Missouri, Europe, Japan, Aus-
tralia and Russia. Rotation bearings, worm gear reducers,
hydraulic pump drives and swing drives are manufactured
in Tulsa, Oklahoma.

All of these facilities are in good condition, are currently
in normal operation and are generally suitable and ade-
quate for the business activity conducted therein. The
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approximate square footage of facilities located at the prin-
cipal properties by business unit is as follows:

Area in Square Feet
Owned Leased

Outdoor Products Segment 1,162,251 242,536
Gear components 98,500 –
Corporate 5,000 –

Total 1,265,751 242,536

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For information regarding legal proceedings see Note 11
of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY
HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of our stockholders
during the quarter ended December 31, 2007.
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ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY,
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES
OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The Company’s common stock is traded on the New
York Stock Exchange (ticker “BLT”). The following table
presents the quarterly high and low closing prices for the
Company’s common stock for the last two years. Cash div-
idends have not been declared for the Company’s common
stock since 1999. The Company’s senior credit facility and
87⁄8% senior subordinated note agreements limit our ability to
pay dividends. See Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,”
for further discussion. The Company had approximately
10,000 stockholders of record as of December 31, 2007.

Common Stock
High Low

Year Ended December 31, 2007:
First quarter $ 13.50 $ 11.36
Second quarter 14.30 12.58
Third quarter 14.00 11.36
Fourth quarter 13.19 10.76
Year Ended December 31, 2006:
First quarter $ 17.10 $ 15.27
Second quarter 16.45 11.82
Third quarter 12.28 8.96
Fourth quarter 13.60 9.89

PART II
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On June 28, 2005, in conjunction with a public offering of our common stock, the Company purchased 382,380 shares
of our common stock from a selling stockholder. These shares are held as treasury stock and we have accounted for this
treasury stock as constructively retired in the consolidated financial statements.

Maximum 
Total Number of Number of Shares 

Shares Purchased that May Yet Be 
Total Number Average as Part of Publicly Purchased Under 

of Shares Price Paid Announced Plans existing Plans or 
Period Purchased per Share or Programs Programs

June 28, 2005 382,380 $ 16.05 382,380 0
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ITEM 6. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in thousands except per share data) 2007 2006 20051 20042 20033

Statement of Income Data:
Sales $ 515,535 $ 487,494 $ 478,829 $ 445,340 $ 375,082
Operating income 80,700 80,460 91,628 89,265 72,853
Interest expense, net of interest income 31,706 35,404 36,707 59,019 65,406
Income (loss) from continuing operations before taxes 48,173 46,391 53,958 (13,399) 3,877
Income (loss) from continuing operations 32,143 32,645 88,214 (11,533) (36,676)
Income from discontinued operations 10,714 9,901 18,401 17,802 6,626
Net income (loss) 42,857 42,546 106,615 6,269 (30,050)
Earnings per share:
Basic income (loss) per share:
Continuing operations 0.68 0.69 1.91 (0.32) (1.19)
Discontinued operations 0.23 0.21 0.40 0.49 0.21

Net income (loss) 0.91 0.90 2.31 0.17 (0.98)
Diluted income (loss) per share:
Continuing operations 0.67 0.68 1.86 (0.30) (1.19)
Discontinued operations 0.22 0.21 0.38 0.46 0.21

Net income (loss) 0.89 0.89 2.24 0.16 (0.98)
Shares used in earnings per share computations (in thousands):
Basic 47,280 47,145 46,094 36,413 30,809
Diluted 48,078 47,868 47,535 38,474 30,809

Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 57,589 $ 27,636 $ 12,937 $ 48,570 $ 35,194
Working capital 128,588 117,862 112,214 97,986 86,924
Property, plant and equipment, net 89,729 99,665 101,538 97,929 91,991
Total assets 411,949 430,466 455,192 424,742 404,039
Long-term debt 295,758 349,375 405,363 491,012 603,871
Total debt 297,000 350,875 407,723 494,211 610,496
Stockholders’ deficit (54,146) (105,291) (145,187) (256,154) (393,740)

The table above gives effect to the sale of the Company’s Forestry Division on November 5, 2007 and the sale of the
Company’s Lawnmower segment on July 27, 2006 and their treatment as discontinued operations for all periods presented.

1 Income from continuing operations in 2005 includes a $55.5 million tax benefit from the reversal
of a valuation allowance against deferred tax assets related to U.S. federal NOL carryforwards.

2 Loss from continuing operations before taxes in 2004 includes charges totaling $47.0 million re-
lated to refinancing transactions.

3 Loss from continuing operations in 2003 includes a tax provision of $47.2 million to establish a
valuation allowance against deferred tax assets related to U.S. federal NOL carryforwards.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis should be read in
conjunction with our consolidated financial statements in-
cluded elsewhere in this report, as well as the information
in Item 6, “Selected Consolidated Financial Data”.

Overview
We are an international industrial company that manu-

factures and markets branded products to OEMs and con-
sumers. Our products are sold in over 100 countries. We
believe we are a global leader in the sale of cutting chain,
guide bars and accessories for chainsaws.

We have one operating and reporting segment, Outdoor
Products, which accounted for 94% of our revenue in 2007.
This segment manufactures and markets forestry-related
cutting chain, guide bars, sprockets and accessories for
chainsaw use, concrete-cutting equipment and accessories,
and outdoor equipment parts that include lawnmower
blades and other replacement parts and accessories. The
segment’s products are sold to OEMs for use on new
chainsaws and landscaping equipment and to the retail re-
placement market through distributors, dealers and mass
merchants. During 2007, approximately 27% of the seg-
ment’s sales were to OEMs, with the remainder sold into
the replacement market. Approximately 68% of the seg-
ment’s sales were outside of the U.S. in 2007, up from
65% in 2006 and 64% in 2005. The Outdoor Products seg-
ment’s performance can be impacted by trends in the
forestry industry, weather patterns and natural disasters,
including wind and ice storms, foreign currency fluctua-
tions and general economic conditions. The segment faces
price pressure from competitors on a worldwide basis. The
maintenance of competitive selling prices is dependent on
the segment’s ability to efficiently manufacture its prod-
ucts and successfully market newly developed products,
such as our replacement chain and bars and concrete-cutting
saws. This segment operates three manufacturing plants in
the U.S., one in Canada, one in Brazil and one in China, all
of which are focused on continuous cost improvement. The
Chinese facility was constructed in 2004, and manufacturing
at this facility commenced in 2005. Production capacity for
the Chinese facility was increased throughout 2005, 2006
and 2007, with further expansion expected in 2008. Timely
capital investment into this segment’s manufacturing plants
for added capacity and cost reductions, as well as effectively
sourcing critical raw materials at favorable prices, is re-
quired for us to remain competitive.

We also own and operate a gear components business
specializing in the manufacture of mobile equipment rota-
tion bearings, worm gear reducers, hydraulic pump drives
and swing drives. Sales in this business accounted for 6%
of our total sales in 2007. In 2007, 93% of these sales
were made to OEMs, and 97% of sales were to customers
in the U.S. This business’s customers supply equipment
primarily to the utility, construction and forestry markets.
The performance of this unit is closely aligned with gen-
eral economic trends and more specifically with business
conditions for these three industries in North America.

We maintain a centralized administrative staff at our
headquarters in Portland, Oregon. This centralized admin-
istrative staff provides the accounting, finance and infor-
mation technology functions, administers various health
and welfare plans and supervises the Company’s capital
structure and regulatory, compliance and legal matters.

In November 2007, we sold our Forestry Division to
Caterpillar. The Forestry Division constituted the majority
of the operations comprising our former Industrial and
Power Equipment Segment. The Forestry Division manu-
factured timber harvesting equipment and industrial trac-
tors and loaders and is reported as discontinued operations
for all periods presented.

In July 2006, we sold our Lawnmower segment busi-
ness, consisting of our Dixon subsidiary, to Husqvarna
Professional Outdoor Products. The Lawnmower seg-
ment manufactured zero-turning radius riding lawnmow-
ers and is reported as discontinued operations for all
periods presented.

Our capital structure has experienced significant
changes over the past three years. We began 2005 with
$494.2 million in total debt and Lehman Brothers owning
33.4% of our common stock. In 2005, as a result of sec-
ondary public offerings of our stock, Lehman Brothers re-
duced its holdings to its current level of approximately
19% of our outstanding common stock. In 2005, 2006 and
2007, we made significant reductions in outstanding debt
by utilizing cash generated from operations and the pro-
ceeds from the sale of our discontinued businesses. Debt
outstanding at the end of 2007 was $297.0 million, repre-
senting a reduction of $197.2 million over the three-year
period.
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Operating Results

Year ended December 31, 2007 compared to year ended December 31, 2006
The table below provides a summary of results and the primary contributing factors to the year over year change.

(Amounts in millions) 2007 2006 Change Contributing Factor

Sales $ 515.5 $ 487.5 $ 28.0
$ 10.0 Sales volume

10.0 Price and mix
8.0 Foreign currency translation

Gross profit 175.0 173.7 1.3
Gross margin 33.9% 35.6% 6.3 Sales volume

10.0 Selling price and mix
(13.2) Product cost and mix
(1.1) Warehouse consolidation expenses
(0.7) Foreign currency translation

Selling, general and administrative
Expenses (“SG&A”) 94.3 89.5 4.8

2.0 Cash compensation expense
0.7 Stock compensation expense
0.8 Professional services

(1.2) Retirement benefits expense
2.6 Foreign currency translation

(0.1) Other, net
Operating income 80.7 80.5 0.2

Operating margin 15.7% 16.5% 1.3 Increase in gross profit
(4.8) Increase in SG&A
3.7 2006 retirement plan redesign

Income from continuing operations 32.1 32.6 (0.5)
0.2 Increase in operating income
3.7 Decrease in net interest expense

(2.1) Change in other income/expense
(2.3) Increase in income tax provision

Income from discontinued operations 10.7 9.9 0.8
8.6 Increase in gain on sale of net assets

(2.9) Decrease in operating results
(4.9) Increase in income tax provision

Net income $ 42.9 $ 42.5 $ 0.4
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Sales in 2007 increased $28.0 million (6%) from 2006,
due to higher sales volume, price and mix improvements,
and the favorable effect of translation of foreign currency
denominated sales transactions, given the weaker U.S.
Dollar in comparison to 2006, particularly in relation to
the Euro. The Outdoor Products segment experienced a
$31.7 million (7%) increase in sales during 2007 compared
to 2006, while sales of our gear-related products decreased
$3.7 million (11%) from 2006 to 2007. International sales
increased $34.6 million (12%), but domestic sales declined
$6.3 million (3%). Included in the international increase is
the $8.0 million favorable impact from movement in for-
eign currency exchange rates compared to 2006. The de-
cline in U.S. sales is attributed to weaker market conditions
in the lawn care, forestry and construction industries. By
product line, sales of saw chain, bars, sprockets and acces-
sories increased 6% and sales of outdoor equipment parts

were up 15%. Sales of concrete-cutting products increased
3% from 2006 to 2007, lead by strength in Europe.

Consolidated order backlog for continuing operations at
December 31, 2007 was $69.3 million compared to $61.3
million at December 31, 2006. The year-over-year increase
primarily occurred in the Outdoor Products segment.

Gross profit increased $1.3 million (1%) from 2006 to
2007. Gross margin in 2007 was 33.9% of sales compared
to 35.6% in 2006. Higher sales volume and improved price
and product mix were largely offset by increases in product
costs, including higher freight and distribution costs, and
$1.1 million incurred to consolidate our North American
distribution centers. The increases in product costs include
the effects of higher energy costs for utilities, annual wage
increases to our manufacturing employees, $1.0 million in
higher steel costs and the effects of inflation on other cost
elements.
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Fluctuations in currency exchange rates decreased our
gross profit in 2007 compared to 2006 by $0.7 million on
a consolidated basis. The translation of stronger foreign
currencies into a weaker U.S. Dollar resulted in higher
manufacturing costs in Brazil and Canada, where local
currencies strengthened compared to the U.S. Dollar,
which were only partially offset by higher sales in Europe.

SG&A was $94.3 million in 2007 compared to $89.5
million in 2006, representing a year-over-year increase of
$4.8 million (5%). As a percent of sales, SG&A remained
at 18.3% in both 2007 and 2006. Cash-based compensa-
tion increased by $2.0 million year-over-year, reflecting
annual merit increases for our employees and higher vari-
able compensation expenses. Stock-based compensation
expense increased $0.7 million in 2007 as we continued to
expense stock compensation granted in 2006 over the
three year vesting periods, as well as recognizing expense
on 2007 grants. We expect stock compensation expense to
increase again in 2008. Future levels of stock-based com-
pensation expense will depend on many factors, including
the quantity, type and vesting schedule of future grants,
the price of our stock, the volatility of our stock and risk-
free interest rates. Professional services expense increased
$0.8 million, primarily due to higher legal costs. Em-
ployee benefits expenses decreased $1.2 million primarily
due to the redesign of the Company’s U.S. retirement
plans effective January 1, 2007. International operating
expenses increased $2.6 million from the prior year due to
the weaker U.S. Dollar and its effect on the translation of
foreign expenses.

We maintain defined benefit pension plans for substan-
tially all employees and retirees in the U.S., Canada and
Belgium. In addition, we maintain post-retirement medical
and other benefit plans covering most of our employees
and retirees in the U.S. The costs of these benefit plans are
included in cost of goods sold and SG&A. The accounting
effects and funding requirements for these plans are sub-
ject to actuarial estimates, actual plan experience and the
assumptions we make regarding future trends and expecta-
tions. See further discussion below of these key assump-
tions and estimates under “Critical Accounting Policies
and Estimates”. Total expense recognized for these pension
and other post-retirement plans was $5.8 million and $14.3
million for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. These amounts, which include amounts
charged to both continuing and discontinued operations,
also include pension curtailment charges of $0.2 million in
2007 related to our discontinued Forestry Division, and
$3.6 million in 2006 to reflect the freezing of our U.S. de-
fined benefit pension plan effective December 31, 2006.
At December 31, 2007, we have $41.2 million of accumu-
lated other comprehensive losses, related to our domestic
and foreign pension and other post-employment benefit
plans, that will be amortized to expense over future years,
including $1.9 million to be expensed in 2008.

Operating income increased slightly by $0.2 million from
2006 to 2007, resulting in an operating margin for 2007 of
15.7% of sales compared to 16.5% for 2006. The increase
was due to higher gross profit and the non-recurrence of a
$3.7 million charge to continuing operations in 2006 for the
redesign of our U.S. retirement plans, partially offset by
higher SG&A expenses in 2007.

Interest expense of $33.1 million in 2007 compared to
$35.8 million in 2006.The decrease was largely due to
lower average outstanding debt balances. Interest income
increased by $1.0 million from 2006 to 2007, reflecting
higher average balances of cash and cash equivalents.

Other expense of $0.8 million in 2007 compared to other
income of $1.3 million in 2006. The net expense in 2007
reflects losses on the sale of idle real estate, as well as the
write-off of deferred financing costs from the prepayment
of principal on our term loans. The income in 2006 is
largely due to proceeds from insurance settlements.

The following table summarizes our income tax provi-
sion for continuing operations in 2007 and 2006:

Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2007 2006

Income from continuing 
operations before income taxes $ 48,173 $ 46,391
Provision for income taxes 16,030 13,746

Income from continuing operations $ 32,143 $ 32,645

Effective tax rate 33.3% 29.6%

The increase in the effective tax rate from 2006 to 2007
is largely due to the discontinuation of a special deduction
for U.S. export sales, partially offset by the phase-in of a
new deduction for domestic production activities.

Our U.S. federal Net Operating Loss (“NOL”) carryfor-
ward was fully utilized during 2007. We estimate our state
NOL carryforwards are $30.3 million as of December 31,
2007. These carryforwards expire at various dates from
2008 through 2024. Additionally, we have a foreign tax
credit carryforward of approximately $1.7 million that ex-
pires in 2010. We also have state tax credit carryforwards
of approximately $0.2 million that expire at various dates
from 2008 through 2021. Our federal research credits and
alternative minimum tax credits are fully utilized as of De-
cember 31, 2007. The state NOL and other carryforwards
are available to reduce cash taxes on future domestic tax-
able income, although a portion of the state NOL carryfor-
wards are reduced by a valuation allowance reflecting the
expectation that the carryforward period will expire before
they can all be fully utilized.

Income from continuing operations in 2007 was $32.1
million, or $0.67 per diluted share, compared to $32.6 mil-
lion, or $0.68 per diluted share, in 2006.

Income from discontinued operations in 2007 was $10.7
million, or $0.22 per diluted share, compared to $9.9 mil-
lion, or $0.21 per diluted share in 2006. The 2007 results
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consisted solely of our discontinued Forestry Division
through the disposition date of November 5, 2007. Results
for 2006 include both the full year of activity of our
Forestry Division and activity of our discontinued Lawn-
mower segment through July 26, 2006. The Lawnmower
segment, consisting of our former wholly-owned sub-
sidiary, Dixon, was sold on July 27, 2006.

Discontinued operations are summarized as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in millions) 2007 2006

Sales $ 111.9 $ 196.8

Operating income (loss) (0.2) 2.7
Gain on disposition of net assets 26.0 17.4

Income before taxes from 
discontinued operations 25.8 20.1

Income tax provision 15.1 10.2

Income from discontinued operations $ 10.7 $ 9.9

Sales by the Forestry Division were $111.9 million in 2007
and $167.3 million in 2006. The Forestry Division incurred a
net loss of $0.2 million in 2007 and contributed $8.5 million
to operating income in 2006. The decline in year-over-year
sales and earnings was primarily due to a deepening of the
cyclical downturn in the North American forest products
equipment market in 2007, as well as charges of $4.5 million
incurred in 2007 for employee severance, employee benefits,

transition and closure costs. Included in operating income
from the Forestry Division in 2006 is a charge of $1.2 mil-
lion for costs to shut down one of the Forestry Division’s
three manufacturing plants. The 2007 results reflect the $26.0
million pretax gain on the disposal of the Forestry Division’s
net assets. The net cash proceeds received in 2007 from the
sale of the Forestry Division were approximately $68.3 mil-
lion and were used to reduce outstanding debt. We expect to
incur cash expenditures of approximately $15.0 million in
2008 for the payment of income taxes on the gain, as well as
other liabilities associated with the discontinued business.

Sales by the Lawnmower segment for the partial 2006
year were $29.5 million. The Lawnmower segment recog-
nized a loss from operations in 2006 of $5.3 million. The
2006 loss from operations was primarily due to expenses
necessary to finalize the closure of the facility, including
the termination of the majority of the Lawnmower segment
employees, and to facilitate the transfer of assets sold to
the buyer. These results included compensation, severance
and benefits costs, a charge to write down assets we re-
tained (primarily the land and building) and other ex-
penses. The 2006 results reflect the $17.4 million pretax
gain on the disposal of the segment’s net assets. The net
cash proceeds from the sale of the Lawnmower segment
were approximately $32.4 million and were used to reduce
outstanding debt.
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Segment Results. The following table reflects segment sales and operating income for 2007 and 2006:

Year Ended December 31,
2007 as

(Amounts in thousands) 2007 2006 % of 2006

Sales:
Outdoor Products $ 486,739 $ 455,009 107%
Corporate and other 28,796 32,485 89%

Total sales $ 515,535 $ 487,494 106%

Operating income
Outdoor Products $ 95,932 $ 97,805 98%
Corporate and other (15,232) (13,598) 112%

Retirement plan redesign – (3,747) –

Operating income $ 80,700 $ 80,460 100%

Outdoor Products Segment. Sales for the Outdoor Products
segment increased $31.7 million (7%) in 2007 compared to
2006. Of this increase, $15.7 million was due to additional
sales volume, primarily from an increase in sales of wood-
cutting saw chain and outdoor equipment parts and, to a
lesser extent, concrete-cutting saw chain. Improved price
and product mix also contributed $7.9 million to the year-
over-year sales increase. Fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange rates added another $8.0 million to segment sales
in 2007 compared to 2006. International sales grew nearly
12% year over year, while domestic sales decreased about
2%. Sales to OEMs increased by 4% ,while replacement
sales increased 5%. Sales of concrete-cutting products in-

creased $0.8 million (3%). Order backlog increased by $8.5
million to $63.3 million at December 31, 2007.

Segment contribution to operating income decreased
$1.9 million (2%) in 2007 compared to 2006. The favor-
able effects of increased sales volume ($7.9 million) and
improved price and mix ($7.9 million) were offset by
higher product cost and mix ($12.4 million), higher SG&A
expenses ($2.0 million) and the net unfavorable effect of
fluctuations in foreign currency translation rates ($3.3 mil-
lion). The higher product cost and mix, excluding the for-
eign currency exchange effect, includes inflationary
pressures of higher wages and other conversion costs,
higher freight and shipping costs, $1.1 million incurred to
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consolidate the North American distribution center and
$0.5 million in higher steel costs. The operating margin of
19.7% in 2007 compares to 21.5% in 2006.

Corporate and Other. The corporate and other category in-
cludes the activity of our gear components business, as
well as the costs of certain centralized management and
administrative functions. Sales of gear-related products de-
creased 11% from 2006 to 2007, with lower volume of
$5.7 million partially offset by improved price and mix of
$2.0 million. Weak market conditions in the construction
and forestry equipment markets in the U.S. were partially

offset by increased business in the utility equipment mar-
ket. The contribution to operating income from our gear
components business decreased $1.7 million (45%) year
over year due to lower sales revenue. Corporate expense
was flat year over year, with higher stock compensation
costs ($0.7 million) and merit wage increases off-set by re-
duced legal and compliance costs.

Year ended December 31, 2006 compared to year ended
December 31, 2005

The table below provides a summary of results and the
primary contributing factors to the year over year change.
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(Amounts in millions) 2006 2005 Change Contributing Factor

Sales $ 487.5 $ 478.8 $ 8.7
$ 7.2 Sales volume

0.9 Price and mix
0.6 Foreign currency translation

Gross profit 173.7 181.1 (7.4)
Gross margin 35.6% 37.8% 3.3 Sales volume

0.9 Selling price and mix
(7.4) Product cost and mix
(4.2) Foreign currency translation

SG&A 89.5 89.5 0.0
2.5 Stock compensation expense

(2.1) Cash compensation expense
(1.6) Legal and compliance costs
0.5 Depreciation and advertising
0.5 Foreign currency translation
0.2 Other, net

Operating income 80.5 91.6 (11.1)
Operating margin 16.5% 19.1% (7.4) Decrease in gross profit

(3.7) Retirement plan redesign
Income from continuing operations 32.6 88.2 (55.6)

(11.1) Decrease in operating income
1.3 Decrease in net interest expense
2.3 Change in other income/expense

(48.0) Change in income tax provision
(0.1) Other, net

Income from discontinued operations 9.9 18.4 (8.5)
17.4 Gain on sale of net assets

(26.7) Decrease in operating results
0.8 Decrease in income tax expense

Net income $ 42.5 $ 106.6 $ (64.1)

Sales in 2006 increased $8.7 million (2%) from 2005,
primarily due to higher sales volume. The Outdoor Products
segment experienced a $2.7 million (1%) increase in sales
during 2006 compared to 2005. Sales of our gear-related
products increased $6.0 million (23%) from 2005 to 2006.
International sales increased $6.9 million (2%) and domes-
tic sales increased $2.2 million (1%). Included in the inter-
national sales increase is a $0.6 million favorable impact
from movement in foreign currency exchange rates com-
pared to 2005, primarily from the stronger Canadian Dol-
lar. The relatively flat U.S. sales growth is attributed to

weaker market conditions in the lawn care and forestry in-
dustries, offset by stronger sales of our gear-related prod-
ucts. Sales of concrete-cutting products increased 10%
from 2005 to 2006, lead by new product introductions and
improved market penetration.

Consolidated order backlog for continuing operations at
December 31, 2006 was $61.3 million compared to $90.5
million at December 31, 2005. The year-over-year decline
is primarily due to improved production capacity and re-
lated responsiveness to customer orders in our Outdoor
Products segment, which lead to shorter lead times on
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product delivery. We believe that prior to 2006, customers
were ordering more than their short term needs to ensure
product delivery.

Gross profit decreased $7.4 million (4%) from 2005 to
2006. Gross margin in 2006 was 35.6% of sales compared
to 37.8% in 2005. Average selling prices increased slightly
in 2006, primarily from shifts in product mix and price in-
creases on selected products. The decrease related to prod-
uct cost and mix includes the effect of higher energy costs
for utilities, annual wage increases to our manufacturing
employees and inflation on other cost elements. These
product cost increases were partially offset by a decrease in
steel costs estimated at $1.0 million compared to the previ-
ous year. Fluctuations in currency exchange rates de-
creased our gross profit in 2006 compared to 2005 by $4.2
million. The largest effects were in our plants in Canada
and Brazil, which were impacted by higher manufacturing
costs resulting from translation to the weaker U.S. Dollar
estimated at $4.8 million. These higher translated costs
were partially offset by a modest increase in sales, esti-
mated at $0.6 million, due to currency exchange rates.

SG&A was $89.5 million in 2006 and in 2005. As a per-
cent of sales, SG&A decreased slightly to 18.4% in 2006
compared to 18.7% in 2005. Stock-based compensation
expense increased $2.5 million in 2006 following the
adoption of a new accounting standard. Cash-based com-
pensation decreased by $2.1 million year over year, reflect-
ing lower incentive compensation cost and selected
adjustments to work force levels partially offset by annual
merit increases. Compliance-related and legal professional
services decreased $1.6 million year-over-year. Deprecia-
tion and advertising expenses increased $0.5 million, pri-
marily due to additional investments in infrastructure and
administrative systems. International operating expenses
increased $0.5 million from the prior year due to the
weaker U.S. Dollar and its effect on the translation of for-
eign expenses.

Total expense recognized for our pension and other post-
retirement plans was $14.3 million and $12.8 million for
the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
These amounts, which include amounts charged to both
continuing and discontinued operations, also include a
pension curtailment charge of $3.6 million in 2006 to re-
flect the freezing of our U.S. defined benefit pension plan
effective December 31, 2006 and the related write-off of
unamortized prior service cost for plan participants. We
also recognized an additional charge of $0.5 million for re-
lated fees and costs associated with the changes to our re-
tirement plans.

Operating income decreased by $11.1 million (12%)
from 2005 to 2006, resulting in an operating margin for
2006 of 16.5% of sales compared to 19.1% for 2005. The
decrease was primarily due to lower gross profit and
charges related to the redesign of our U.S. retirement plans.

Interest expense of $35.8 million in 2006 compares to
$37.3 million in 2005. The decrease was largely due to
lower average outstanding debt balances, partially offset by
higher variable interest rates. The weighted average interest
rate on our revolver and term loans increased by 42 basis
points from December 31, 2005 to December 31, 2006. In-
terest income declined to $0.4 million for 2006 compared
to $0.6 million in 2005, primarily due to a decline in aver-
age balances of cash and cash equivalents.

Other income of $1.3 million in 2006 compared to other
expense of $1.0 million in 2005. The $2.3 million differ-
ence was largely due to the $3.0 million write-off of de-
ferred financing costs in 2005 resulting from prepayment
of principal on our term debt. Excluding this expense,
other income for both periods was primarily related to pro-
ceeds from insurance settlements.

The following table summarizes our income tax provi-
sion for continuing operations in 2006 and 2005:

Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2006 2005

Income from continuing 
operations before income taxes $ 46,391 $ 53,958

Provision (benefit) for income taxes 13,746 (34,256)

Income from continuing operations $ 32,645 $ 88,214

Effective tax rate 29.6% (63.5)%

The $48.0 million year-over-year change in income taxes
is largely due to the 2005 reversal of most of the valuation
allowance established on our U.S. deferred income tax as-
sets. The valuation allowance was originally established in
the third quarter of 2003. Our domestic net operating loss
carryforwards and other deferred tax assets were fully re-
served with a valuation allowance until the reversal of the
valuation allowance on December 31, 2005. Accordingly,
we recognized minimal net federal domestic tax expense
on our domestic income during 2005, except for incremen-
tal taxes on the repatriation of foreign earnings. Our re-
maining U.S. NOL carryforward of approximately $20.2
million as of December 31, 2006 was fully utilized during
2007.

Income from continuing operations for 2006 was $32.6
million, or $0.68 per diluted share, compared to income
from continuing operations of $88.2 million, or $1.86 per
diluted share, in 2005.

Income from discontinued operations of $9.9 million, or
$0.21 per diluted share in 2006, compared to $18.4 mil-
lion, or $0.38 per diluted share in 2005. These results con-
sisted of both our discontinued Forestry Division, formerly
making up the majority of our discontinued Industrial and
Power Equipment segment, and our discontinued Lawn-
mower segment. Our Forestry Division was sold in No-
vember 2007. The Lawnmower segment, consisting of our
former wholly-owned subsidiary, Dixon, was sold in
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July 2006. Accordingly, both businesses are reported as
discontinued operations for all periods presented.

Discontinued operations are summarized as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in millions) 2006 2005

Sales $ 196.8 $ 281.9

Operating income 2.7 29.3
Gain on disposition of net assets 17.4 –

Income before taxes from 
discontinued operations 20.1 29.3

Income tax provision 10.2 10.9

Income from discontinued operations $ 9.9 $ 18.4

Full-year results for our Forestry Division are included
in both 2005 and 2006 above. Sales by the Forestry Divi-
sion were $167.3 million in 2006 and $227.5 million in
2005. The Forestry Division contributed $8.5 million to
operating income in 2006, and $26.2 million to operating
income in 2005. The decline in year-over-year sales and
earnings was primarily due to a cyclical downturn in the
North American forest products equipment market. Included

in operating income for 2006 is a charge of $1.2 million
for costs to shut down one of the Forestry Division’s three
manufacturing plants.

We operated the Lawnmower segment through July 26,
2006. Full year results for the Lawnmower segment are in-
cluded in 2005 above, but only partial year results are in-
cluded for 2006. Sales by the Lawnmower segment were
$54.4 million in 2005 and for the partial 2006 year were
$29.5 million. The Lawnmower segment contributed $3.1
million to operating income in 2005 but recognized a loss
from operations in 2006 of $5.3 million. The 2006 loss
from operations was primarily due to expenses necessary
to finalize the closure of the facility, including the termina-
tion of the majority of the Lawnmower segment employ-
ees, and to facilitate the transfer of assets sold to the buyer.
These results included compensation, severance and bene-
fits costs, a charge to write down assets we retained (pri-
marily the land and building) and other expenses. The
2006 results reflect the $17.4 million pretax gain on the
disposal of the segment’s net assets.
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Segment Results. The following table reflects segment sales and operating income for 2006 and 2005:

Year Ended December 31,
2006 as

(Amounts in thousands) 2006 2005 % of 2005

Sales:
Outdoor Products $ 455,009 $ 452,334 101%
Corporate and other 32,485 26,495 123%

Total sales $ 487,494 $ 478,829 102%

Operating income
Outdoor Products $ 97,805 $ 105,536 93%
Corporate and other (13,598) (13,908) 98%
Retirement plan redesign (3,747) – –

Operating income $ 80,460 $ 91,628 88%

Outdoor Products Segment. Sales for the Outdoor Products
Segment increased $2.7 million (1%) in 2006 compared to
2005. Of this increase, $2.6 million was due to additional
sales volume, coming primarily from an increase in sales
of chainsaw guide bars and accessories outside the U.S.
and from our concrete-cutting products and accessories.
Price increases were realized in certain markets; however,
the combination of selling prices and product mix resulted
in a net decrease of $0.5 million compared to 2005. The
net effect of foreign currency translation on sales was an
increase of $0.6 million. Order backlog decreased to $54.8
million at December 31, 2006, compared to $82.5 million
at December 31, 2005, a 34% decrease. The decrease in
backlog compared to the prior year was partially due to in-
creases in capacity and to improved delivery to customers,
both of which have resulted in reduced order lead-times.

Sales of chainsaw guide-bars increased 11%, which was
made possible by increased production capacity and con-

tinued strong demand. Unit sales of chainsaw parts and ac-
cessories used for forestry or wood-cutting applications in-
creased a modest 1%. A decrease in chainsaw chain
volume partially offset the gains in guide bars, parts and
accessories. Sales of outdoor equipment parts, including
lawnmower blades and other accessories for lawn and gar-
den use, decreased 4%, largely due to adverse weather con-
ditions in U.S. markets. Geographically, the weaker U.S.
Dollar during 2006 provided an incremental advantage for
our selling prices, contributing to a 2% increase in interna-
tional sales on top of 12% growth in 2005 and 20% growth
in 2004. Sales to OEMs increased by 3%, while replace-
ment sales were flat on a year-over-year basis. Sales of
concrete-cutting products increased $2.8 million, primarily
from higher unit volume.

Segment contribution to operating income decreased
$7.7 million (7%) in 2006 compared to 2005. The favor-
able effect of increased sales volume on contribution was
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approximately $2.1 million. This increase was offset by the
net unfavorable effect of foreign currency translation, esti-
mated at $4.7 million, driven primarily by the effect that
stronger Canadian and Brazilian currencies had on our
manufacturing costs and SG&A expenses. These higher
costs were partially offset by the favorable net effect of a
weaker U.S. Dollar on sales. Excluding the effects of cur-
rency exchange rates, the net unfavorable effect of cost and
mix was $4.0 million. This net effect includes inflationary
pressures of higher wages and other conversion costs, par-
tially offset by an estimated $1.5 million year-over-year re-
duction in steel costs, and $1.0 million related to reductions
in staffing levels. The operating margin of 21.5% in 2006
compares to 23.3% in 2005.

Corporate and Other. The corporate and other category
above includes the activity of our gear components busi-
ness, as well as the costs of certain centralized administra-
tive functions. Sales of gear-related products increased
23% from 2005 to 2006, with 5% attributable to price and
product mix, and 18% due to higher volume. Improve-
ments in manufacturing efficiency lead to improved cus-
tomer service and increased market share. Contribution to
operating income from the gear components business in-
creased $1.8 million from 2005 to 2006. Corporate ex-
pense increased $1.5 million (9%) in 2006 compared to
2005. This increase included a $2.5 million increase in
stock-based compensation expense related to the adoption
of a new accounting standard. Stock-based compensation
expense is expected to increase gradually over the next
several years as a result of the effects of additional stock
compensation grants. The combination of wages and in-
centive compensation increased $0.5 million. These in-
creases were partially offset by a $1.6 million decrease in
legal and other compliance-related costs.

Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources
During the last three years we have significantly reduced

our debt and related interest expense using cash flow from
operations and the net proceeds from the sale of our Lawn-
mower Segment in 2006 and the sale of our Forestry Divi-
sion in 2007. Total debt was $297.0 million at
December 31, 2007 and $350.9 million at December 31,
2006, representing a reduction of $53.9 million during
2007. Outstanding debt as of December 31, 2007 consisted
of a term loan balance of $122.0 million and 87⁄8% senior
subordinated notes of $175.0 million. We had no principal
outstanding on our revolving credit facility as of
December 31, 2007.

8 7⁄8% Senior Subordinated Notes. We have one registered
debt security, the 87⁄8% senior subordinated notes. The in-
terest rate on these notes is fixed until their maturity on
August 1, 2012. These notes are issued by Blount, Inc. and
are fully and unconditionally, jointly and severally, guaran-
teed by the Company and all of its domestic subsidiaries

(“guarantor subsidiaries”) other than Blount, Inc. All guar-
antor subsidiaries of these 87⁄8% senior subordinated notes
are 100% owned, directly or indirectly, by the Company.
While the Company and all of its domestic subsidiaries
guarantee these 87⁄8% senior subordinated notes, none of
our existing foreign subsidiaries (“non-guarantor sub-
sidiaries”) guarantee these notes.

Senior Credit Facilities. The Company, through its wholly-
owned subsidiary, Blount, Inc., first entered into a credit
agreement with General Electric Capital Corporation as
Agent on May 15, 2003. The agreement was amended and
restated on August 9, 2004, and has had several subsequent
amendments. The senior credit facilities consist of a term
loan facility and a revolving credit facility.

2006 Amendment to Credit Facilities. On March 23, 2006, we
amended certain terms of the senior credit facilities. This
amendment included the following changes:

� Maximum availability under the revolving credit facility
was increased from $100.0 million to $150.0 million.

� Interest rates were reduced by 0.75% for the term loans
and by 1.00% for the revolving credit facility.

� Certain financial covenants were modified, including in-
creases to the amounts that may be paid for acquisitions,
dividends and repurchase of Company stock, as well as
modifications to certain financial ratio requirements.

� The Company incurred fees and third party costs of $0.7
million related to the amendment.

Immediately following the amendment, we completed
the following transactions:

� $82.1 million was borrowed under the revolving credit
facility.

� The total principal balance of $4.6 million was paid off
on a Canadian term loan, and that loan was cancelled.

� $77.5 million in principal was paid against the term
loans, leaving a balance of $150.0 million outstanding.

2007 Amendment to Credit Facilities. On November 5, 2007,
we amended certain terms of the senior credit facilities. No
changes were made to the interest rates, principal amounts,
maturity dates or payment schedules of the debt or to the
availability of credit under the agreement. This amendment
included the following changes:

� The agreement was modified to allow the Company to
sell our Forestry Division on the same day as the effec-
tive date of the amendment.

� Certain covenants, terms and conditions were modified
in the credit agreement, including an increased al-
lowance for acquisitions, reduced reporting requirements
and a reduction in the required senior leverage ratio.

� The Company incurred fees and third party costs of $0.7
million related to the amendment.
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The revolving credit facility provides for total available
borrowings up to $150.0 million, reduced by outstanding
letters of credit and further restricted by a specific leverage
ratio and first lien credit facilities leverage ratio. As of De-
cember 31, 2007, the Company had the ability to borrow an
additional $140.9 million under the terms of the revolving
credit agreement. The revolving credit facility bears interest
at the LIBOR rate plus 1.75%, or at the prime rate, depend-
ing on the type of loan, and matures on August 9, 2009. In-
terest is payable monthly in arrears on any prime rate
borrowing and at individual maturity dates for any LIBOR-
based borrowing. Any outstanding principal is due in its en-
tirety on the maturity date.

The term loan facility bears interest at the LIBOR rate
plus 1.75%, or at the prime rate, depending on the type of
loan, and matures on August 9, 2010. The term loan facil-
ity requires quarterly payments of $0.3 million, with a fi-
nal payment of $118.6 million due on the maturity date.
Once repaid, principal under the term loan facility may not
be re-borrowed by the Company.

The amended and restated senior credit facilities contain
financial covenant calculations relating to maximum capi-
tal expenditures, minimum fixed charge coverage ratio,
maximum leverage ratio and maximum first lien credit fa-
cilities leverage ratio. In addition, there are covenants re-
lating, among other categories, to investments, loans and
advances, indebtedness, and the sale of stock or assets. We
were in compliance with all debt covenants as of Decem-
ber 31, 2007. Non-compliance with these covenants, if it
were to become an event of default under the terms of the
credit agreement, could result in severe limitations to our
overall liquidity, and the term loan lenders could require
actions for immediate repayment of outstanding amounts,
potentially requiring sale of our assets. Our debt is not sub-
ject to any triggers that would require early payment of
debt due to any adverse change in our credit rating.

The amended and restated senior credit facilities may be
prepaid at any time. There can also be additional mandatory
repayment requirements related to the sale of Company as-
sets, the issuance of stock under certain circumstances or
upon the Company’s annual generation of excess cash flow,
as determined under the credit agreement.

Blount International, Inc. and all of its domestic sub-
sidiaries other than Blount, Inc. guarantee Blount, Inc.’s
obligations under the senior credit facilities. The obliga-
tions under the senior credit facilities are collateralized by
a first priority security interest in substantially all of the
assets of Blount, Inc. and its domestic subsidiaries, as well
as a pledge of all of Blount, Inc.’s capital stock held by
Blount International, Inc. and all of the stock of domestic
subsidiaries held by Blount, Inc. Blount, Inc. has also
pledged 65% of the stock of its non-domestic subsidiaries
as additional collateral.

Interest expense has been reduced in each of the last
three years primarily by the reduction in the principal
amount of long term debt. The effects of these principal re-
ductions have been further affected by changes in interest
rates on our variable rate debt. The variable interest rates
decreased by 11 basis points during 2007, but increased by
a net amount of 42 basis points during 2006 after increas-
ing by 161 basis points during 2005. Our annual interest
expense may continue to vary in the future because the
senior credit facility interest rates are not fixed. The
weighted average interest rate on all our outstanding debt
as of December 31, 2007 was 8.11%, compared with
7.99% as of December 31, 2006. Cash interest paid was
$31.3 million in 2007, $33.0 million in 2006 and $31.3
million in 2005.

Our debt continues to be significant, and future debt
service payments continue to represent substantial obliga-
tions. This degree of leverage may adversely affect our op-
erations and could have important consequences. See
Item 1A, Risk Factors, “Substantial Leverage” for further
discussion. Over the longer term, we expect to meet our
financial and capital needs, including payment of debt
obligations, through a combination of cash flow from opera-
tions and amounts available under existing credit facilities,
as well as the potential issuance of new debt, sale of addi-
tional shares of stock or establishment of new credit facili-
ties. While there can be no assurance, management
believes we will comply with all financial performance
covenants during the next twelve months. Should we not
comply with the covenants, additional significant actions
may be required. These actions may include, among others,
an attempt to renegotiate our debt facilities, sales of assets,
restructuring and reductions in capital expenditures.

We intend to fund working capital, capital expenditures
and debt service requirements for the next twelve months
through expected cash flows generated from operations
and the amounts available under our revolving credit
agreement. Interest on our debt is payable in arrears ac-
cording to varying interest rates and periods. We expect
our financial resources will be sufficient to cover any addi-
tional increases in working capital and capital expendi-
tures. There can be no assurance, however, that these
resources will be sufficient to meet our needs. We may
also consider other options available to us in connection
with future liquidity needs.

Cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2007 were
$57.6 million compared to $27.6 million at December 31,
2006.
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Cash provided by operating activities is summarized as
follows:

Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Income from 
continuing operations $ 32,143 $ 32,645 $ 88,214

Non-cash items included 
in net income 37,060 36,099 (15,901)

Subtotal 69,203 68,744 72,313

Changes in assets and 
liabilities, net (32,653) (13,073) (42,491)

Discontinued operations (5,209) 4,345 35,290

Cash provided by 
operating activities $ 31,341 $ 60,016 $ 65,112

Non-cash items consist of expense from the early extin-
guishment of debt, depreciation of property, plant and
equipment, amortization and other non-cash charges, de-
ferred income taxes and (gain) loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment. Changes in assets and liabilities, net,
consists of those changes in assets and liabilities included
in the cash flows from operating activities section of the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

2007 cash provided by operating activities of $31.3 mil-
lion reflected the following significant items:

� Income from continuing operations of $32.1 million;
� Addition of non-cash items of $37.1 million, which in-

cluded the following:
�Depreciation expense of $17.6 million;
�Amortization and write-off of deferred financing

costs of $4.6 million;
�Stock compensation costs of $3.2 million;
�A deferred income tax provision of $11.1 million; and
�A net loss of $0.7 million related to the disposal of

property, plant and equipment.

� Changes in assets and liabilities reduced cash flow from
operations by $32.7 million, including the following
items:
�A decrease in accounts receivable of $3.6 million and

an increase in accounts payable of $4.7 million;
�An increase in inventories of $13.3 million;
�An increase in other assets of $3.6 million;
�A reduction in accrued expenses of $7.4 million; and
�A reduction in other liabilities of $16.6 million, pri-

marily related to pension funding in excess of the
amount charged to expense.

�Discontinued operations used $5.2 million, primarily
for transition costs incurred in selling the Forestry
Division.

2006 cash provided by operating activities of $60.0 mil-
lion reflected the following significant items:

� Income from continuing operations of $32.6 million;

� Addition of non-cash items of $36.1 million, which in-
cluded the following:
�Depreciation expense of $15.1 million;
�Amortization of deferred financing costs of $3.7

million;
�Pension curtailment charge of $3.2 million;
�Stock compensation costs of $2.6 million;
�A deferred income tax provision of $13.0 million; and
�A net gain of $0.8 million related to the disposal of

property, plant and equipment.

� Changes in assets and liabilities reduced cash flow from
operations by $13.1 million, including the following items:
�Decreases in accounts receivable of $1.5 million and

inventory of $2.9 million;
�An increase in other assets of $3.7 million;
�An increase in accounts payable of $2.6 million;
�A reduction in accrued expenses of $7.0 million; and
�A reduction in other liabilities of $9.4 million, prima-

rily related to pension funding in excess of the
amount charged to expense.

� Discontinued operations provided $4.3 million, primarily
due to the full-year operating activities of our Forestry
Division partially offset by transition costs incurred in
selling the Lawnmower segment.

2005 cash provided by operating activities of $65.1 mil-
lion, reflected the following significant items:

� Net income from continuing operations of $88.2 million.
� Reduction for non-cash items of $15.9 million, which in-

cluded the following:
�Depreciation expense of $13.2 million;
�Amortization and write-off of deferred financing

costs of $6.5 million;
�A deferred income tax benefit recognized of $35.3

million, including the reversal of a valuation al-
lowance on deferred tax assets; and

�A net gain of $0.4 million related to the disposal of
property, plant and equipment.

� Changes in assets and liabilities used $42.5 million of
net cash, including the following items:
�An increase in accounts receivable of $17.3 million,

primarily related to delayed collections from certain
of our larger OEM customers at the end of 2005.
These OEM customer receivables were collected in
early 2006;

�An increase in inventories of $4.7 million;
�An increase in other assets of $4.9 million;
�An increase in accounts payable of $1.1 million;
�A decrease in accrued expenses of $10.3 million; and
�A decrease in other liabilities of $6.5 million.

� Discontinued operations provided $35.3 million, repre-
senting the Forestry Division and Lawnmower segment’s
cash flows from operating activities.
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Cash contributions for all pension and post-retirement
benefit plans were $22.9 million for 2007, $20.8 million
for 2006 and $12.4 million for 2005. Funding require-
ments for post-retirement benefit plans fluctuate signifi-
cantly from year to year. See further discussion following
under “Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates.” The
Company intends to make contributions to our funded pen-
sion plans in 2008 of approximately $3.0 million to $4.0
million. The obligations under our other post-retirement
benefit plans are made on a pay-as-you-go basis. We also
make cash contributions to our U.S. 401(k) plan. In 2007,
we contributed $2.6 million, and expect to contribute be-
tween $5.4 million and $5.6 million in 2008. The higher
level of expected contributions in 2008 reflects the addi-
tional contribution implemented as part of our U.S. retire-
ment plan restructuring and the freeze of our U.S. defined
benefit pension plan undertaken in 2006.

The American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (the “Act”),
signed into law October 22, 2004, included a one-time
election to deduct 85% of certain foreign earnings that are
repatriated, as defined in the Act. Any repatriation of for-
eign earnings was required to be completed by Decem-
ber 31, 2005. During the fourth quarter of 2005, we
repatriated $24.9 million of our undistributed earnings of
foreign subsidiaries. Management’s intention is to reinvest
remaining undistributed foreign earnings indefinitely.

Net cash income tax payments were $20.8 million in
2007, $9.9 million in 2006 and $14.3 million in 2005. In-
come tax payments prior to 2007 have been primarily the
result of our foreign tax liability, with a portion also for
state and local taxes and alternative minimum tax. In addi-
tion, incremental cash taxes on the repatriation of foreign
earnings of $1.4 million were paid in 2005. In the years
prior to 2007, U.S. taxable income has been offset by our
domestic net operating loss carryforwards. As expected, we
began paying cash income taxes in the U.S. in 2007.

Cash flows from investing activities are summarized as
follows:

Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Proceeds from sale of property, 
plant and equipment $ 2,309 $ 1,244 $ 382

Purchases of property, plant 
and equipment (18,517) (21,653) (17,307)

Discontinued operations 69,071 30,900 (2,022)

Cash provided by (used in) 
investing activities $ 52,863 $ 10,491 $ (18,947)

In 2007 we generated $52.9 million of cash from invest-
ing activities, inclusive of $69.1 million of net activity
from discontinued operations. Discontinued operations in
2007 included net proceeds from the sale of our Forestry
Division, reduced by amounts held in escrow and capital

expenditures made by the Forestry Division prior to the
sale on November 5, 2007. In 2006, we generated $10.5
million from investing activities, inclusive of $30.9 million
of net activity from discontinued operations. Discontinued
operations in 2006 included net proceeds from the sale of
our Lawnmower segment, reduced by capital expenditures
of our Forestry Division. In 2005 we used $18.9 million in
investing activities, reflecting capital expenditures of $17.3
million for our continuing operations and capital expendi-
tures of $2.0 million in our discontinued operations. Pur-
chases of property, plant and equipment for all three years
presented are primarily for productivity improvements, ex-
panded manufacturing capacity and replacement of con-
sumable tooling. In the three year period we have invested
$18.1 million for construction and equipment at our facil-
ity in China, with $5.4 million of the total expended in
2007. In 2008, we expect to increase purchases of property,
plant and equipment to between $25 million and $30 mil-
lion, primarily for ongoing productivity and cost improve-
ments in our manufacturing processes and routine
replacement of machinery and equipment, including tool-
ing that is consumed in the production process, as well as
incremental capacity expansion.

Cash flows from financing activities are summarized as
follows:

Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Net reduction of debt $ (53,875) $ (56,848) $ (86,488)
Issuance, modification 
and redemption costs (700) (700) (3,979)

Proceeds from the exercise 
of stock options and warrants 324 1,740 8,669

Cash used by 
financing activities $ (54,251) $ (55,808) $ (81,798)

2007 activity included the following:
� Net debt reduction of $53.9 million, primarily funded

with proceeds from the sale of our Forestry Division;
� Expenditures of $0.7 million incurred with the Novem-

ber, 2007 amendment to our senior credit facilities; and
� $0.2 million of proceeds from the exercise of stock op-

tions and a related $0.1 million tax benefit that is recog-
nized as a financing activity under FAS No. 123(R).

2006 activity included the following:

� Net debt reduction of $56.8 million, partially funded
with proceeds from the sale of our Lawnmower segment,
as well as cash flows from operations;

� Expenditures of $0.7 million incurred with the March,
2006 amendment to our senior credit facilities; and
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� $1.0 million of proceeds from the exercise of stock op-
tions and a related $0.7 million tax benefit.

2005 activity included the following:

� Net debt reduction of $86.5 million, funded with cash
flows from operations and the repatriation of cash from
foreign subsidiaries;

� Payment of previously recorded debt issuance costs of
$2.6 million, and previously recorded stock issuance
costs of $1.4 million, related to several 2004 refinancing
transactions;

� Proceeds from the issuance of stock that were in turn
used for the purchase of treasury stock, each at $6.1 mil-
lion and netting to zero; and

� Proceeds from exercise of stock options and warrants of
$8.7 million.

In June 2005, we and certain of our shareholders sold
7.5 million shares of our common stock in a public offer-
ing. We received cumulative net proceeds of $10 thousand
for the following transactions:

� Lehman Brothers sold 6,117,620 shares of our common
stock, reducing its ownership to approximately 8.9 mil-
lion shares, or approximately 19% of our outstanding
common stock. We did not receive any proceeds from
this sale;

� We issued 382,380 shares of common stock and received
net proceeds of $6.1 million;

� We purchased 382,380 shares of common stock from
certain stockholders for $6.1 million. These shares are

held as treasury stock and we have accounted for this
treasury stock as constructively retired in the consoli-
dated financial statements; and

� Warrants for 1,000,000 shares of common stock at $0.01
a share were exercised with net proceeds of $10 thou-
sand received by the Company.

Of the amounts disbursed for debt and equity issuance
costs in 2005, $3.2 million was paid to Lehman Brothers,
which prior to December 2004 controlled more than 50%
of our outstanding common stock.

Certain customers of the discontinued Lawnmower seg-
ment financed their purchases through third party financing
companies. Under the terms of these financing arrange-
ments, the Company may be required to repurchase certain
equipment from the finance companies, or reimburse them
for any financial loss incurred, should a customer default
on payment. Since we discontinued the business, no new
obligations have arisen, and the remaining outstanding
commitment has decreased significantly. The aggregate re-
purchase or reimbursement obligation outstanding under
the agreements as of December 31, 2007 was $0.8 million.
These arrangements have not had a material adverse effect
on the Company’s operating results or cash flows in the
past. The Company does not expect to incur any material
charges related to these agreements in future periods based
on past experience and because any repurchased equip-
ment would most likely be resold for approximately the
same value.
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As of December 31, 2007, our contractual and estimated obligations are as follows (in thousands):

(Amounts in thousands) Total 2008 2009-2010 2011-2012 Thereafter

Debt obligations (1) $ 297,000 $ 1,242 $ 120,758 $ 175,000 –
Estimated interest payments (2) 100,635 23,897 45,676 31,062 –
Purchase commitments (3) 125 125 – – –
Operating lease obligations (4) 5,156 1,079 1,841 755 $ 1,481
Defined benefit pension obligations (5) 3,099 3,099 – – –
Other post-retirement obligations (6) 16,097 1,660 2,499 2,028 9,910
Other long term liabilities (7) 425 25 200 200 –

Total contractual obligations $ 422,537 $ 31,127 $ 170,974 $ 209,045 $ 11,391

(1) Scheduled minimum principal payments on debt. Additional voluntary prepayments may also be made from time to time. Additional mandatory principal pay-
ments are required under certain circumstances.

(2) Estimated future interest payments based on existing debt balances, timing of scheduled minimum principal payments and estimated variable interest rates.
(3) Does not include amounts recorded as current liabilities on the balance sheet.
(4) See also Note 11 to Consolidated Financial Statements.
(5) Current minimum funding requirements for defined benefit pension plans. Does not include estimated future funding requirements for defined benefit pension

plans of approximately $8.3 million in 2009 and each year thereafter. Actual funding requirements may vary significantly from these estimates based on ac-
tual return on assets, changes in assumptions, plan modifications and actuarial gains and losses. See additional discussion of these key assumptions and esti-
mates under “Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates” below. Additional voluntary funding payments may also be made.

(6) Estimated payments for various non-qualified retirement benefits. The Company also has benefit payment obligations due under its post-retirement medical
plan that are not required to be funded in advance, but are pay-as-you-go, and are not included herein. See Note 10 to Consolidated Financial Statements for
additional discussion.

(7) Advisory and consulting fees for certain current and former officers and directors of the Company.
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As of December 31, 2007, our recorded liability for un-
certain tax positions was $28.0 million. Due to the high de-
gree of uncertainty regarding the timing of potential future
cash flows associated with uncertain tax positions, we are
unable to make a reasonable estimate of the amounts and
periods in which these remaining liabilities might be paid.
It is reasonably possible that the estimate of uncertain tax
positions could change materially in the near term.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements
At December 31, 2007 and 2006, we did not have any re-

lationships with unconsolidated entities or financial part-
nerships, such as entities often referred to as structured
finance or special purpose entities, which would have been
established for the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet
arrangements or for other contractually narrow or limited
purposes. As such, we are not exposed to any financing,
liquidity, market or credit risk that could arise if we had en-
gaged in such relationships.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
Management’s discussion and analysis of our financial

condition and results of operations is based on the Com-
pany’s consolidated financial statements that have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles gener-
ally accepted in the United States of America.

The preparation of these financial statements requires us
to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, equity components, revenues
and expenses. We base our estimates on historical experi-
ence and various other assumptions that are believed to be
reasonable and consistent with industry practice. Actual re-
sults may differ from these estimates under different as-
sumptions or conditions. We believe the following critical
accounting policies affect our more significant judgments
and estimates in the preparation of our consolidated finan-
cial statements.

We record reductions to selling prices as products are
shipped. These reductions are based on competitive and
market conditions, in addition to specific customer con-
tracts in some instances. These reductions are estimated
and recorded at the time of shipment either through a re-
duction to the invoice total or the establishment of an ac-
crual for payment at a later date. The amount accrued may
increase or decrease prior to payment due to customer per-
formance and market conditions.

We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts for esti-
mated losses against our recorded accounts receivable.
Such allowance is based on an ongoing review of customer
payments against terms and a review of customers’ finan-
cial statements and conditions through monitoring serv-
ices. Based on these reviews, additional allowances may be
required and are recorded in the appropriate period.

Specific industry market conditions can significantly in-
crease or decrease the level of inventory on hand in any of
our business units. We adjust for changes in demand by re-
ducing or increasing production levels. We estimate the re-
quired inventory reserves for excess or obsolete inventory
by assessing inventory turns and market selling prices on a
product by product basis. We maintain such reserves until
a product is sold or market conditions require a change in
the reserves.

We perform an annual review for impairment of good-
will at the reporting unit level. We also perform an impair-
ment analysis of goodwill whenever circumstances
indicate that impairment may have occurred. The impair-
ment tests are performed by determining the fair values of
the reporting units using a discounted projected cash flow
model and comparing those fair values to the carrying val-
ues of the reporting units, including goodwill. If the carry-
ing amount of the reporting unit’s goodwill exceeds the
implied fair value of that goodwill, an impairment loss is
recognized in an amount equal to that excess. Events or
changes in circumstances may occur that could create un-
derperformance relative to projected future cash flows,
which could create future impairments.

We offer certain warranties with the sale of our products.
The warranty obligation is recorded at the point of revenue
recognition as a charge to cost of goods sold and as a lia-
bility on the balance sheet, and is estimated based upon
historic customer claims, supplier performance and new
product reliability analysis. Should a change in trend occur
in customer claims, an increase or decrease in the warranty
liability may be necessary.

We incur expenses in connection with product liability
claims as a result of alleged product malfunctions or de-
fects. We maintain insurance for a portion of this exposure
and record a liability for our non-insured obligations. We
estimate our product liability obligations on a case by case
basis, in addition to a review of product performance
trends. These estimated obligations may be increased or
decreased as more information on specific cases becomes
available or performance trends change.

In 2006, we implemented FAS No. 123 (R) under the
modified prospective approach. We expect to continue to
incur significant stock compensation expense in future pe-
riods. Prior to 2006, we accounted for stock-based com-
pensation under FAS No. 123 and provided pro-forma
disclosure, but did not expense the majority of our stock-
based compensation. Under the modified prospective ap-
plication method, the results for prior periods have not
been restated. None of our outstanding stock awards were
modified in anticipation of the adoption of FAS No. 123
(R). We determine the fair value of stock based awards us-
ing the Black-Scholes model. We use the simplified
method described in SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin
No. 107 (“SAB 107”) for estimated lives of stock options
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and SARs. Assumptions for the risk-free interest rate, ex-
pected volatility and dividend yield are based on historical
information and management estimates.

We determine our post-retirement obligations on an
actuarial basis that requires management to make certain
assumptions. These assumptions include the long-term rate
of return on plan assets, the discount rate to be used in cal-
culating the applicable benefit obligation and the antici-
pated trend in health care costs. These assumptions are
reviewed on an annual basis and consideration is given to
market conditions, as well as to the requirements of FAS
No. 158. The weighted average assumed rate of return on
plan assets was 8.5% for 2007, and we anticipate using a
lower assumed rate of return in 2008 and beyond, as we
have shifted our weighting of investments slightly to a
higher proportion of fixed securities and a lower proportion
of equities. We believe this assumed rate of return is rea-
sonable, given the asset composition and long-term historic
trends. A weighted average discount rate assumption of
5.7% was used to determine our plan liabilities at Decem-
ber 31, 2007. We believe this discount rate is reasonable,
given comparable rates for high quality corporate bonds
with terms comparable to the projected cash flows for our
respective plans. We have assumed that health care costs
will increase by 10% in 2008, then decline by 1% per year
until 5% is reached. Our annual post-retirement expenses
can be impacted by changes in these assumptions. A 1%
change in the return on assets assumption would change an-
nual pension expense by $1.8 million in 2008. A 1% de-
crease in the discount rate would increase pension expense
by $3.0 million in 2008, and a 1% increase in the discount
rate would decrease pension expense by $1.4 million in
2008. A 1% increase in the health care cost trend assump-
tion for 2008 and beyond would increase annual post-retire-
ment medical costs by approximately $0.3 million per year
and a 1% decrease in the health care cost trend assumption
for 2008 and beyond would decrease annual post-retirement
medical costs by approximately $0.2 million a year.

Effective January 1, 2007, we account for uncertain tax
positions in accordance with FIN No. 48, which clarifies
the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized
in an enterprise’s financial statements in accordance with
FASB Statement No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.”
The application of income tax law is inherently complex.
Laws and regulations in this area are voluminous and are
often ambiguous. As such, we are required to make many
assumptions and judgments regarding our income tax ex-
posures. Interpretations of income tax laws and regulations
and guidance surrounding them change over time. Changes
in our assumptions and judgments can materially affect
amounts recognized in the consolidated financial state-
ments. See Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements
for additional information on our uncertain tax positions
and the impact of adopting FIN No. 48.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the
future tax consequences attributable to differences between

the financial statement carrying amounts of assets and lia-
bilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates ex-
pected to apply to taxable income in the years in which
those temporary differences are expected to be recovered
or settled. Included in recorded tax liabilities are estimated
amounts related to uncertain tax positions. Actual tax lia-
bilities may differ materially from these estimates. The ef-
fect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax
rates is recognized in income in the period that includes
the enactment date. Valuation allowances are established
when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the
amounts expected to be realized. As of December 31,
2007, we have a deferred tax asset valuation allowance of
$2.3 million, primarily related to state tax net operating
loss carryforwards.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In September 2006, the FASB issued FAS No. 157, “Fair

Value Measurements” (“FAS No. 157”). FAS No. 157 de-
fines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair
value in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the U.S., and expands disclosures about fair
value measurements. The provisions of FAS No. 157 are
effective for the Company’s fiscal year beginning
January 1, 2008. We are currently evaluating the impact of
the provisions of FAS No. 157.

In February 2007, the FASB issued FAS No. 159, “Fair
Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabili-
ties—Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115”
(“FAS No. 159”). FAS No. 159 permits entities to choose
to measure many financial instruments and certain other
items at fair value. The provisions of FAS No. 159 are ef-
fective for us on January 1, 2008. We are currently evaluat-
ing the impact of the provisions of FAS No. 159.

In December 2007, the FASB issued FAS No. 141(R),
“Business Combinations” (“FAS No. 141(R)”). FAS
No. 141(R) replaces FSAS No. 141, Business Combina-
tions and improves the relevance, representational faithful-
ness and comparability of the information that a reporting
entity provides in its financial reports about a business
combination and its effects. The provisions of FAS
No. 141(R) are effective for us on January 1, 2009. The
impact of adopting FAS No. 141(R) will depend on the na-
ture, terms and size of business combinations completed
after the effective date.

In December 2007, the FASB issued FAS No. 160, “Non-
controlling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements”
(“FAS No. 160”). FAS No 160 amends Accounting Re-
search Bulletin No. 51, Consolidated Financial Statements,
and improves the relevance, comparability, and trans-
parency of the financial information that a reporting entity
provides in its consolidated financial statements for those
entities that have an outstanding noncontrolling interest in
one or more subsidiaries or that deconsolidate a subsidiary.
The provisions of FAS No. 160 are effective for us on
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January 1, 2009. Earlier adoption is prohibited. The adop-
tion of FAS No. 160 is not anticipated to have a material
impact on our financial position and results of operations.

In December 2007, the SEC issued Staff Accounting
Bulletin No. 110 (“SAB 110”) which extended the contin-
ued use of the simplified method for estimating lives of
stock options and SARs. We are continuing to use the sim-
plified method in accounting for our stock-based compen-
sation costs.

Related Party Transactions
In March 2005, we paid $3.2 million to Lehman Broth-

ers, which previously controlled more than 50% of our out-
standing common stock, for previously accrued advisory
fees relating to the 2004 Refinancing Transactions. In
May 2005, Lehman Brothers paid $0.3 million for previ-
ously accrued costs we incurred in conjunction with the
secondary public offering that occurred in December 2004.
In June 2005, as part of a secondary stock offering, we in-
curred $0.1 million in expenses that were reimbursed by
Lehman Brothers in October 2005.

Forward Looking Statements
“Forward looking statements,” as defined by the Private

Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, used in this re-
port, including without limitation our “outlook,” “guid-
ance,” expectations,” “beliefs,” “plans,” “indications,”
“estimates,” “anticipations,” and their variants, are based
upon available information and upon assumptions that the
Company believes are reasonable; however, these forward
looking statements involve certain risks and uncertainties,
including those set forth in Item 1A, “Risk Factors”, and
should not be considered indicative of actual results that
the Company may achieve in the future. Specifically, is-
sues concerning foreign currency exchange rates, the cost
to the Company of commodities in general, and of steel in
particular, the anticipated level of applicable interest rates,
tax rates, discount rates and rates of return and the antici-
pated effects of discontinued operations involve estimates
and assumptions. To the extent that these, or any other such
assumptions, are not realized going forward, or other un-
foreseen factors arise, actual results for the periods subse-
quent to the date of this report may differ materially.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES
ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market Risk
We are exposed to market risk from changes in interest

rates, foreign currency exchange rates and commodity
prices. We manage our exposure to these market risks
through our regular operating and financing activities, and,
when deemed appropriate, through the use of derivatives.
When utilized, derivatives are used as risk management

tools and not for trading or speculative purposes. See “In-
terest Rate Risk and Commodity Price Risk” below for dis-
cussion of our expectations regarding future use of interest
rate and commodity price derivatives.

Interest Rate Risk. We manage our ratio of fixed to vari-
able rate debt with the objective of achieving a mix that
management believes is appropriate. We have, on occasion,
entered into interest rate swap agreements to exchange
fixed and variable interest rates based on agreed upon no-
tional amounts and we have entered into interest rate lock
contracts to hedge the interest rate of an anticipated debt
issue. A hypothetical 10% increase in interest rates would
decrease the fair value of our fixed rate long-term debt
outstanding by $5.6 million. A hypothetical 100 basis point
increase in the interest rates on our variable rate long-term
debt for the duration of one year would have increased in-
terest expense by approximately $1.8 million in 2007. At
December 31, 2007 and 2006, no derivative financial in-
struments were outstanding to hedge interest rate risk on
debt. Additionally, the interest rates available in certain ju-
risdictions in which we hold excess cash may vary, thereby
affecting the return we earn on cash equivalent invest-
ments. At December 31, 2007 we had derivative financial
instruments outstanding representing variable-to-fixed in-
terest rate swaps on cash equivalents in Brazil to protect
the return on those investments. These contracts were not
designated as hedging instruments. At December 31, 2006
no derivative financial instruments were outstanding re-
lated to interest rate risk on investments.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk. Approximately 35% of our
sales and 50% of our operating costs and expenses were
transacted in foreign currencies in 2007. As a result, fluc-
tuations in exchange rates impact the amount of our re-
ported sales and operating income. Historically, our
principal exposures have been related to local currency op-
erating costs and expenses in Canada and Brazil, and local
currency sales and expenses in Europe. In 2007, we used
derivative instruments to protect the U.S. Dollar value of
cash equivalents held in Brazil. At December 31, 2007 we
had contracts outstanding to protect those investments
from fluctuations in foreign currency. We may, in the fu-
ture, decide to manage some of our exposure to currency
exchange rate fluctuations through derivative products. The
table below illustrates the estimated effect of a hypothetical
immediate 10% change in major currencies (defined for us
as the Euro, Canadian Dollar and Brazilian Real):

Effect of 10% Weaker U.S. Dollar
Cost of Operating

(Amounts in thousands) Sales Sales Income

Euro $ 4,311 $ (1,592) $ 1,728
Canadian Dollar 1,313 (6,936) (5,988)
Brazilian Real – (1,946) (2,310)
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Commodity Price Risk. We secure raw materials through
purchasing functions at each of our manufacturing loca-
tions. These functions are staffed by professionals who de-
termine the sourcing of materials by assessing quality,
availability, price and service of potential vendors. When
possible, multiple vendors are utilized to ensure competi-
tive prices and to minimize risk of lack of availability of
materials. Some of these raw materials are subject to price
volatility over time. We have not hedged against the price
volatility of any raw materials by using any derivative in-
struments during 2007, 2006 or 2005.

Raw material price volatility has not had a significant
impact on our results in recent years, with the exception of
steel pricing, where prices rose sharply in 2004 and 2005,
declined somewhat in 2006 and rose somewhat in 2007.
We purchased approximately $63.4 million of steel in
2007, our largest sourced commodity. A hypothetical im-
mediate 10% change in the price of steel would have had
an estimated $6.3 million effect on pre-tax income in
2007. We utilize multiple suppliers to purchase steel. We
estimate the impact of price changes on our cost of pur-
chased steel would have been a decrease of $1.3 million
from 2005 to 2006, followed by an increase of $1.0 million
from 2006 to 2007. Partially to offset the net cost increase,
some selling prices to our customers have been increased.
We source many of our outdoor care products from Asia
through brokers, and we anticipate expanding this practice
in the future. For example, we believe that we can source
certain components for gear-related products at a lower
cost from international locations. Historically, we have not
incurred any significant issues in sourcing internationally,
in part due to the fact that there are multiple suppliers for
each of the products we purchase.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Management of Blount International, Inc. is responsible
for the information and representations contained in this
report. The financial statements have been prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.
Reasonable judgments and estimates have been made
where necessary. Other financial information in this report
is consistent with these financial statements.

Our accounting systems include controls designed to
reasonably assure that assets are safeguarded from unau-
thorized use or disposition and that provide for the prepa-
ration of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles. These systems are supple-
mented by the selection and training of qualified financial
personnel and an organizational structure providing for ap-
propriate segregation of duties.

Four directors of the Company, who are not members of
management, serve as the Audit Committee of the Board
of Directors and are the principal means through which the
Board discharges its financial reporting responsibility. The
Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment of the
independent registered public accounting firm and reviews
with the independent registered public accounting firm,
management and the internal auditors, the scope and the
results of the annual audit, the effectiveness of our internal
controls over financial reporting, disclosure controls and
procedures and other matters relating to financial reporting
and the financial affairs of Blount International, Inc. as
they deem appropriate. The independent registered public
accounting firm and the internal auditors have full access
to the Committee, with and without the presence of man-
agement, to discuss any appropriate matters.
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Management’s Report on Internal Controls Over Financial
Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and main-
taining adequate internal control over financial reporting,
as such term is defined in Securities Exchange Act
Rules 13a -15(f). Under the supervision and with the par-
ticipation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finan-
cial Officer, our management conducted an evaluation of
the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting based upon the criteria set forth in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.
Based on that evaluation, our management concluded that
our internal control over financial reporting was effective
as of December 31, 2007.

Internal control over financial reporting cannot provide
absolute assurance of achieving financial reporting objec-
tives because of their inherent limitations. Internal control
over financial reporting is a process that involves human
diligence and compliance and is subject to lapses in judg-
ment and breakdowns resulting from human failures. Internal
control over financial reporting also can be circumvented by
collusion or improper management override. Because of
such limitations, there is a risk that material misstatements
may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis by inter-
nal control over financial reporting. However, these inher-
ent limitations are known features of the financial reporting
process. Therefore, it is possible to design into the process
safeguards to reduce, though not eliminate, this risk.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered
public accounting firm that has audited the consolidated
financial statements, has also audited the effectiveness of
our internal control over financial reporting as of Decem-
ber 31, 2007 as stated in their report which appears herein.

/s/ James S. Osterman /s/ Calvin E. Jenness

James S. Osterman Calvin E. Jenness
Chairman and Senior Vice President and
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Blount
International, Inc.:

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
listed in the index appearing under Item 15(a)(1) present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Blount International Inc. and its subsidiaries at Decem-
ber 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, and the results of
their operations and their cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2007 in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial
statement schedules listed in the index appearing under
Item 15(a)(2) present fairly, in all material respects, the in-
formation set forth therein when read in conjunction with
the related consolidated financial statements. Also in our
opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects,
effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO). The Company’s management is responsible for
these financial statements and financial statement sched-
ules, for maintaining effective internal control over finan-
cial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting, included in the ac-
companying Management’s Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express opin-
ions on these financial statements, on the financial state-
ment schedules, and on the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our integrated audits. We con-
ducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement and
whether effective internal control over financial reporting
was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the
financial statements included examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements, assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, and
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our
audit of internal control over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effec-
tiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our
audits also included performing such other procedures as
we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.
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As discussed in Note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Company changed the manner in which it
accounts for stock-based compensation in 2006. As discussed
in Notes 9 and 10 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Company changed the manner in which it accounts for de-
fined benefit pension and other post-retirement benefit plans
as of December 31, 2006. As discussed in Note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Company changed
the manner in which it accounts for uncertain tax positions
as of January 1, 2007.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s
internal control over financial reporting includes those poli-
cies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly re-
flect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transac-
tions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of fi-
nancial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with au-
thorizations of management and directors of the company;
and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or dis-
position of the company’s assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over
financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstate-
ments. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness
to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or proce-
dures may deteriorate.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Portland, Oregon
March 12, 2008
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Blount International, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in thousands, except per share data) 2007 2006 2005

Sales $ 515,535 $ 487,494 $ 478,829
Cost of sales 340,578 313,815 297,747

Gross profit 174,957 173,679 181,082
Selling, general and administrative expenses 94,257 89,472 89,454
Retirement plan redesign – 3,747 –

Operating income 80,700 80,460 91,628
Interest income 1,360 378 622
Interest expense (33,066) (35,782) (37,329)
Other income (expense), net (821) 1,335 (963)

Income from continuing operations before income taxes 48,173 46,391 53,958
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 16,030 13,746 (34,256)

Income from continuing operations 32,143 32,645 88,214

Discontinued operations:
Income before taxes from discontinued operations 25,794 20,055 29,319
Income tax provision 15,080 10,154 10,918

Income from discontinued operations 10,714 9,901 18,401

Net income $ 42,857 $ 42,546 $ 106,615

Basic income per share:
Continuing operations $ 0.68 $ 0.69 $ 1.91
Discontinued operations 0.23 0.21 0.40
Net income $ 0.91 $ 0.90 $ 2.31

Diluted income per share:
Continuing operations $ 0.67 $ 0.68 $ 1.86
Discontinued operations 0.22 0.21 0.38
Net income $ 0.89 $ 0.89 $ 2.24

Weighted average shares used in per share calculation:
Basic 47,280 47,145 46,094
Diluted 48,078 47,868 47,535

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
Blount International, Inc. and Subsidiaries

December 31,
(Amounts in thousands, except share and per share data) 2007 2006

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 57,589 $ 27,636
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $2,181 and $2,545 respectively 67,818 82,748
Inventories, net 70,273 77,833
Deferred income taxes 5,536 20,122
Other current assets 16,393 8,342

Total current assets 217,609 216,681

Property, plant and equipment, net 89,729 99,665
Goodwill 48,984 71,892
Deferred financing costs 10,698 14,574
Deferred income taxes 14,849 17,318
Assets held for sale – 2,700
Other assets 30,080 7,636

Total Assets $ 411,949 $ 430,466

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Deficit
Current liabilities:

Current maturities of long-term debt $ 1,242 $ 1,500
Accounts payable 29,799 34,982
Accrued expenses 57,447 62,140
Deferred income taxes 533 197

Total current liabilities 89,021 98,819

Long-term debt, excluding current maturities 295,758 349,375
Deferred income taxes – 791
Employee benefit obligations 48,948 71,724
Other liabilities 32,368 15,048

Total liabilities 466,095 535,757

Commitments and contingent liabilities
Stockholders’ equity (deficit):

Common stock: par value $0.01 per share, 100,000,000 shares authorized,
47,291,647 and 47,242,925 outstanding, respectively 473 472

Capital in excess of par value of stock 575,595 571,683
Accumulated deficit (618,147) (661,004)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (12,067) (16,442)

Total stockholders’ (deficit) (54,146) (105,291)

Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Deficit $ 411,949 $ 430,466

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Blount International, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Cash flows from operating activities:
Income from continuing operations $ 32,143 $ 32,645 $ 88,214
Adjustments to reconcile income from continuing operations to net 
cash provided by operating activities:

Early extinguishment of debt 625 1 2,994
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 17,641 15,058 13,184
Amortization, stock compensation and other non-cash charges 7,174 9,536 3,527
Excess tax benefit from share-based compensation (114) (747) –
Deferred income taxes 11,059 13,025 (35,254)
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant, and equipment 675 (774) (352)
Changes in assets and liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 3,621 1,526 (17,247)
(Increase) decrease in inventories (13,331) 2,940 (4,713)
(Increase) decrease in other assets (3,635) (3,720) (4,861)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 4,696 2,637 1,074
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses (7,445) (7,022) (10,293)
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities (16,559) (9,434) (6,451)

Discontinued operations (5,209) 4,345 35,290

Net cash provided by operating activities 31,341 60,016 65,112

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 2,309 1,244 382
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (18,517) (21,653) (17,307)
Discontinued operations 69,071 30,900 (2,022)

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 52,863 10,491 (18,947)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Net borrowings (repayments) under revolving credit facility (27,000) 27,000 –
Repayment of term debt principal (26,875) (83,848) (86,488)
Issuance costs related to debt (700) (700) (2,554)
Issuance costs related to stock – – (1,425)
Proceeds from issuance of stock – – 6,123
Purchase of treasury stock – – (6,123)
Excess tax benefit from share-based compensation 114 747 –
Proceeds from exercise of stock options and warrants 210 993 8,669

Net cash used in financing activities (54,251) (55,808) (81,798)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 29,953 14,699 (35,633)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 27,636 12,937 48,570

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 57,589 $ 27,636 $ 12,937

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL, INC. 33

Merrill Corp - Blount International_ Inc 10-K FYE 12-31-2007 [Enhanced Desktop]  | jgoetz | 25-Mar-08 16:16 | 08-2371-1.ca | Sequence: 4
CHKSUM    Content: 31020    Layout: 29475    Graphics: No Graphics CLEAN

JOB: 08-2371-1    CYCLE#;BL#: 6; 0            TRIM: 8.25" x 10.75"    COMPOSITE
COLORS: Black, ~note-color 2    GRAPHICS: none    V1.5



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Blount International, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Accumulated 
Capital in Other

Shares Common Excess Accumulated Comprehensive 
(Amounts in thousands) (in 000’s) Stock of Par Deficit Income (Loss) Total

Balance December 31, 2004 44,970 $ 450 $ 553,640 $ (810,165) $ (79) $ (256,154)
Net income – – – 106,615 – 106,615
Other comprehensive income (loss):

Foreign currency translation adjustment – – – – (2,609) (2,609)
Unrealized losses – – – – (70) (70)
Minimum pension liability adjustment – – – – (6,041) (6,041)

Comprehensive income, net – – – – – 97,895
Issuance of common stock 382 4 6,119 – – 6,123
Purchase of treasury stock (382) (4) (6,119) – – (6,123)
Exercise of stock options 1,034 10 12,984 – – 12,994
Exercise of stock warrants 1,000 10 – – – 10
Stock compensation expense – – 68 – – 68

Balance December 31, 2005 47,004 470 566,692 (703,550) (8,799) (145,187)

Net income – – – 42,546 – 42,546
Other comprehensive income (loss):

Foreign currency translation adjustment – – – – 1,682 1,682
Unrealized losses – – – – (27) (27)
Minimum pension liability adjustment – – – – 2,957 2,957

Comprehensive income, net – – – – – 47,158
Cumulative effect of adopting FAS No. 158 – – – – (12,255) (12,255)
Exercise of stock options 239 2 1,738 – – 1,740
Stock compensation expense – – 3,253 – – 3,253

Balance December 31, 2006 47,243 472 571,683 (661,004) (16,442) (105,291)

Net income – – – 42,857 – 42,857
Other comprehensive income (loss):

Foreign currency translation adjustment – – – – 1,718 1,718
Unrealized gains – – – – 1,315 1,315
Pension liability adjustment – – – – 1,342 1,342

Comprehensive income, net – – – – – 47,232
Exercise of stock options 49 1 323 – – 324
Stock compensation expense – – 3,589 – – 3,589

Balance December 31, 2007 47,292 $ 473 $ 575,595 $ (618,147) $ (12,067) $ (54,146)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Blount International, Inc. and Subsidiaries

NOTE 1: BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business. Headquartered in Portland, Oregon, Blount In-
ternational, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) is a
manufacturer of equipment, accessories and replacement
parts to the global forestry, yard care and general contrac-
tor industries. The Company manufactures and markets
branded products in focused end markets, serving profes-
sional loggers, construction workers, homeowners, equip-
ment dealers and distributors and original equipment
manufacturers (“OEMs”). The Company’s products in-
clude cutting chain, guide bars, sprockets and accessories
for chainsaws, accessories for lawn and garden equipment,
concrete-cutting equipment and accessories, mobile equip-
ment rotational bearings, worm gear reducers and swing
drives. The Company maintains manufacturing facilities in
the U.S., Canada, Brazil and The People’s Republic of
China.

Basis of Presentation. In the opinion of management, the
consolidated financial statements contain all adjustments
(consisting of only normal recurring adjustments) neces-
sary to present fairly the financial position at Decem-
ber 31, 2007 and 2006, and the results of operations and
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2007.

Consolidation. The consolidated financial statements in-
clude the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries and
are prepared in conformity with accounting principles gen-
erally accepted in the United States of America. All signif-
icant intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated.

Foreign Currency. For foreign subsidiaries whose opera-
tions are principally conducted in U.S. Dollars, monetary
assets and liabilities are translated into U.S. Dollars at the
current exchange rate, while other assets (principally prop-
erty, plant and equipment and inventories) and related
costs and expenses are generally translated at historic ex-
change rates. Sales and other costs and expenses are trans-
lated at the average exchange rate for the period and the
resulting foreign exchange adjustments are recognized in
income. Assets and liabilities of the remaining foreign op-
erations are translated to U.S. Dollars at the current ex-
change rate and their statements of income are translated at
the average exchange rate for the period. Gains and losses
resulting from translation of the financial statements of
these operations are reflected as “other comprehensive in-
come” in stockholders’ equity (deficit). Foreign exchange
adjustments to pretax income were not material in 2007,
2006 and 2005.

Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements
in conformity with generally accepted accounting princi-
ples requires management to make estimates and assump-
tions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities
and the components of equity and the disclosure of contin-
gent assets and liabilities at the dates of the financial state-
ments, as well as the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting periods. Estimates are used
when accounting for the allowance for doubtful accounts,
inventory obsolescence, goodwill and other long-lived as-
sets, product warranties, casualty insurance costs, product
liability reserves and related expenses, other legal proceed-
ings, employee benefit plans, income taxes and deferred
tax assets and liabilities, discontinued operations and con-
tingencies. It is reasonably possible that actual results
could differ materially from those estimates and assump-
tions and significant changes to estimates could occur in
the near term.

Cash and Cash Equivalents. The Company considers cash
equivalents to be all highly liquid temporary cash invest-
ments that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and present minimal risk of changes in value because
of changes in interest rates.

Inventories. Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or
market. The Company determines the cost of most raw ma-
terials, work in process and finished goods inventories by
the first in, first out (“FIFO”) or average cost methods.
The Company writes down its inventories for estimated ob-
solete or unmarketable inventory equal to the difference
between the cost of inventory and the estimated market
value based upon assumptions about future demand and
market conditions.

Property, Plant and Equipment. Property, plant and equip-
ment is stated at cost and is depreciated on the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the individual as-
sets. The principal ranges of estimated useful lives for de-
preciation purposes are as follows: buildings and
improvements: 10 to 45 years; machinery and equipment:
3 to 10 years; furniture, fixtures and office equipment: 3 to
10 years; software: 3 to 5 years; and transportation equip-
ment: 3 to 15 years. Gains or losses on disposal are re-
flected in income. Property, plant and equipment under
capital lease is capitalized with the related obligations
stated at the principal portion of future lease payments.

Interest cost incurred during the period of construction
of plant and equipment is capitalized. No material amounts
of interest were capitalized on plant and equipment during
the three years ended December 31, 2007.

Goodwill. The Company accounts for goodwill under
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“FAS”)
No. 142, “Goodwill and other Intangible Assets” (“FAS
No. 142”). Under the provisions of FAS No. 142, the Com-
pany performs an annual review for impairment at the
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reporting unit level. The Company also performs an im-
pairment analysis whenever circumstances indicate that an
impairment may have occurred. The impairment tests are
performed by determining the fair values of the reporting
units using a discounted cash flow model and comparing
those fair values to the carrying values of the reporting
units, including goodwill. If the fair value of a reporting
unit is less than its carrying value, the Company then allo-
cates the fair value of the unit to all the assets and liabili-
ties of that unit, including any unrecognized intangible
assets, as if the reporting unit’s fair value was the price to
acquire the reporting unit. The excess of the fair value of
the reporting unit over the amounts assigned to its assets
and liabilities is the implied fair value of the goodwill. If
the carrying amount of the reporting unit’s goodwill ex-
ceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill, an impair-
ment loss is recognized in an amount equal to that excess.
Events or changes in circumstances may occur that could
create underperformance relative to projected future cash
flows that would create future impairments. No goodwill
impairments have been recognized in 2007, 2006 or 2005.

Deferred Financing Costs. The Company capitalizes costs
incurred in connection with borrowings or establishment
of credit facilities. These costs are amortized as an adjust-
ment to interest expense over the life of the borrowing or
life of the credit facility using the straight line method. In
the case of early debt principal repayments, the Company
adjusts the value of the corresponding deferred financing
costs with a charge to other expense, and similarly adjusts
the future amortization expense.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets. The Company evaluates
the carrying value of long-lived assets to be held and used,
including finite lived intangible assets, whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may not be recoverable. The carrying value of a long-lived
asset is considered impaired when the total projected
undiscounted cash flows from such asset are separately
identifiable and are less than its carrying value. In that
event, a loss is recognized based on the amount by which
the carrying value exceeds the fair value of the long-lived
asset. Fair value is determined primarily using the pro-
jected cash flows discounted at a rate commensurate with
the risk involved. Losses on long-lived assets to be dis-
posed of are determined in a similar manner, except that
fair values are reduced for disposal costs. During 2006,
the Company recognized an impairment charge of $1.5
million on property, plant and equipment formerly used by
its discontinued Lawnmower segment. Also in 2006, the
Company recognized an impairment charge of $0.8 mil-
lion on property, plant and equipment in Menominee,
Michigan formerly used by its Industrial and Power
Equipment Segment.

Income Taxes. In accordance with FAS No. 109, deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax
consequences attributable to differences between the finan-
cial statement carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
and their respective tax bases. Included in recorded tax lia-
bilities are estimated amounts related to uncertain tax posi-
tions. Actual tax liabilities may differ materially from these
estimates. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income
in the years in which those temporary differences are ex-
pected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred
tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recog-
nized in income in the period that includes the enactment
date. Valuation allowances are established when necessary
to reduce deferred tax assets to the amounts expected to be
realized. The American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 includes
a deduction of up to 9 percent (when fully phased-in) of
“qualified production activities income,” as defined in the
new law and subject to certain limitations. The benefit of
this new deduction, if any, will be accounted for as a spe-
cial deduction when realized in accordance with Financial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Staff Position
No. 109-1.

Effective January 1, 2007, the Company adopted Finan-
cial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation
No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes”
(“FIN No. 48”). There was no material adjustment to the
net liability for uncertain tax positions as a result of the
adoption of FIN No. 48 on January 1, 2007. However, un-
certain tax positions that were previously netted on the bal-
ance sheet are reported separately since January 1, 2007.
The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to
uncertain tax positions as income tax expense. FIN No. 48
prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attrib-
ute for the financial statement recognition and measure-
ment of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a
tax return. It also provides guidance on de-recognition,
classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim
periods, disclosure and transition.

Product Liability. The Company monitors claims that relate
to the alleged malfunction or defects of its products that
may result in an injury to the equipment operator or others.
The Company records an accrued liability and charge to
cost of sales for its estimated obligation as claims are in-
curred and evaluated. The accrual may increase or decrease
as additional information regarding claims is developed.

Insurance Accruals. It is the Company’s policy to retain a
portion of expected losses related to general and product
liability, workers’ compensation and vehicle liability
losses through retentions or deductibles under its risk
management and insurance programs. Provisions for
losses expected under these programs are recorded based
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on estimates of the undiscounted aggregate liabilities for
claims incurred.

Warranty. The Company offers certain warranties with
the sale of its products. An estimate of warranty costs is
recognized at the time the related revenue is recognized
and the warranty obligation is recorded as a charge to cost
of sales and as a liability on the balance sheet. Warranty
cost is estimated using historical customer claims, supplier
performance and new product performance. Should a
change in trend occur in customer claims or supplier and
new product performance, an increase or decrease in the
warranty liability may be necessary.

Guarantees. The Company accounts for the initial recog-
nition and measurement of guarantees in accordance with
FASB Interpretation No. 45 “Guarantor’s Accounting and
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indi-
rect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others” (“FIN 45”).
Under the provisions of FIN 45, at the time a guarantee is
issued, the Company recognizes an initial liability for the
fair value or market value of the obligation it assumes.

Derivative Financial Instruments. The Company accounts for
derivative financial instruments in accordance with FAS
No. 133, as amended by FAS 138 and FAS 149, “Account-
ing for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”.
The Company’s earnings and cash flows are subject to
fluctuations due to changes in foreign currency exchange
rates, interest rates and commodity prices. The Company’s
risk management policy allows for the use of derivative fi-
nancial instruments to manage foreign currency exchange
rate, interest rate, and commodity price exposures pru-
dently. The policy specifies that derivatives are not to be
used for speculative purposes. Derivatives that are used are
primarily foreign currency and interest rate swaps. All de-
rivatives are recognized on the Consolidated Balance
Sheets at their fair value. All derivative contracts held at
December 31, 2007 were non-hedging instruments (see
also Note 17). There were no material derivative contracts
held as of December 31, 2006. Changes in the fair value of
non-hedging derivative instruments are reported in current
earnings. Cash flows from non-hedging derivative finan-
cial instruments are included in the investing category on
the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.

Revenue Recognition. Revenue is recognized when persua-
sive evidence that a sales arrangement exists, title and risk
of loss have passed, the price to the customer is fixed or
determinable and collectibility is reasonably assured,
which has historically been upon the date of shipment of
product for the majority of the Company’s sales transac-
tions. There are an insignificant amount of shipments with
FOB destination terms, for which revenue is not recog-
nized until delivery has occurred.

Shipping and Handling Costs. The Company incurs ex-
penses for the shipment of goods to customers. These

expenses are recognized in the period in which they occur
and are classified as gross revenues if billed and cost of
goods sold if incurred by the Company in accordance with
the Emerging Issues Task Force’s Issue (EITF) 00-10, “Ac-
counting for Shipping and Handling Fees and Costs”.

Sales Incentives. The Company provides various sales in-
centives to customers in the form of coupons, rebates, dis-
counts, free product and advertising allowances. The
estimated cost of such expenses is recorded at the time of
revenue recognition and recorded as a reduction to rev-
enue, with the exception that free product is recorded as
cost of sales, in accordance with Emerging Issues Task
Force (“EITF”) 01-9, “Accounting for Consideration Given
by a Vendor to a Customer”.

Advertising. Advertising costs are expensed as incurred,
except for cooperative advertising, which is accrued over
the period the revenues are recognized, and sales materials,
such as brochures and catalogs, which are accounted for as
prepaid supplies and expensed over the period used. Ad-
vertising costs from continuing operations were $5.0 mil-
lion, $4.7 million and $4.5 million for 2007, 2006 and
2005, respectively.

Research and Development. Expenditures for research and
development are expensed as incurred and include costs of
direct labor, indirect labor, materials and outside services.
These costs were $6.5 million, $6.6 million and $6.2 mil-
lion for 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.

Reclassifications. Certain amounts in the prior years’ fi-
nancial statements have been reclassified to conform to the
current year presentation. Such reclassifications had no
impact on previously reported net income or net stockhold-
ers’ equity (deficit).

NOTE 2: DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Discontinued Forestry Division. On November 5, 2007, we
sold our Forestry Division, which constituted the majority
of our Industrial and Power Equipment segment, to Cater-
pillar Forest Products Inc., a subsidiary of Caterpillar Inc.,
for gross proceeds of $79.1 million. Under the terms of the
related purchase agreement, $8.8 million of the gross pro-
ceeds are initially held in escrow for up to three years from
the transaction date. We recognized a pretax gain of $26.0
million net of related transaction expenses on the sale in
2007. This division accounted for 32% of our 2005 consol-
idated sales, 26% of our 2006 consolidated sales and 21%
of our consolidated sales for the first nine months of 2007.
The Forestry Division is reported as discontinued opera-
tions for all periods presented. This division was headquar-
tered in Zebulon, North Carolina and manufactured and
marketed timber harvesting and handling equipment and
industrial tractors and loaders. The division had manufac-
turing facilities in Owatonna, Minnesota; Prentice,
Wisconsin; and Söderhamn, Sweden. The sale included the
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disposition of the Forestry Division’s recorded goodwill in
the amount of $22.9 million. The Company retained cer-
tain liabilities related to the business, as well as an idle
manufacturing facility located in Menominee, Michigan.
In December 2007, the land and building in Menominee,
Michigan were sold for net cash proceeds of $0.5 million.

Discontinued Lawnmower Segment. On July 27, 2006, the
Company sold certain of the assets and liabilities of Dixon
Industries, Inc. (“Dixon”) to Husqvarna Professional Out-
door Products, Inc. (“Husqvarna”), a wholly-owned sub-
sidiary of Husqvarna AB (Sweden). Dixon had previously
been reported as the Company’s Lawnmower Segment. The
Company received gross proceeds of $33.1 million and
recognized a pretax gain of $17.4 million net of related
transaction expenses on the sale in 2006. The Lawnmower
Segment is reported as discontinued operations for all peri-
ods presented. Dixon was located in Coffeyville, Kansas,
and manufactured zero-turn radius riding lawnmowers and
related attachments. The sale included the disposition of
Dixon’s recorded goodwill in the amount of $5.0 million.
Certain liabilities of Dixon, as well as the land, building,
building improvements, certain machinery and equipment
and various other assets related to its Coffeyville, Kansas
facility, were retained by the Company by merger of Dixon
with and into 4520 Corp. Inc., an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. The net property, plant and
equipment associated with the discontinued operations of
Dixon were carried at their estimated fair value and in-
cluded in assets held for sale in the consolidated balance
sheet as of December 31, 2006. The land and building
were sold in September 2007 for net cash proceeds of $1.5
million.

Discontinued operations are summarized as follows:

December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Sales $ 111,934 $ 196,826 $ 281,868
Operating income (loss) (195) 2,689 29,319
Gain on disposition of 
net assets 25,989 17,366 –

Income before taxes from 
discontinued operations 25,794 20,055 29,319

Income tax provision 15,080 10,154 10,918

Income from discontinued 
operations $ 10,714 $ 9,901 $ 18,401

Included in the operating loss for 2007 are charges total-
ing $4.5 million for employee severance, employee bene-
fits, transition and closure costs. Included in the operating
income for 2006 are charges totaling $8.0 million for em-
ployee severance and benefits costs, impairment of assets
and closure costs.

NOTE 3: INVENTORIES

Inventories consisted of the following:

December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2007 2006

Raw materials and supplies $ 9,297 $ 24,213
Work in progress 14,701 14,034
Finished Goods 46,275 39,586

Total inventories $ 70,273 $ 77,833

As discussed in Note 2, the Company sold its Forestry
Division business, including all related inventory, on No-
vember 5, 2007. The December 31, 2006 amounts in the
preceding table include $20.9 million of inventories related
to this discontinued operation.

NOTE 4: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment consisted of the following:

December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2007 2006

Land $ 4,882 $ 5,399
Buildings and improvements 51,251 62,090
Machinery and equipment 186,076 187,735
Furniture, fixtures and office 
equipment 28,419 35,412

Transportation equipment 662 816
Construction in progress 5,491 13,900
Accumulated depreciation (187,052) (205,687)

Total property, plant and 
equipment, net $ 89,729 $ 99,665

As discussed in Note 2, the Company sold its Forestry
Division business, including all related property, plant and
equipment, on November 5, 2007. The December 31, 2006
amounts in the preceding table include $10.6 million of
property, plant and equipment, net, related to this discon-
tinued operation.

NOTE 5: DEFERRED FINANCING COSTS

Deferred financing costs represent costs incurred in con-
junction with the Company’s debt financing activities and
are amortized over the term of the related debt instruments.
Deferred financing costs and the related amortization ex-
pense are adjusted when any pre-payments of principal are
made to the related outstanding term loan. During the year
ended December 31, 2007, the following occurred (see
also note 7):

(Amounts in thousands)

Balance at December 31, 2006 $ 14,574
Financing costs deferred 700
Write off during period due to prepayments 
of principal (625)

Amortization during period (3,951)

Balance at December 31, 2007 $ 10,698
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Scheduled amortization, assuming no further prepay-
ments of principal, is as follows:

Estimated
Annual

(Amounts in thousands) Amortization

2008 $ 4,019
2009 3,262
2010 1,729
2011 1,067
2012 and beyond 621

Total amortization $ 10,698

NOTE 6: ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses consisted of the following:

December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2007 2006

Salaries, wages and related withholdings $ 26,455 $ 20,604
Accrued interest 7,205 8,539
Employee benefits 4,467 4,535
Product liability 3,506 3,116
Accrued customer incentives 2,277 7,166
Accrued taxes 1,550 2,877
Warranty reserve 160 3,269
Other 11,827 12,034

Total accrued expenses $ 57,447 $ 62,140

NOTE 7: DEBT AND FINANCING AGREEMENTS

Long-term debt consisted of the following:

December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2007 2006

Revolving credit facility borrowings – $ 27,000
Term loans $ 122,000 148,875
87⁄8% Senior subordinated notes 175,000 175,000

Total debt 297,000 350,875
Less current maturities (1,242) (1,500)

Total long-term debt $ 295,758 $ 349,375

Minimum principal payments required are as follows:

(Amounts in thousands) Payments

2008 $ 1,242
2009 1,242
2010 119,516
2011 –
2012 175,000

Total debt $ 297,000

The weighted average interest rate on outstanding debt
as of December 31, 2007 was 8.11%. As of December 31,
2007 the Company did not have any material capital
leases.

87⁄8% Senior Subordinated Notes. The Company has one reg-
istered debt security, the 87⁄8% senior subordinated notes.
The interest rate on these notes is fixed until their maturity
on August 1, 2012. These notes are issued by Blount, Inc.

and are fully and unconditionally, jointly and severally,
guaranteed by the Company and all of its domestic sub-
sidiaries (“guarantor subsidiaries”) other than Blount, Inc.
All guarantor subsidiaries of these 87⁄8% senior subordi-
nated notes are 100% owned, directly or indirectly, by the
Company. While the Company and all of its domestic sub-
sidiaries guarantee these 87⁄8% senior subordinated notes,
none of Blount’s existing foreign subsidiaries (“non-
guarantor subsidiaries”) guarantee these notes. See also
Note 17.

Senior Credit Facilities. The Company, through its wholly-
owned subsidiary, Blount, Inc., first entered into a credit
agreement with General Electric Capital Corporation as
Agent on May 15, 2003. The agreement was amended and
restated on August 9, 2004, and has had several subsequent
amendments. The senior credit facilities consist of a term
loan facility and a revolving credit facility.

2006 Amendment to Credit Facilities. On March 23, 2006,
the Company amended certain terms of the senior credit
facilities. This amendment included the following changes:
� Maximum availability under the revolving credit facility

was increased from $100.0 million to $150.0 million;
� Interest rates were reduced by 0.75% for the term loans

and 1.00% for the revolving credit facility;
� Certain financial covenants were modified, including in-

creases to the amounts that may be paid for acquisitions,
dividends and repurchase of Company stock, as well as
modifications to certain financial ratio requirements;
and

� The Company incurred fees and third party costs of $0.7
million related to the amendment.

Immediately following the amendment, the Company com-
pleted the following transactions:

� $82.1 million was borrowed under the revolving credit
facility;

� The total principal balance of $4.6 million was paid off
on a Canadian term loan, and that loan was cancelled;
and

� $77.5 million in principal was paid against the term
loans, leaving a balance of $150.0 million outstanding.
2007 Amendment to Credit Facilities. On November 5, 2007,

the Company amended certain terms of the senior credit
facilities. No changes were made to the interest rates, prin-
cipal amounts, maturity dates or payment schedules of the
debt or to the availability of credit under the agreement.
This amendment included the following changes:
� The agreement was modified to allow the Company to

sell its Forestry Division on the same day as the effective
date of the amendment;
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� Certain covenants, terms and conditions were modified
in the credit agreement, including an increased al-
lowance for acquisitions, reduced reporting requirements
and a reduction in the required senior leverage ratio; and

� The Company incurred fees and third party costs of $0.7
million related to the amendment.
The revolving credit facility provides for total available

borrowings up to $150.0 million, reduced by outstanding
letters of credit and further restricted by a specific leverage
ratio and first lien credit facilities leverage ratio. As of De-
cember 31, 2007, the Company had the ability to borrow
an additional $140.9 million under the terms of the revolv-
ing credit agreement. The revolving credit facility bears in-
terest at the LIBOR rate plus 1.75%, or at the prime rate,
depending on the type of loan, and matures on August 9,
2009. Interest is payable monthly in arrears on any prime
rate borrowing and at the individual maturity dates for any
LIBOR-based borrowing. Any outstanding principal is due
in its entirety on the maturity date.

The term loan facility bears interest at the LIBOR rate
plus 1.75%, or at the prime rate, depending on the type of
loan, and matures on August 9, 2010. The term loan facil-
ity requires quarterly payments of $0.3 million, with a fi-
nal payment of $118.6 million due on the maturity date.
Once repaid, principal under the term loan facility may not
be re-borrowed by the Company.

The amended and restated senior credit facilities contain
financial covenant calculations relating to maximum capi-
tal expenditures, minimum fixed charge coverage ratio,
maximum leverage ratio and maximum first lien credit fa-
cilities leverage ratio. In addition, there are covenants re-
lating, among other categories, to investments, loans and
advances, indebtedness, and the sale of stock or assets. The
Company was in compliance with all debt covenants as of
December 31, 2007.

The amended and restated senior credit facilities may be
prepaid at any time. There can also be additional manda-
tory repayment requirements related to the sale of Com-
pany assets, the issuance of stock under certain
circumstances or upon the Company’s annual generation of
excess cash flow, as determined under the credit agreement.

Blount International, Inc. and all of its domestic sub-
sidiaries other than Blount, Inc. guarantee Blount, Inc.’s
obligations under the senior credit facilities. The obliga-
tions under the senior credit facilities are collateralized by
a first priority security interest in substantially all of the
assets of Blount, Inc. and its domestic subsidiaries, as well
as a pledge of all of Blount, Inc.’s capital stock held by
Blount International, Inc. and all of the stock of domestic
subsidiaries held by Blount, Inc. Blount, Inc. has also
pledged 65% of the stock of its non-domestic subsidiaries
as additional collateral.

NOTE 8: INCOME TAXES

The provision (benefit) for income taxes was as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Current
Federal $ 15,155 $ 1,609 $ 3,478
State 1,436 1,747 (2,671)
Foreign 1,511 7,520 11,109

Deferred
Federal 11,711 10,100 (30,622)
State 1,891 1,844 (5,653)
Foreign (594) 1,080 1,021

Provision (benefit)
for income taxes 31,110 23,900 (23,338)

The provision (benefit) is reported as follows:
Continuing operations 16,030 13,746 (34,256)
Discontinued operations 15,080 10,154 10,918

Provision (benefit) 
for income taxes $ 31,110 $ 23,900 $ (23,338)

The Company also recorded the following deferred tax
amounts directly to stockholders’ equity (deficit):

Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Pension liability
adjustment $ (2,896) $ 9,319 $ 1,338

Change in unrealized
losses/gains 785 91 101

Stock options exercised 114 747 4,335

Income from continuing operations before income taxes
was as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Income before income taxes:
Domestic $ 33,943 $ 13,481 $ 19,750
Foreign 14,230 32,910 34,208

Total $ 48,173 $ 46,391 $ 53,958

A reconciliation of the provision (benefit) for income
taxes from continuing operations to the amount computed
by applying the statutory federal income tax rate to income
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from continuing operations before income taxes was as
follows:

% of income (loss) before tax
2007 2006 2005

Statutory tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Impact of earnings of 
foreign operations (8.4) (6.1) (1.5)

Repatriation of foreign earnings 1.3 1.4 8.3
Federal and state research tax credits (0.2) (0.3) (4.1)
State income taxes, net of 
federal tax benefit 3.8 4.2 1.4

Permanent differences (0.9) (10.6) –
Change in estimated contingencies 2.3 7.6 0.4
Other 1.1 (0.5) (0.3)

Effective income tax rate 
before valuation allowance 34.0 30.7 39.2

Valuation allowance (0.7) (1.1) (102.7)

Effective income tax rate after 
valuation allowance 33.3% 29.6% (63.5)%

The effective income tax rate increased in 2007 to
33.3%, from 29.6% in 2006, primarily due to the discon-
tinued special deduction for U.S. export sales, partially off-
set by the domestic activities production deduction. The
effective income tax rate increased in 2006 to 29.6%, from
a negative 63.5% in 2005, primarily as a result of the re-
versal of a deferred tax asset valuation allowance in 2005,
partially offset by additional tax expense recognized on
repatriation of foreign earnings.

The components of deferred income tax assets (liabili-
ties) applicable to temporary differences at December 31,
2007 and 2006 are as follows:

December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2007 2006

Deferred tax assets:
Employee benefits and compensation $ 22,547 $ 27,608
Other accrued expenses 4,282 10,673
Net operating loss, capital loss 
and credit carryforwards 3,158 13,776

Foreign 2,138 291

Gross deferred tax assets 32,125 52,348
Less valuation allowance (2,318) (2,667)

Deferred tax assets net of 
valuation allowance 29,807 49,681

Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment 
and intangible asset basis differences (8,603) (13,067)

Foreign (533) (131)
Other (819) (31)

Total deferred tax liabilities (9,955) (13,229)

Net deferred tax asset $ 19,852 $ 36,452

In 2003, the Company recorded a valuation allowance
against its deferred tax assets in the U.S. In 2005, the

Company concluded that, except for a few specific de-
ferred tax assets, it was more likely than not that the Com-
pany would realize the majority of these deferred tax
assets. Factors supporting this change in expectations
included:
� The decrease in debt and interest expense resulting from

refinancing transactions completed in 2004,
� The 2005 early retirement of outstanding debt principal

resulting in further reductions in expected interest
expense,

� Estimated use of a significant amount of deferred tax as-
sets during 2005 resulting from increased U.S. taxable
income, and

� Expectations for continued U.S. taxable income over the
next several years.
Therefore, the Company reversed the majority of the val-

uation allowance as of December 31, 2005. The remaining
valuation allowances of $2.3 million and $2.7 million as of
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, pertain to cer-
tain tax credit and state NOL carryforwards, which are not
expected to be realized before they expire.

As of December 31, 2007, the Company had no remain-
ing U.S. NOL carryforwards but had state NOL carryfor-
wards estimated at $30.3 million that expire at various
dates from 2008 through 2024. Additionally, the Company
has a foreign tax credit carryforward of approximately
$1.7 million that expires in 2010. The Company also has
state research and other tax credit carryforwards of approx-
imately $0.2 million that expire at various dates from 2008
through 2021.

U.S. income taxes have not been provided on undistrib-
uted earnings of international subsidiaries. Management’s
intention is to reinvest these earnings indefinitely. As of
December 31, 2007, undistributed earnings of international
subsidiaries were $118.2 million. The American Jobs Cre-
ation Act of 2004, signed into law October 22, 2004 (the
“Jobs Creation Act”), included a one-time election to
deduct 85 percent of certain foreign earnings that are repa-
triated, as defined in the act. The Company repatriated
$24.9 million of its undistributed earnings of foreign sub-
sidiaries in 2005, under the provision of the Jobs Creation
Act, and recorded incremental income taxes of $2.0 mil-
lion on the dividend income recognized. Repatriation of
foreign earnings in 2007 and 2006 pertained to current
earnings of one foreign subsidiary.

The periods from 2001 through 2006 remain open for re-
view by the Internal Revenue Service. In 2005, the Com-
pany entered into a Bilateral Advance Pricing Agreement
(BAPA) negotiation with the Canada Revenue Agency
(“CRA”) and the Internal Revenue Service. This negotia-
tion, now expected to take an additional six to twelve
months to complete, is intended to eliminate taxation of
the same profits by both governments. The Company is
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pursuing the BAPA in order to bring certainty with respect
to transfer pricing between the U.S. and Canada. The
BAPA agreement will cover the years 2003 through 2008.
For this reason, the Company released its reserve for con-
tingency related to this matter in 2004.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of
unrecognized tax benefits are as follows:

(Amounts in thousands)

Balance at January 1, 2007 $ 27,264
Decreases for tax positions taken during a prior period (1,890)
Increases for tax positions taken during the 
current period 2,650

Settlements –
Statute of limitations expirations –

Balance at December 31, 2007 $ 28,024

Unrecognized tax benefits are included in other assets
and other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to
uncertain tax positions in income tax expense. As of Janu-
ary 1, 2007 and December 31, 2007, the Company had
recorded $2.8 million and $2.5 million of accrued interest
and penalties related to uncertain tax positions, respectively.

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits that
would affect the Company’s effective tax rate if recognized
is $12.0 million as of December 31, 2007 and $11.2 mil-
lion as of January 1, 2007. It is reasonably possible that
unrecognized tax benefits could change significantly dur-
ing 2008. The Company estimates that up to $0.8 million
of unrecognized tax benefits could reverse during 2008.

NOTE 9: RETIREMENT PLANS

Funded Defined Benefit Pension Plans
The Company sponsors defined benefit pension plans

covering substantially all of its employees in the U.S.,
Canada and Belgium. The changes in benefit obligations,
plan assets and funded status of these plans for the years
ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 were as follows:

Pension Benefits
(Amounts in thousands) 2007 2006

Change in benefit obligations:
Projected benefit obligations at 
beginning of year $ (177,699) $ (184,910)

Service cost (3,694) (6,545)
Interest cost (10,085) (10,017)
Actuarial gains (losses) (1,764) 683
Benefits and plan expenses paid 9,424 8,033
Effect of amendment to U.S. plan – 13,876
Divestitures (206) 1,181

Projected benefit obligations at 
end of year $ (184,024) $ (177,699)

Pension Benefits
(Amounts in thousands) 2007 2006

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at 
beginning of year $ 148,177 $ 121,485

Actual return on plan assets 18,478 16,310
Company contributions 19,618 18,415
Benefits and plan expenses paid (9,424) (8,033)

Fair value of plan assets at 
end of year 176,849 148,177

Net funded status at end of year $ (7,175) $ (29,522)

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets:
Non-current assets $ 2,284 –
Current liabilities – –
Non-current liabilities (9,459) $ (29,522)

Net liability recognized in 
consolidated balance sheets $ (7,175) $ (29,522)

The accumulated benefit obligations for the above de-
fined benefit pension plans at December 31, 2007 and 2006
totaled $163.4 million and $161.2 million, respectively.

The projected benefit payments for these plans over the
next ten years are estimated as follows:

Estimated
Benefit

(Amounts in thousands) Payments

2008 $ 8,872
2009 8,321
2010 8,978
2011 10,790
2012 10,373
2013 – 2017 62,573

Total estimated benefit payments $ 109,907

The Company expects to contribute approximately $3
million to $4 million to its funded pension plans in 2008.

Domestic Benefit Plans
The Company recorded pension curtailment charges of

$0.2 million and $0.3 million, respectively, in discontinued
operations in 2007 and 2006, representing the portion of
unamortized prior service cost related to the former em-
ployees of the discontinued operations.

As of December 31, 2006, the Company implemented a
redesign of its U.S. defined benefit pension plan and the
associated nonqualified plan. As of January 1, 2007, em-
ployees who currently participate in the plans ceased ac-
cruing benefits and new employees are not eligible to
participate. All retirement benefits accrued up to the time
of the freeze were preserved.

Accordingly, the Company recorded a pension curtail-
ment charge of $3.2 million in 2006 that represented the
immediate recognition of the unamortized prior service
cost for U.S. employees. The Company also incurred a
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total of approximately $0.5 million for related fees and
costs associated with the changes to its retirement plans.

Unfunded Supplemental Non-Qualified Plans
The Company sponsors various supplemental non-

qualified pension plans covering certain employees and
former employees in the U.S. A rabbi trust, whose assets
are not included in the table below, has been established to
fund a portion of these non-qualified benefits, as well as
certain other executive benefits. At December 31, 2007
and 2006, approximately $0.3 million and $1.1 million, re-
spectively, were held in this trust, and this amount is in-
cluded in other assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
The changes in benefit obligations, plan assets and funded
status of these plans for the years ended December 31,
2007 and 2006 were as follows:

Unfunded 
Retirement Plans

(Amounts in thousands) 2007 2006

Change in Benefit Obligations:
Projected benefit obligations at 
beginning of year $ (5,448) $ (6,655)

Service cost (67) (84)
Interest cost (310) (298)
Actuarial gains (losses) 47 917
Benefits and plan expenses paid 464 464
Effect of amendment to U.S. plan – 208

Projected benefit obligations at 
end of year (5,314) (5,448)

Net funded status at end of year $ (5,314) $ (5,448)

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets:
Current liabilities $ (450) $ (451)
Non-current liabilities (4,864) (4,997)

Net liability recognized in 
consolidated balance sheets $ (5,314) $ (5,448)

The Company accounts for its defined benefit pension
plans in accordance with FAS No. 87, “Employers’Ac-
counting for Pensions (“FAS No. 87”) and FAS No. 158,
“Employers Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and
Other Postretirement Plans” (“FAS No. 158”). FAS No. 158
was effective December 31, 2006 and requires the recogni-
tion of the funded status of the pension benefit plans in the
Company’s statement of financial position. The implemen-
tation of FAS No. 158 on December 31, 2006 resulted in
an $8.5 million charge to accumulated other comprehen-
sive income. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the net
obligation for the Company’s pension plans is included in
employee benefit obligations on the consolidated balance
sheets.

Periodic Benefit Costs and Other Comprehensive Income
The components of net periodic benefit cost and other

comprehensive income and the weighted average

assumptions used in accounting for funded and unfunded
pension benefits follow:

Pension Benefits
Year Ended December 31,

(Amounts in thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Components of net periodic benefit cost:
Service cost $ 3,761 $ 6,629 $ 5,812
Interest cost 10,395 10,315 9,540
Expected return on plan assets (13,297) (11,776) (9,580)
Amortization of actuarial losses 1,411 2,398 2,587
Amortization of prior 
service cost (10) 195 373

Net curtailment loss, including 
discontinued operations 206 3,570 –

Total net periodic 
benefit cost $ 2,466 $ 11,331 $ 8,732

Other changes in benefit obligations recognized in 
other comprehensive income:
Actuarial gains (losses) n/a n/a 7,428

Total net periodic benefit 
cost and other 
comprehensive income n/a n/a $16,160

Amount recognized in accumulated other 
comprehensive income:
Actuarial (gains) losses $ (5,909) $ 34,613 n/a
Prior service cost 10 (46) n/a

Total recognized in 
accumulated other 
comprehensive income $ (5,899) $ 34,567 n/a

Weighted average assumptions:
Discount rate used to 
determine net periodic 
benefit cost 5.7% 5.5% 5.9%

Discount rate used to 
determine year end 
benefit obligations 6.0% 5.7% 5.5%

Expected return on plan assets 8.5% 8.9% 8.9%
Rate of compensation increase 3.5% 3.5% 3.5%

The Company annually evaluates and selects the dis-
count rates to be used for its pension plans. Consideration
is given to relevant indices for high quality fixed rate debt
securities, as well as comparable rates for high quality cor-
porate bonds with terms comparable to the projected cash
flows for our respective plans, as of the measurement date.
The expected long-term rate of return on these assets was
chosen from the range of likely results of compound aver-
age annual returns based on the current investment poli-
cies. The expected return and volatility for each asset class
was based on historical equity, bond and cash returns over
a twenty year time horizon. While this approach gives ap-
propriate consideration to recent fund performance and
historical returns, the assumption is primarily a long-term,
prospective rate.
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The Company maintains target allocation percentages
among various asset classes based on investment policies
established for these plans. The target allocation is de-
signed to achieve long term objectives of return, while mit-
igating against downside risk and considering expected
cash flows. The weighted-average target allocation for
2007 is equity securities 62%, debt securities 37% and
other 1%. The weighted-average allocation for both 2006
and 2005 was as follows: equity securities 64%, debt secu-
rities 35% and other 1%.

The amounts in accumulated other comprehensive in-
come expected to be recognized as components of net peri-
odic benefit cost in 2007 are actuarial losses of $1.0
million and prior service costs of $6 thousand.

Defined Contribution Plan
The Company also sponsors a defined contribution

401(k) plan covering substantially all U.S. employees and
matches a portion of employee contributions. The expense
for the match was $2.6 million, $2.7 million and $2.7 mil-
lion in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

The Company’s defined contribution 401(k) plan was
amended in August, 2006 to provide an additional annual
Company contribution, effective January 1, 2007, of 3%,
4% or 5% of base compensation, depending upon the par-
ticipant’s years of service. The new contribution will be
made whether or not the employee contributes to the plan.
The first annual contribution, totaling $2.8 million, was
made in early 2008.

NOTE 10: OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Company sponsors various unfunded supplemental
retirement and post-retirement medical programs covering
many of its current and former employees. The changes in
benefit obligations, plan assets and funded status of these
plans for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006,
were as follows:

Other Post-Retirement
Benefits

(Amounts in thousands) 2007 2006

Change in benefit obligations:
Projected benefit obligations at 
beginning of year $ (33,805) $ (42,750)

Service cost (358) (376)
Interest cost (2,082) (1,840)
Participant contributions (1,295) (1,436)
Actuarial gains (losses) (5,019) 9,036
Benefits and plan expenses paid 4,184 3,561
Divestitures 2,399 –

Projected benefit obligations at 
end of year $ (35,976) $ (33,805)

Other Post-Retirement
Benefits

(Amounts in thousands) 2007 2006

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at 
beginning of year $ 111 $ 309

Actual return on plan assets 1 8
Company contributions 2,776 1,919
Participant contributions 1,295 1,436
Benefits and plan expenses paid (4,183) (3,561)

Fair value of plan assets at 
end of year – 111

Net funded status at end of year $ (35,976) $ (33,694)

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets:
Current liabilities $ (2,779) $ (2,225)
Non-current liabilities (33,197) (31,469)

Net liability recognized in 
consolidated balance sheets $ (35,976) $ (33,694)

The projected benefit payments for these plans, net of
the estimated Medicare Part D subsidy expected to be re-
ceived by the Company, over the next ten years are esti-
mated as follows:

Estimated Estimated
Gross Medicare Estimated

Benefit Part D Net Benefit
(Amounts in thousands) Payments Subsidy Payments

2008 $ 3,150 $ 286 $ 2,864
2009 3,106 312 2,794
2010 3,161 333 2,828
2011 3,177 353 2,824
2012 3,172 370 2,802
2013 – 2017 15,490 1,977 13,513

Total estimated 
benefit payments $ 31,256 $ 3,631 $ 27,625

The Company expects to meet funding requirements for
its post-retirement medical plans on a pay-as-you-go basis
during 2008.

The Company accounts for post-retirement medical
plans in accordance with FAS No. 106, “Employers’Ac-
counting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions”
(“FAS No. 106”) and FAS No. 158. The Company adopted
FAS No. 158 effective December 31, 2006. FAS No. 158
requires the recognition of the funded status of other post-
retirement benefit plans in the Company’s statement of fi-
nancial position. The implementation of FAS No. 158 on
December 31, 2006 resulted in a $3.8 million charge to ac-
cumulated other comprehensive income. As of Decem-
ber 31, 2007 and 2006, the obligation for the other
postretirement benefit plans has been reported in employee
benefit obligations in the consolidated balance sheets.

BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL, INC.44

Merrill Corp - Blount International_ Inc 10-K FYE 12-31-2007 [Enhanced Desktop]  | jgoetz | 25-Mar-08 16:16 | 08-2371-1.da | Sequence: 10
CHKSUM    Content: 12448    Layout: 18286    Graphics: No Graphics CLEAN

JOB: 08-2371-1    CYCLE#;BL#: 6; 0            TRIM: 8.25" x 10.75"    COMPOSITE
COLORS: Black, ~HTML color, ~note-color 2    GRAPHICS: none    V1.5



BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL, INC. 45

Periodic Benefit Costs and Other Comprehensive Income
The components of net periodic benefit cost and other

comprehensive income and the weighted average
assumptions used in accounting for other post-retirement
benefits follow:

Other Post-Retirement Benefits
Year Ended December 31,

(Amounts in thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Components of net periodic benefit cost:
Service cost $ 358 $ 376 $ 449
Interest cost 2,082 1,840 2,287
Expected return on plan assets – (16) (44)
Amortization of actuarial losses 932 742 1,327
Amortization of prior 
service cost 8 9 9

Curtailment cost 3 – –

Total net periodic 
benefit cost $ 3,383 $ 2,951 $ 4,028

Amount recognized in accumulated other 
comprehensive income:
Actuarial losses $ 1,675 $ 10,843 –
Prior service cost – 18 –

Total recognized in 
accumulated other 
comprehensive income $ 1,675 $ 10,861 n/a

Weighted average assumptions:
Discount rate used to 
determine net periodic 
benefit cost 5.8% 5.5% 5.8%

Discount rate used to 
determine year end 
benefit obligations 6.3% 5.8% 5.5%

Expected return on plan assets 2.0% 9.0% 9.0%

The amounts in accumulated other comprehensive in-
come expected to be recognized as components of net peri-
odic benefit cost in 2007 are actuarial losses of $0.9
million and prior service costs of $6 thousand.

The Company annually evaluates and selects the dis-
count rates to be used for these plans. Consideration is
given to relevant indices for high quality fixed rate debt se-
curities, and to specific debt securities with maturity dates
similar to the expected timing of cash outflows for the
plans as of the measurement date. The annual rate of in-
crease in the cost of health care benefits was assumed to
be 9% in 2005, 8% in 2006 and 10% in 2007, declining by
1.0% per year until 5.0% is reached. A 1% change in as-
sumed health care cost trend rates would have had the fol-
lowing effects for 2007:

(Amounts in thousands) 1% Increase 1% Decrease

Effect on service and 
interest cost components $ 336 $ (199)

Effect on other post-retirement 
benefit obligations 3,233 (2,679)

NOTE 11: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company leases office space and equipment under
operating leases expiring in one to 13 years. Most leases
include renewal options and some contain purchase op-
tions and escalation clauses. Future minimum rental com-
mitments required under operating leases having initial or
remaining non-cancelable lease terms in excess of one year
as of December 31, 2007, are as follows: 2008: $1.1 mil-
lion; 2009: $0.9 million; 2010: $0.9 million; 2011: $0.5
million; 2012 $0.3 million; 2013 and beyond: $1.5 million.
Rentals charged to costs and expenses for continuing oper-
ations under cancelable and non-cancelable lease arrange-
ments were $2.0 million, $2.5 million and $2.0 million in
2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Certain customers of the discontinued operations fi-
nanced their purchases through third party financing com-
panies. Under the terms of these financing arrangements,
the Company may be required to repurchase certain equip-
ment from the finance companies, or reimburse them for
any financial loss incurred, should a customer default on
payment. The aggregate remaining repurchase or reim-
bursement obligation outstanding under the agreements as
of December 31, 2007 is $0.8 million. These arrangements
have not had a material adverse effect on the Company’s
operating results or cash flows in the past. The Company
does not expect to incur any material charges related to
these agreements in future periods based on past experi-
ence and the assumption that any repurchased equipment
would most likely be resold for approximately the same
value.

Guarantees and other commercial commitments are as
follows:

(Amounts in thousands) December 31, 2007

Product warranty $ 160
Letters of credit outstanding 4,800

Total guarantees and
other commercial commitments
from continuing operations 4,960

Third party financing projections
of discontinued operations (1) 804

Total guarantees and 
other commercial commitments $ 5,764

(1) Applicable to the third party financing agreements for customer equip-
ment purchases.

In addition to these amounts, Blount International also
guarantees certain debt of its subsidiaries (see Notes 7
and 18).
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Changes in the warranty reserve were as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Balance at beginning of period $ 3,269 $ 4,888 $ 4,926
Warranty reserve related to 
discontinued operations (2,496) (976) –

Accrued warranty expense 1,536 2,778 4,125
Payments made (in cash or 
in-kind) (2,149) (3,421) (4,163)

Balance at end of period $ 160 $ 3,269 $ 4,888

The warranty reserve is included in accrued expenses on
the consolidated balance sheet. The warranty reserve re-
lated to discontinued operations in 2007 was assumed by
Caterpillar as part of the sale of the Forestry Division, and
in 2006 was assumed by Husqvarna as part of the sale of
Dixon Industries (see Note 2).

Other guarantees and claims arise during the ordinary
course of business from relationships with suppliers and
customers when we undertake an obligation to guarantee
the performance of others if specified triggering events oc-
cur. Nonperformance of a contract could trigger an obliga-
tion of the Company. In addition, certain guarantees relate
to contractual indemnification provisions in connection
with transactions involving the purchase or sale of stock or
assets. These claims include actions based upon intellec-
tual property, environmental, product liability and other in-
demnification matters. The ultimate effect on future
financial results is not subject to reasonable estimation be-
cause considerable uncertainty exists as to the occurrence
or, if triggered, final outcome of these claims. However,
while the ultimate liabilities resulting from such claims
may be potentially significant to results of operations in
the period recognized, management does not anticipate
they will have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
consolidated financial position or liquidity.

The Company reserves for product liability, environmen-
tal remediation and other legal matters as management be-
comes aware of such matters. A portion of these claims or
lawsuits may be covered by insurance policies that gener-
ally contain both deductible and coverage limits. Manage-
ment monitors the progress of each legal matter to ensure
that the appropriate reserve for its obligation has been rec-
ognized and disclosed in the financial statements. Manage-
ment also monitors trends in case types to determine if
there are any specific issues that relate to the Company
that may result in additional future exposure on an aggre-
gate basis. As of December 31, 2007 and December 31,
2006, management believes the Company has appropri-
ately recorded and disclosed all material costs for its obli-
gations in regard to known matters. Management believes
that the recoverability of the costs of claims from insur-
ance companies will continue in the future. Management
periodically assesses these insurance companies to monitor
their ability to pay such claims.

The Company was named a potentially liable person
(“PLP”) by the Washington State Department of Ecology
(“WDOE”) in connection with the Pasco Sanitary Landfill
Site (“Site”). This Site has been monitored by WDOE
since 1988. From available records, the Company believes
that it sent 26 drums of chromic hydroxide sludge in a non-
toxic, trivalent state to the Site. The Company further be-
lieves that the Site contains more than 50,000 drums in
total and millions of gallons of additional wastes, some po-
tentially highly toxic in nature. Accordingly, based both on
volume and on the nature of the waste, the Company be-
lieves that it is a de minimis contributor.

The current on-site monitoring program is being con-
ducted and funded by certain PLPs, excluding the Com-
pany and several other PLPs, under the supervision of
WDOE. During 2007, WDOE requested that the partici-
pating PLPs conduct further study and prepare a new
“scope of work.” It is likely that such new scope of work,
once proposed by the participating PLPs and approved by
WDOE, will result in additional work and costs in the fu-
ture. The Company may or may not be required to con-
tribute to the cost of this new or any subsequent studies or
remediation, if any. The Company is unable to estimate
such costs, or the likelihood of being assessed any portion
thereof. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company
had accrued $0.1 million for the potential costs of any
clean-up at the Site. The Company incurred no costs dur-
ing the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 in
connection with the remediation efforts at the Site.

On September 12, 2003, the Company received a Gen-
eral Notice Letter as a Potentially Responsible De Minimis
Party from Region IX of the EPA regarding the Operating
Industries, Inc. Superfund Site in Monterey Park, Califor-
nia. The notice stated that the EPA would submit an offer
to settle and an explanation as to why it believes the Com-
pany or a predecessor unit is a de minimis participant at
the site. The Company was subsequently informed by the
EPA that its report would be delayed, and on Septem-
ber 17, 2004, was notified of further delay in the process.
The EPA has indicated that its de minimis settlement offer
will be based on volume of waste at a uniform per gallon
price among all de minimis parties. The site was operated
as a landfill from 1948 to 1984, and received wastes from
over 4,000 generators. At the present time, the Company
has no knowledge as to which of its units, if any, was in-
volved at the site, or the amounts, if any, that were sent
there. However, based upon its current knowledge of the
site, and its alleged status as a Potentially Responsible De
Minimis Party, the Company does not believe that any set-
tlement or participation in any remediation will have a ma-
terially adverse effect on its consolidated financial
position, operating results or cash flows. The Company has
received no further notice or explanation from Region IX
of the EPA as of December 31, 2007.
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On June 30, 2005, the Company was served with a “no-
tice of meeting” on behalf of Williams Control, Inc.
(“WCI”) in connection with WCI’s agreement with the
State of Oregon Department of Environmental Quality
(“DEQ”) to enter into the voluntary cleanup program (the
“Program”) relating to WCI’s facility located near Port-
land, Oregon (the “WCI Site”). The notice alleged that
Blount, Inc. was responsible for some portion of any re-
quired cleanup or remediation related to the Program as a
successor in interest to Omark Industries, Inc. (“Omark”)
through Omark’s alleged operations at the WCI Site from
1968 through 1973. The Company is aware that other prior
operators of the business, including the entity from which
WCI purchased the business, Dana Corporation (“Dana”),
and the landowner of the WCI Site, were also served with
the notice. WCI alleged that a plume of chlorinated sol-
vents, primarily TCE, is contained in groundwater at the
Site and has migrated onto neighboring properties.

In late 2007, the Company, WCI and Dana reached a set-
tlement apportioning the estimated costs of remediation
among the three parties. The bankruptcy court with juris-
diction over Dana’s estate approved the settlement and, in
consideration of a release from WCI and other considera-
tion, the Company reached final settlement by payment of
an amount that was, after taking into account the reserve
established for this matter, not material. Subsequently, the
Company was reimbursed by insurance for much of this
settlement amount and the related fees.

The Company is a defendant in a number of product lia-
bility lawsuits, some of which seek significant or unspeci-
fied damages, involving serious personal injuries for which
there are retentions or deductible amounts under the Com-
pany’s insurance policies. In addition, the Company is a
party to a number of other suits arising out of the normal
course of its business, including suits concerning commer-
cial contracts, employee matters and intellectual property
rights. In some instances the Company is the plaintiff, and
is seeking recovery of damages. In others, the Company is
a defendant against whom damages are being sought.
While there can be no assurance as to their ultimate out-
come, management does not believe these lawsuits will
have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consoli-
dated financial position, operating results or cash flows.
The Company recognized $0.7 million and $2.3 million of
other income related to legal settlements in 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

The Company accrues, by a charge to income, an
amount representing management’s best estimate of the
undiscounted probable loss related to any matter deemed
by management and its counsel as a reasonably probable
loss contingency in light of all of the then known circum-
stances. The Company does not accrue a charge to income
for a matter deemed by management and its counsel to be
a reasonably possible loss contingency in light of all of the
current circumstances.

NOTE 12: CAPITAL STOCK AND EARNINGS PER SHARE DATA

The number of shares used in the denominators of the
basic and diluted income per share computations was as
follows:

Weighted Average Common Shares Year Ended December 31,
(In thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Shares for basic income 
per share computation – 
weighted average common 
shares outstanding 47,280 47,145 46,094

Dilutive effect of stock 
options, stock appreciation 
rights and warrants 798 723 1,441

Shares for diluted income 
per share computation 48,078 47,868 47,535

Options and stock appreciation 
rights excluded from 
computation as anti-dilutive 1,676 1,687 13

No adjustment was required to reported amounts for in-
clusion in the numerators of the per share computations.

In June 2005, the Company and certain of its stockhold-
ers sold 7,500,000 shares of the Company’s common stock
in a public offering. The Company retained cumulative net
proceeds of $10 thousand for the following transactions:
� Lehman Brothers and certain affiliates sold 6,117,620

shares of the Company’s common stock. The Company
did not receive any proceeds from this sale. As of De-
cember 31, 2007, Lehman Brothers held 8,918,999
shares of the Company’s common stock.

� The Company issued 382,380 shares of common stock
and received net proceeds of $6.1 million.

� The Company purchased 382,380 shares of common
stock from certain stockholders for $6.1 million. These
shares are held as treasury stock. The Company has ac-
counted for the treasury stock as constructively retired in
the consolidated financial statements.

� Warrants for 1,000,000 shares of common stock were
exercised at $0.01 a share with net proceeds of $10 thou-
sand received by the Company.

NOTE 13: STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted FAS
No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment” (“FAS No. 123(R)”).
FAS No. 123(R) requires all share-based compensation to
employees, directors and others who perform services for
the Company to be valued at fair value on the date of grant
and to be expensed over the applicable service period. Un-
der FAS No. 123(R), pro forma disclosure of the income
statement effects of share-based compensation is no longer
an alternative to expense recognition. The adoption of FAS
No. 123(R) resulted in a reduction in income before taxes
of $3.3 million and a reduction in income from continuing
operations and net income of $2.1 million in the year
ended December 31, 2006. The adoption of FAS 123(R)
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reduced basic and diluted earnings per share by $0.04 for
the year ended December 31, 2006. Under the modified
prospective application method, the results for prior peri-
ods have not been restated.

Under the Company’s 1999 Stock Incentive Plan and
2000 Stock Incentive Plan, options to purchase the Com-
pany’s common stock, and, by amendment, stock apprecia-
tion rights (“SARs”) could be granted to employees,
directors and other persons who perform services for the
Company. Such options could be either incentive stock op-
tions or non-qualified stock options. Options and SARs
generally vested in equal installments over a three year pe-
riod and expire ten years from the date of grant. The num-
ber of shares that could have been issued under these two
plans could not exceed an aggregate of 5,875,000 shares.

On April 25, 2006, the Company’s stockholders ap-
proved the Blount International, Inc. 2006 Equity Incentive
Plan (the “2006 Plan”) and the 1999 and 2000 plans were
replaced at that time. The 2006 Plan provides for substan-
tially similar terms and conditions of stock-based awards
to the predecessor plans, but also provides for the use of
restricted stock awards, restricted stock unit grants and
other forms of equity instruments. The maximum number
of shares that may be awarded under the 2006 Plan is
4,236,919, of which 736,919 represent shares that

remained unused under the 1999 and 2000 plans that were
transferred to the 2006 Plan. The maximum number of in-
centive stock options that may be issued under the 2006
Plan is 1,750,000. Outstanding stock-based awards issued
under the 1999 and 2000 plans remain unaffected by the
adoption of the 2006 Plan.

The fair value of options and SARs was estimated on
their respective grant dates using the Black-Scholes option
valuation model. The estimated average life of SARs
granted in 2006 and 2007 was derived from the “simpli-
fied” method described in SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin
No. 107 (“SAB 107”). The expected average life for op-
tions granted in 2005 was based on historical data and
management estimate. The risk-free interest rate is based
on the implied yield available on U.S. Treasury zero-
coupon issues with the remaining term equal to the average
life. The expected volatility factors used are based on the
historical volatility of the Company’s stock. The expected
dividend yield is based on historical information and man-
agement estimate. Beginning in 2006, the expense recog-
nized for each stock award is reduced by an estimated
forfeiture rate of 5.6%. The estimated forfeiture rate is
based on the historical forfeiture rate, and will be adjusted
to the actual forfeiture rate over the life of the stock awards
accounted for under FAS No. 123(R).
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The following assumptions were used to estimate fair value of stock options and SARs:

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005

Estimated average lives 6 years 6 years 5 years
Risk-free interest rate 4.5% 4.6% 3.8%
Expected volatility 29.1%-29.5% 26.7% 43.0%-43.9%
Weighted average volatility 29.3% 26.7% 43.3%
Dividend yield 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Weighted average grant date fair value $4.50 $6.09 $7.22

A summary of stock option and stock-settled SARs activity for the year December 31, 2007 is presented in the follow-
ing table:

Year Ended December 31, 2007

Weighted Aggregate
Weighted Average Intrinsic

Shares Average Contractual Value
(in ‘000’s) Exercise Price Life (in ‘000’s)

Outstanding options and SARs at beginning of period 3,146 $ 11.00 – –
SARs granted 380 11.82 – –
Options exercised (49) 4.31 – –
Options forfeited (31) 15.40 – –
SARs forfeited (124) 14.57 – –

Outstanding options and SARs at end of period 3,322 11.01 5.4 $ 10,569

Outstanding options at end of period 2,455 9.64 4.2 10,408
Outstanding SARs at end of period 867 14.91 8.5 161
Options exercisable at end of period 2,451 9.63 4.2 10,408
SARs exercisable at end of period 193 16.76 8.1 –
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As of December 31, 2007, the total compensation cost
related to awards not yet recognized was $1.7 million. The
weighted-average period over which this expense is ex-
pected to be recognized is one year. The Company’s policy
upon the exercise of options or SARs has been to issue
new shares into the market place.

Under certain conditions, stock options, SARs, restricted
stock and restricted stock units (“RSUs”) granted by the
Company are eligible for continued vesting upon a quali-
fied retirement of the employee. FAS No. 123(R) clarifies
that the fair value of such stock-based compensation should
be expensed based on an accelerated service period, or im-
mediately, rather than ratably over the vesting period stated
in the grant, for employees who are eligible for a qualified
retirement prior to the completion of the vesting period.
Prior to the adoption of FAS No. 123(R), the Company’s
pro forma disclosure reflected the expense of such options
ratably over the stated vesting period. The SEC has recently
clarified that companies should continue to follow the ex-
pense amortization method that they have been using for
pro forma disclosure prior to adoption of FAS No. 123(R),

and then apply the accelerated amortization schedule to all
subsequent grants to those employees that became eligible
for a qualified retirement within the vesting period. Had the
Company been accounting for such stock options using the
accelerated amortization schedule for those employees that
were eligible for such a retirement or became eligible for
such a retirement within the vesting period, the effect on
stock-based compensation expense in the pro forma disclo-
sure for the year ended December 31, 2005 would not have
been material. The effect of applying accelerated amortiza-
tion of expense recognized for those employees who were
eligible or became eligible for a qualified retirement within
the vesting period during the year ended December 31,
2006 was an increase of $0.8 million and an increase of
$0.3 million during the year ended December 31, 2007.

The following table shows the effect on net earnings and
earnings per share had compensation cost been recognized
based upon the fair value at the grant dates in accordance
with FAS No. 123 and FAS No. 148 “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure—
an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 123.”
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Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Intrinsic value of options exercised $ 436 $ 2,410 $ 2,123
Estimated fair value of options and SARs that vested 2,310 1,357 1,200
Share-based compensation cost recognized in income 3,589 3,253 67
Total tax benefit related to share-based compensation recognized 1,168 1,179 11
Total amount of cash received from options exercised 210 993 12,994
Tax benefit realized from options exercised 114 747 –
Cash used to settle equity instruments – – –

(Amounts in thousands, except per share amounts) Year Ended December 31, 2005

Net income as reported $ 106,615
Add: stock-based employee compensation cost, net of tax, 

included in the reported results 56
Deduct: total stock-based employee compensation cost, net of tax, 

that would have been included in net income under fair value method (776)

Pro forma net income $ 105,895

Basic earnings per share as reported $ 2.31
Pro forma basic earnings per share 2.30
Diluted earnings per share as reported 2.24
Pro forma diluted earnings per share 2.23

Restricted Stock Awards. On August 24, 2006, the Com-
pany awarded 35,256 shares of restricted stock to an exec-
utive officer. The restricted stock had a fair value of $0.3
million on the grant date and vests two thirds after two
years and one third after three years from the grant date.
This award resulted in the immediate recognition of $0.3
million in compensation expense on the grant date because
the executive officer was eligible for a qualified retirement
on the grant date.

On March 1, 2007, the Company awarded 45,000 shares
of restricted stock and 136,000 RSUs under its 2006 equity

compensation plan. The restricted stock and RSUs had a
fair value of $2.1 million on the grant date and generally
vest over a three year period. The Company recognized
$1.7 million of expense related to these stock awards in
2007. The effect of applying accelerated amortization of
expense on these stock awards for those employees that
were retirement eligible or become retirement eligible
prior to the completion of the vesting period was an in-
crease of $1.1 million in 2007.

Tax Benefits. The Company has elected to use the transi-
tion short-cut method to determine its pool of windfall tax
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benefits in accordance with FAS No. 123(R). Tax attributes
are determined under the tax law ordering method.

NOTE 14: SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company identifies operating segments primarily
based on management responsibility. The Company has
one operating and reportable segment: Outdoor Products.
The corporate and other category includes centralized ad-
ministrative functions and a gear components manufactur-
ing business. See also Note 2 regarding the disposition of

the primary operating unit making up the Company’s for-
mer Industrial and Power Equipment segment, and the dis-
position of the former Lawnmower segment. Outdoor
Products manufactures and markets cutting chain, bars,
sprockets and accessories for chainsaw use, concrete-
cutting equipment, lawnmower blades and accessories for
yard care equipment.

The accounting policies of the segment are the same as
those described in the summary of significant accounting
policies.
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Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Sales:
Outdoor Products $ 486,739 $ 455,009 $ 452,334
Corporate and other 28,796 32,485 26,495

Total sales $ 515,535 $ 487,494 $ 478,829

Operating income (expense):
Outdoor Products $ 95,932 $ 97,805 $ 105,536
Corporate and other (15,232) (17,345) (13,908)

Total operating income $ 80,700 $ 80,460 $ 91,628

Depreciation and amortization:
Outdoor Products $ 16,796 $ 14,212 $ 12,459
Corporate and other 4,796 4,575 4,185

Total depreciation and amortization 21,592 18,787 16,644

Other non-cash charges 3,223 5,807 67

Total depreciation, amortization and other non-cash charges $ 24,815 $ 24,594 $ 16,711

Capital expenditures:
Outdoor Products $ 17,155 $ 20,630 $ 16,423
Corporate and other 1,362 1,023 884

Total capital expenditures $ 18,517 $ 21,653 $ 17,307

Sales by major product line:
Chainsaw components and accessories $ 381,839 $ 360,332 $ 357,318
Outdoor equipment parts and accessories 74,276 64,856 67,995
All others, less than 10% each 59,420 62,306 53,516

Total sales $ 515,535 $ 487,494 $ 478,829

Sales by geographic region:
United States $ 185,793 $ 186,512 $ 188,731
European Union 160,375 143,838 137,569
Brazil 24,735 20,659 22,383
Russian Federation 18,426 14,403 14,349
Canada 17,526 18,199 20,946
All others, less than 3% each 108,680 103,883 94,851

Total sales $ 515,535 $ 487,494 $ 478,829

The geographic sales information is by country of destination. One customer, Husqvarna AB, accounted for approxi-
mately 14% of sales in 2007, 2006 and 2005. While we expect this business relationship to continue, the loss of this cus-
tomer could significantly affect our operations.
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Property, plant and equipment is shown net of accumu-
lated depreciation. Each of our business units purchases
certain important materials from a limited number of sup-
pliers that meet quality criteria. Although alternative
sources of supply are available, the sudden elimination of
certain suppliers could result in manufacturing delays, a
reduction in product quality and a possible loss of sales in
the near term.

NOTE 15: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Lehman Brothers and its affiliates maintained a control-
ling ownership interest in the Company until Decem-
ber 2004. Following a public offering of the Company’s
stock by the Company in August 2004, a secondary public
offering of the Company’s stock by Lehman Brothers in
December 2004, and a secondary public offering of the
Company’s stock by Lehman Brothers in June 2005,
Lehman Brothers and its affiliates owned approximately
19% of the Company’s outstanding common stock as of
December 31, 2007 and 2006.

In March 2005, $3.2 million was paid to Lehman Broth-
ers for previously accrued advisory fees relating to the
2004 Refinancing Transactions. In May 2005, Lehman
Brothers paid $0.3 million for previously accrued costs in-
curred by the Company in conjunction with the secondary
public offering that occurred in December 2004. In
June 2005, as part of a secondary stock offering, the Com-
pany incurred $0.1 million in expenses, which were reim-
bursed by Lehman Brothers in October 2005.

NOTE 16: SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Interest paid $ 31,264 $ 33,044 $ 31,337
Income taxes paid, net 20,753 9,873 14,255

NOTE 17: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CREDIT RISK
CONCENTRATION

The Company has manufacturing or distribution opera-
tions in Australia, Brazil, Canada, China, Europe, Japan,
Russia and the U.S. The Company sells to customers in
these locations and other countries throughout the world.
At December 31, 2007, approximately 32.8% of trade ac-
counts receivable were from customers within the U.S. One
customer accounted for 10.3% and 10.8% at December 31,
2007 and 2006, respectively, of the accounts receivable
balance. No other customers accounted for 3% or more of
accounts receivable at December 31, 2007 or 2006. Ac-
counts receivable are principally from service and dealer
groups, distributors, mass merchants, chainsaw manufactur-
ers and other OEMs, and are normally not collateralized.

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents ap-
proximates fair value because of the short term maturity of
those instruments. The carrying amount of accounts re-
ceivable approximates fair value because the maturity pe-
riod is short and the Company has reduced the carrying
amount to the estimated net realizable value with an al-
lowance for doubtful accounts. The carrying amounts of
the revolving credit facility and term debt approximate fair
value because the interest rates are variable and the matu-
rity periods for individual term borrowings are relatively
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December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2007 2006

Identifiable assets:
Outdoor Products $ 316,834 $ 285,917
Corporate and other 84,163 77,267

Total assets from continuing operations 400,997 363,184

Discontinued operations 10,952 67,282

Total assets $ 411,949 $ 430,466

Goodwill:
Outdoor Products $ 43,819 $ 43,819
Corporate and other 5,165 5,165
Discontinued operations – 22,908

Total goodwill $ 48,984 $ 71,892

Property, plant and equipment, net:
United States $ 41,673 $ 51,805
Canada 18,240 21,446
China 15,310 11,507
Brazil 11,201 11,951
European Union 2,970 2,685
All others, less than 1% each 335 271

Total property, plant and equipment, net $ 89,729 $ 99,665
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short. The fair market value of the fixed rate 87⁄8% senior
subordinated notes is determined by reference to quoted
market prices. The carrying amount of other financial in-
struments approximates fair value because of the short

term maturity periods and variable interest rates associated
with the instruments.

The estimated fair values of the 87⁄8% senior subordi-
nated notes at December 31, 2007 and 2006 are as follows:
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2007 2006
Carrying Carrying

(Amounts in thousands) Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value

87⁄8% senior subordinated notes (see Note 7) $ 175,000 $ 175,438 $ 175,000 $ 178,500

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations Information
Blount Non-

International, Blount, Guarantor Guarantor
(Amounts in thousands) Inc. Inc. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

For the Year Ended December 31, 2007
Sales – $ 375,561 $ 45,258 $ 327,975 $ (233,259) $ 515,535
Cost of sales – 252,856 37,734 283,052 (233,064) 340,578

Gross profit – 122,705 7,524 44,923 (195) 174,957
Operating expenses – 57,912 3,947 32,398 – 94,257

Operating income – 64,793 3,577 12,525 (195) 80,700
Other, net $ (23,015) (10,202) (729) 1,419 – (32,527)

Income (loss) from continuing 
operations before income taxes (23,015) 54,591 2,848 13,944 (195) 48,173

Provision (benefit) for income taxes (7,634) 21,478 1,267 919 – 16,030

Income (loss) from continuing operations (15,381) 33,113 1,581 13,025 (195) 32,143
Income (loss) from discontinued operations – 11,477 (70) (693) – 10,714
Equity in earnings of affiliated companies 58,238 13,648 320 – (72,206) –

Net income $ 42,857 $ 58,238 $ 1,831 $ 12,332 $ (72,401) $ 42,857

For the Year Ended December 31, 2006
Sales – $ 347,982 $ 49,088 $ 284,634 $ (194,210) $ 487,494
Cost of sales – 245,617 40,478 220,565 (192,845) 313,815

Gross profit – 102,365 8,610 64,069 (1,365) 173,679
Operating expenses – 60,400 3,653 29,166 – 93,219

Operating income – 41,965 4,957 34,903 (1,365) 80,460
Other, net $ (22,818) (10,703) (525) (23) – (34,069)

Income (loss) from continuing 
operations before income taxes (22,818) 31,262 4,432 34,880 (1,365) 46,391

Provision (benefit) for income taxes (8,671) 11,880 1,666 8,871 – 13,746

Income (loss) from continuing operations (14,147) 19,382 2,766 26,009 (1,365) 32,645
Income (loss) from discontinued operations – 5,829 4,479 (407) – 9,901
Equity in earnings of affiliated companies 56,693 31,482 209 – (88,384) –

Net income $ 42,546 $ 56,693 $ 7,454 $ 25,602 $ (89,749) $ 42,546

Foreign currency exchange rate movements create a de-
gree of risk by affecting the U.S. dollar value of certain
balance sheet positions denominated in foreign curren-
cies. Additionally, the interest rates available in certain ju-
risdictions in which the Company holds cash may vary,
thereby affecting the return on cash equivalent invest-
ments. The Company’s practice is to use foreign currency
and interest rate swap agreements to manage exposure to
foreign currency and interest rate changes. The objective
is to minimize earnings volatility resulting from conver-
sion and the re-measurement of foreign currency balance
sheet positions to U.S. Dollars. Changes in the fair value

of non-derivative instruments are reported in current earn-
ings as a component of interest income and were $0.1 mil-
lion in 2007. There were no such instruments used in 2006
and 2005.

NOTE 18: CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL INFORMATION

See Note 7 for a discussion of the Company’s guarantor
subsidiaries. The following consolidating financial infor-
mation sets forth condensed consolidating statements of
operations, balance sheets and cash flows of Blount Inter-
national, Inc., Blount, Inc., the guarantor subsidiaries and
the non-guarantor subsidiaries.
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations Information — Continued
Blount Non-

International, Blount, Guarantor Guarantor
(Amounts in thousands) Inc. Inc. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

For the Year Ended December 31, 2005
Sales – $ 267,798 $ 122,583 $ 270,782 $ (182,334) $ 478,829
Cost of sales – 182,093 93,677 205,186 (183,209) 297,747

Gross profit – 85,705 28,906 65,596 875 181,082
Operating expenses – 46,588 11,467 31,399 – 89,454

Operating income – 39,117 17,439 34,197 875 91,628
Other, net $ (18,386) (16,296) (2,211) (777) – (37,670)

Income (loss) from continuing 
operations before income taxes (18,386) 22,821 15,228 33,420 875 53,958

Provision (benefit) for income taxes (6,913) (39,328) 964 11,021 – (34,256)

Income (loss) from continuing operations (11,473) 62,149 14,264 22,399 875 88,214
Income (loss) from discontinued operations – 16,493 1,908 – – 18,401
Equity in earnings of affiliated companies 118,088 39,446 335 – (157,869) –

Net income $ 106,615 $ 118,088 $ 16,507 $ 22,399 $ (156,994) $ 106,615

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet Information
Blount Non-

International, Blount, Guarantor Guarantor
(Amounts in thousands) Inc. Inc. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

December 31, 2007
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents – $ 10,512 $ 121 $ 46,956 – $ 57,589
Accounts receivable, net – 34,885 4,881 28,052 – 67,818
Intercompany receivables – 179,631 82,438 4,838 $ (266,907) –
Inventories – 41,877 6,860 21,884 (348) 70,273
Deferred income taxes – 5,137 – 399 – 5,536
Other current assets – 8,706 216 7,471 – 16,393

Total current assets – 280,748 94,516 109,600 (267,255) 217,609
Investments in affiliated 

companies $ 213,950 243,745 852 248 (458,795) –
Property, plant and 

equipment, net – 31,345 10,330 48,054 – 89,729
Goodwill and other assets – 82,046 11,893 12,559 (1,887) 104,611

Total Assets $ 213,950 $ 637,884 $ 117,591 $ 170,461 $ (727,937) $ 411,949

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)
Current maturities of long-term debt – $ 1,242 – – – $ 1,242
Accounts payable – 15,835 $ 3,857 $ 10,107 – 29,799
Intercompany payables $ 266,907 – – – $ (266,907) –
Other current liabilities – 39,264 3,568 15,148 – 57,980

Total current liabilities 266,907 56,341 7,425 25,255 (266,907) 89,021
Long-term debt, excluding 

current maturities – 295,758 – – – 295,758
Other liabilities 1,189 71,835 – 10,179 (1,887) 81,316

Total liabilities 268,096 423,934 7,425 35,434 (268,794) 466,095
Stockholders equity (deficit) (54,146) 213,950 110,166 135,027 (459,143) (54,146)

Total Liabilities and 
Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit) $ 213,950 $ 637,884 $ 117,591 $ 170,461 $ (727,937) $ 411,949
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet Information — Continued
Blount Non-

International, Blount, Guarantor Guarantor
(Amounts in thousands) Inc. Inc. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

December 31, 2006
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents – – $ 90 $ 29,398 $ (1,852) $ 27,636
Accounts receivable, net – $ 51,660 5,817 25,271 – 82,748
Intercompany receivables – 153,923 83,240 17,415 (254,578) –
Inventories – 56,823 5,519 17,754 (2,263) 77,833
Deferred income taxes – 20,035 – 87 – 20,122
Other current assets – 2,926 297 5,119 – 8,342

Total current assets – 285,367 94,963 95,044 (258,693) 216,681
Investments in affiliated 

companies $ 150,652 229,533 532 248 (380,965) –
Property, plant and 

equipment, net – 41,370 10,421 47,874 – 99,665
Goodwill and other assets – 89,986 13,089 12,823 (1,778) 114,120

Total Assets $ 150,652 $ 646,256 $ 119,005 $ 155,989 $ (641,436) $ 430,466

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)
Current maturities of long-term debt – $ 1,500 – – – $ 1,500
Accounts payable – 23,319 $ 4,312 $ 9,203 $ (1,852) 34,982
Intercompany payables $ 254,578 – – – (254,578) –
Other current liabilities – 41,815 4,820 15,702 – 62,337

Total current liabilities 254,578 66,634 9,132 24,905 (256,430) 98,819
Long-term debt, excluding 

current maturities – 349,375 – – – 349,375
Other liabilities 1,365 79,595 – 8,381 (1,778) 87,563

Total liabilities 255,943 495,604 9,132 33,286 (258,208) 535,757
Stockholders equity (deficit) (105,291) 150,652 109,873 122,703 (383,228) (105,291)

Total Liabilities and 
Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit) $ 150,652 $ 646,256 $ 119,005 $ 155,989 $ (641,436) $ 430,466

Condensed Consolidating Cash Flows Information
Blount Non-

International, Blount, Guarantor Guarantor
(Amounts in thousands) Inc. Inc. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

For the Year Ended December 31, 2007
Net cash provided by 

(used in) operating activities $ 6,875 $ (3,145) $ (1,765) $ 27,524 $ 1,852 $ 31,341

Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment – 411 1,623 275 – 2,309
Purchase of property, plant and equipment – (10,717) (1,496) (6,304) – (18,517)
Discontinued operations – 69,071 – – – 69,071

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities – 58,765 127 (6,029) – 52,863

Net borrowings under revolving credit facility – (27,000) – – – (27,000)
Repayment of long-term debt – (26,875) – – – (26,875)
Advances from (to) affiliates (7,199) 9,467 1,669 (3,937) – –
Other 324 (700) – – – (376)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (6,875) (45,108) 1,669 (3,937) – (54,251)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents – 10,512 31 17,558 1,852 29,953
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period – – 90 29,398 (1,852) 27,636

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ – $ 10,512 $ 121 $ 46,956 $ – $ 57,589
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Condensed Consolidating Cash Flows Information — Continued
Blount Non-

International, Blount, Guarantor Guarantor
(Amounts in thousands) Inc. Inc. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

For the Year Ended December 31, 2006
Net cash provided by

(used in) operating activities $ 6,997 $ 31,265 $ (5,512) $ 28,281 $ (1,015) $ 60,016

Proceeds from sale of property, 
plant & equipment – 41 1 1,202 – 1,244

Purchase of property, plant and equipment – (11,229) (1,104) (9,320) – (21,653)
Discontinued operations – (919) 32,322 (503) – 30,900

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities – (12,107) 31,219 (8,621) – 10,491

Net borrowings under revolving credit facility – 27,000 – – – 27,000
Repayment of long-term debt – (79,195) – (4,653) – (83,848)
Advances from (to) affiliates (8,737) 33,694 (25,617) 660 – –
Other 1,740 (700) – – – 1,040

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (6,997) (19,201) (25,617) (3,993) – (55,808)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents – (43) 90 15,667 (1,015) 14,699
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period – 43 – 13,731 (837) 12,937

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ – $ – $ 90 $ 29,398 $ (1,852) $ 27,636

For the Year Ended December 31, 2005
Net cash provided by 

(used in) operating activities $ 6,091 $ 39,143 $ 3,008 $ 15,247 $ 1,623 $ 65,112

Proceeds from sale of property, 
plant & equipment – 351 1 30 – 382

Purchase of property, plant and equipment – (4,416) (2,423) (10,468) – (17,307)
Discontinued operations – (1,436) (586) – – (2,022)

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities – (5,501) (3,008) (10,438) – (18,947)

Repayment of long-term debt – (86,268) – (220) – (86,488)
Advances from (to) affiliates (13,335) 13,106 – 229 – –
Dividends from (to) affiliates – 24,888 – (24,888) – –
Other 7,244 (2,554) – – – 4,690

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (6,091) (50,828) – (24,879) – (81,798)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents – (17,186) – (20,070) 1,623 (35,633)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period – 17,229 – 33,801 (2,460) 48,570

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ – $ 43 $ – $ 13,731 $ (837) $ 12,937

BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL, INC. 55

Merrill Corp - Blount International_ Inc 10-K FYE 12-31-2007 [Enhanced Desktop]  | jgoetz | 25-Mar-08 16:16 | 08-2371-1.da | Sequence: 21
CHKSUM    Content: 51403    Layout: 15863    Graphics: No Graphics CLEAN

JOB: 08-2371-1    CYCLE#;BL#: 6; 0            TRIM: 8.25" x 10.75"    COMPOSITE
COLORS: Black, ~HTML color, ~note-color 2    GRAPHICS: none    V1.5



NOTE 19: RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In September 2006, the FASB issued FAS No. 157, “Fair
Value Measurements” (“FAS No. 157”). FAS No. 157 de-
fines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair
value in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the U.S., and expands disclosures about fair
value measurements. The provisions of FAS No. 157 are
effective for the Company’s fiscal year beginning
January 1, 2008. The Company is currently evaluating the
impact of the provisions of FAS No. 157.

In February 2007, the FASB issued FAS No. 159, “Fair
Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabili-
ties—Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115”
(“FAS No. 159”). FAS No. 159 permits entities to choose
to measure many financial instruments and certain other
items at fair value. The provisions of FAS No. 159 are ef-
fective for us on January 1, 2008. The Company is cur-
rently evaluating the impact of the provisions of FAS
No. 159.

In December 2007, the FASB issued FAS No. 141(R),
“Business Combinations” (“FAS No. 141(R)”). FAS
No. 141(R) replaces FAS No. 141, Business Combinations
and improves the relevance, representational faithfulness,
and comparability of the information that a reporting entity
provides in its financial reports about a business

combination and its effects. The provisions of FAS No.
141(R) are effective for the Company on January 1, 2009.
The impact of adopting FAS No. 141(R) will depend on
the nature, terms and size of business combinations com-
pleted after the effective date.

In December 2007, the FASB issued FAS No. 160,
“Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial State-
ments” (“FAS No. 160”). FAS No 160 amends Accounting
Research Bulletin No. 51, Consolidated Financial State-
ments, and improves the relevance, comparability, and
transparency of the financial information that a reporting
entity provides in its consolidated financial statements for
those entities that have an outstanding noncontrolling in-
terest in one or more subsidiaries or that deconsolidate a
subsidiary. The provisions of FAS No. 160 are effective for
the Company on January 1, 2009. Earlier adoption is pro-
hibited. The adoption of FAS No. 160 is not anticipated to
have a material impact on the financial position and results
of operations of the Company.

In December 2007, the SEC issued Staff Accounting
Bulletin No. 110 (“SAB 110”) which extended the contin-
ued use of the simplified method for estimating lives of
stock options and SARs. We are continuing to use the sim-
plified method in accounting for our stock-based compen-
sation costs.
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BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL, INC. 57

SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
(Unaudited)

The following tables set forth a summary of the unaudited quarterly results of operations for 2007 and 2006.

2007 results were as follows:

(Amounts in thousands except per share data) 1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter Total 2007

Sales $ 118,316 $ 135,580 $ 129,853 $ 131,786 $ 515,535
Gross profit 40,055 46,276 43,926 44,700 174,957
Net income 4,666 11,182 9,443 17,566 42,857
Net income per share:

Basic $ 0.10 $ 0.24 $ 0.20 $ 0.37 $ 0.91
Diluted 0.10 0.23 0.20 0.37 0.89

The fourth quarter includes $4.5 million in severance, impairment and closure costs and a pretax gain of $26.0 million
related to the sale of our Forestry Division.

2006 results were as follows:

(Amounts in thousands except per share data) 1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter Total 2006

Sales $ 121,887 $ 123,167 $ 119,754 $ 122,686 $ 487,494
Gross profit 44,336 42,035 41,285 46,023 173,679
Net income 8,957 9,427 15,124 9,038 42,546
Net income per share:

Basic $ 0.19 $ 0.20 $ 0.32 $ 0.19 $ 0.90
Diluted 0.19 0.20 0.32 0.19 0.89

Net income includes pre-tax charges of $2.2 million in the second quarter and $4.7 million in the third quarter for employee
severance and benefits costs, impairment of assets and transition costs related to discontinued operations. The third quarter
also includes a pretax gain of $17.7 million related to the sale of net assets from discontinued operations. In addition, the third
quarter includes $4.8 million in non-recurring charges related to the redesign of retirement plans and a plant closure.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH
ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Company management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining adequate internal control over financial report-
ing as such term is defined under the Exchange Act rules.
The Company maintains financial reporting and disclosure
controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that in-
formation required to be disclosed in the Company’s Ex-
change Act reports is recorded, processed, summarized and
reported within the time periods specified in the Securities
and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms, and that such
information is accumulated and communicated to the Com-
pany’s management, including its Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow for
timely decisions regarding required disclosure. In designing
and evaluating the financial reporting and disclosure con-
trols and procedures, management recognizes that any con-
trols and procedures, no matter how well designed and
operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achiev-
ing the desired control objectives, and management is re-
quired to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit
relationship of possible controls and procedures.

The Company, under the supervision and with the partic-
ipation of the Company’s management, including the Com-
pany’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, assessed the effectiveness of the design and opera-
tion of the Company’s financial reporting and disclosure
controls and procedures. The Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations (“COSO”) framework was applied in per-
forming this assessment. Based on this assessment, the
Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer concluded that the Company’s financial reporting
and disclosure controls and procedures were effective at
the reasonable assurance level as of the end of the period
covered by this report.

Management’s report on internal control over financial
reporting and the related audit report of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP are included in Item 8 of
this Report.

There have been no changes in the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting during the Company’s
most recent fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or
are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE
REGISTRANT

See the “Election of Directors”, “Executive Officers”,
“Audit Committee Disclosure” and “Filing Disclosure”
sections of our Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meet-
ing of Stockholders, which sections are incorporated
herein by reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

See the “Executive Compensation”, “Compensation of
Directors”, “Compensation Committee Interlocks and In-
sider Participation” and “Employment Contracts” sections
of our Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders, which sections are incorporated herein by
reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL
OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

See the “Principal Stockholders” and “Equity Compen-
sation Plan Information” sections of our Proxy Statement
for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which sec-
tions are incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED
TRANSACTIONS

See the “Certain Transactions and Other Matters” sec-
tion of our Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting
of Stockholders, which section is incorporated herein by
reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

See the “Ratify the Appointment of Independent Audi-
tors” section of our Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders, which section is incorporated
herein by reference.
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ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Page
Reference

(A) Certain documents filed as part of Form 10-K

(1) Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .30

Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended

December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .31

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2007 and 2006  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .32

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended

December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .33

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit) for

the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .34

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .35

Supplementary Data  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .57

(2) Financial Statement Schedules

Schedule II – Valuation and qualifying accounts for the years ended

December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .63

All other schedules have been omitted because they are not required or because the information is presented in the Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(B) Exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K:

*2(a) Agreement and Plan of Merger and Recapitalization, dated as of April 18, 1999, between Blount International, Inc.,
and Red Dog Acquisition, Corp. (included as Appendix A to the Proxy Statement-Prospectus which forms a part of
the Registration Statement) previously filed on July 15, 1999, by Blount International, Inc. (Reg. No. 333-82973).

*3(a) Post-Merger Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Blount International, Inc. (included as Exhibit A to the
Agreement and Plan of Merger and Recapitalization which is Exhibit 2.1) filed as part of the Proxy Statement-
Prospectus which forms a part of the Registration Statement on Form S-4 (Reg. No. 333-82973) previously
filed on July 15, 1999, by Blount International, Inc.

*3(b) Post-Merger Bylaws of Blount International, Inc. (included as Exhibit B to the Agreement and Plan of Merger
and Recapitalization which is Exhibit 2.1) filed as part of the Proxy Statement-Prospectus which forms a part of
the Registration Statement on Form S-4 (Reg. No. 333-82973).

*4(a) Registration Rights and Stock Transfer Restriction agreement filed as part of Registration Statement on Form S-4
(Reg. No. 33-63141) of Blount International, Inc., including amendments and exhibits, which became effective
on October 4, 1995 (Commission File No. 33-63141).

*4(b) Form of stock certificate of New Blount common stock filed as part of the Proxy Statement-Prospectus which
forms a part of the Registration Statement on Form S-4 (Reg. No. 333-82973) filed by Blount International,
Inc. on July 15, 1999.

*4(c) Registration Right Agreement by and among Blount, Inc., Blount International, Inc., BI Holdings Corp.,
Benjamin F. Shaw Company, BI. L.L.C., Blount Development Corp., Omark Properties, Inc., Gear Products, Inc.,
Dixon Industries, Inc., Frederick Manufacturing Corporation, Federal Cartridge Company, Simmons Outdoor
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Corporation, Mocenplaza Development Corp., CTR Manufacturing, Inc., and Lehman Brothers, Inc. dated as of
August 19, 1999, filed as Exhibit 4.2 to the report on Form 10-Q for the third quarter ended September 30, 1999.

*4(d) Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of August 9, 2004 among Blount Inc., Dixon Industries, Inc.,
Fabtek Corporation, Frederick Manufacturing Corporation, Gear Products, Inc., Omark Properties, Inc., and
Windsor Forestry Tools LLC, as US Borrowers, Blount Canada Ltd., as Canadian Borrower, the other credit parties
signatory thereto, as Credit Parties, from time to time, as Lenders, General Electric Capital Corporation, as
Administrative Agent and US Lender, and General Electric Capital Canada Inc., as Canadian Administrative Agent
and Canadian Lender, GECC Capital Markets Group Inc., as Lead Arranger and Book Runner and BNP PARIBAS,
as Syndication Agent, which was filed as Exhibit 99.1 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004.

*4(e) Amendment No. 1 dated as of December 1, 2004 to the Amended and Restated Senior Credit Amendment dated
August 9, 2004 among Blount Inc., Dixon Industries, Inc., Fabtek Corporation, Frederick Manufacturing
Corporation, Gear Products, Inc., Omark Properties, Inc., and Windsor Forestry Tools LLC, as US Borrowers,
Blount Canada Ltd., as Canadian Borrower, the other credit parties signatory thereto, as Credit Parties, from
time to time, as Lenders, General Electric Capital Corporation, as Administrative Agent and US Lender, and
General Electric Capital Canada Inc., as Canadian Administrative Agent and Canadian Lender, GECC Capital
Markets Group Inc., as Lead Arranger and Book Runner and BNP PARIBAS, as Syndication Agent, which was
filed as Exhibit 99.1 to the report on Form 8-K filed by Blount International, Inc., on December 3, 2004.

*4(f) Third amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement and First Amendment to Amended and Restated
US Security Agreement dated as of March 23, 2006, by and among Blount Inc., Dixon Industries, Inc., Fabtek
Corporation, Frederick Manufacturing Corporation, Gear Products, Inc., Omark Properties, Inc., and Windsor
Forestry Tools LLC, as US Borrowers, Blount Canada Ltd., as Canadian Borrower, the other credit parties
signatory thereto, as Credit Parties, from time to time, as Lenders, General Electric Capital Corporation, as
Administrative Agent and US Lender, and GE CFS Canada Holding Company, as Canadian Administrative
Agent and Canadian Lender, which was filed as Exhibit 1.1 to the report on Form 8-K filed by Blount
International, Inc., on March 23, 2006.

*4(g) Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-114840) with respect to the 87⁄8% Senior Subordinated Notes
of Blount, Inc. which are guaranteed by BI, LLC, Omark Properties, Inc., 4520 Corp., Inc., Gear Products, Inc.,
Dixon Industries, Inc., Frederick Manufacturing Corporation, Fabtek Corporation and Windsor Forestry Tools
LLC and 10,000,000 shares of common stock of Blount International, Inc. including amendments and exhibits,
which became effective on August 3, 2004.

*4(h) Registration Statement on Form S-3 (Reg. No. 333-132024) with respect to 9,248,218 shares of common stock
of Blount International, Inc., which became effective May 2, 2006.

*9(a) Stockholder Agreement, dated as of April 18, 1999, between Red Dog Acquisition, corp., a Delaware
corporation and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Lehman Brothers Merchant Banking Partners II L.P., a Delaware
limited partnership, and The Blount Holding Company, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership which was filed as
Exhibit 9 to the Form 8-K/A filed April 20, 1999.

*10(a) Supplemental Retirement and Disability Plan of Blount, Inc. which was filed as Exhibit 10(e) to the Annual Report
of Blount, Inc., on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 29, 1992 (Commission File No. 1-7002).

*10(b) Written description of the Blount International, Inc. 2006 Executive Management Annual Incentive Plan ,
Effective as of January 1, 2006, filed as Exhibit A to the Proxy Statement of Blount, International, Inc. for the
Annual Meeting of Stockholders held April 25, 2006 (Commission File No. 001-11549).

*10(c) Supplemental Retirement Savings Plan of Blount, Inc. which was filed as Exhibit 10(i) to the Annual Report of
Blount, Inc. on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 29, 1992 (Commission File No. 1-7002).

*10(d) Blount, Inc. Executive Benefit Plans Trust Agreement and Amendment to and Assumption of Blount, Inc. Executive
Benefit Plans Trust which were filed as Exhibits 10(x)(i) and 10(x)(ii) to the Annual Report of Blount International,
Inc. on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 29, 1996 (Commission File No. 001-11549).
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*10(e) Blount, Inc. Benefits Protection Trust Agreement and Amendment To ad Assumption of Blount, Inc. Benefits
Protection Trust which were filed as Exhibits 10(y)(i) and 10(y)(ii) to the Annual Report of Blount
International, Inc. on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 29, 1996 (Commission File
No. 001-11549).

*10(f) Blount International, Inc. 2006 Equity Incentive Plan filed as Exhibit B to the Proxy Statement of Blount,
International, Inc. for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held April 25, 2006 (Commission File No. 001-11549),
and the Amendment to the Blount International, Inc. 2006 Equity Incentive Plan dated as of February 23, 2007,
as part of exhibits to the Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Reg. No. 333-149584), which became effective
on March 6, 2008.

*10(g) 1999 Stock Incentive Plan and 2000 Stock Incentive Plan of Blount International, Inc. filed as part of
Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Reg. No. 333-913-90) exhibits, which became effective June 27, 2002.

*10(h) The Blount Deferred Compensation Plan which was filed as Exhibit 10(cc) to the Annual Report of Blount
International, Inc. on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1998 (Commission File No. 001-11549).

*10(i) Employment Agreement, dated as of April 18, 1999, between Blount International, Inc. and Richard H. Irving,
III filed as part of Registration Statement on Form S-4 (Reg. No. 333-92481) of Blount International, Inc.,
including amendments and exhibits, which became effective January 19, 2000.

*10(j) Employee Stockholder Agreement dated as of August 19, 1999, among Blount International, Inc., Lehman
Brothers Merchant Banking Partners II L.P. and Certain Employee Stockholders.

*10(k) Amendment to Employment Agreement between Blount Inc. and Kenneth O. Saito dated August 16, 2002.

*10(l) Amendment to Employment Agreement between Blount International and Richard H. Irving, III dated
February 14, 2002.

*10(m) Amendment to Employment Agreement between Blount International and Richard H. Irving, III dated
August 19, 2002.

*10(n) Employment Agreement between Blount, Inc. and Kenneth O. Saito dated June 1, 1999.

*10(o) Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between Blount International, Inc. and James S. Osterman
dated February 2, 2004.

*10(p) Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between Blount International, Inc. and Calvin E. Jenness dated
March 1, 2004.

**10(q) Asset Purchase Agreement by and among Caterpillar Forest Products Inc., Caterpillar Inc. and the Caterpillar
Subsidiaries set forth therein and Blount, Inc., Blount International, Inc. and the Blount Subsidiaries set forth
therein dated November 5, 2007.

*14 Code of Ethics for Covered Officers as approved by Audit Committee on February 2, 2004.

21 A list of the significant subsidiaries of Blount International, Inc. included herein on page 64.

31.1 Certification pursuant to section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by James O. Osterman, Chief
Executive Officer included herein on page 65.

31.2 Certification pursuant to section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by Calvin E. Jenness Chief Financial
Officer included herein on page 66.

**32.1 Certification pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by James O. Osterman, Chief
Executive Officer.

**32.2 Certification pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by Calvin E. Jenness Chief Financial
Officer.

* Incorporated by reference
** Filed electronically herewith. Copies of such exhibits may be obtained upon written request from:

Blount International, Inc.
P.O. Box 22127
Portland, Oregon 97269-2127
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant had duly

caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL, INC.

Dated: March 13, 2008

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report is signed below by the following per-
sons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Dated: March 13, 2008

/s/ Eliot M. Fried Lead Director

Eliot M. Fried

/s/ Harold E. Layman Director

Harold E. Layman

/s/ R. Eugene Cartledge Director

R. Eugene Cartledge

/s/ James S. Osterman Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and Director

James S. Osterman

/s/ Joshua L. Collins Director

Joshua L. Collins

/s/ E. Daniel James Director

E. Daniel James

/s/ Thomas J. Fruechtel Director

Thomas J. Fruechtel

/s/ Robert D. Kennedy Director

Robert D. Kennedy

By: /s/ Mark V. Allred

Mark V. Allred
Vice President — Corporate Controller

(Principal Accounting Officer)

By: /s/ Calvin E. Jenness

Calvin E. Jenness
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
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SCHEDULE II

CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Blount International, Inc. and Subsidiaries

(Dollar amounts in millions)

Column A Column B Column C Column D Column E

Additions
Balance at Charged to Balance at 
Beginning Cost and End of 

Description of Period Expenses Deductions Period

Year Ended December 31, 2007:

Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable $ 2,545 $ (428) $ 64 $ 2,181

Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets 2,667 – (349) 2,318

Year Ended December 31, 2006:

Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable 2,239 245 61 2,545

Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets 2,907 272 (512) 2,667

Year Ended December 31, 2005:

Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable 2,371 271 (403) 2,239

Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets 57,867 (54,033) (927) 2,907
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EXHIBIT 21

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT
At December 31, 2007, consolidated, directly or indirectly, wholly-owned Significant Subsidiaries of Blount Interna-

tional, Inc. were deemed as follows:

NAME OF SUBSIDIARY PLACE OF INCORPORATION

Blount, Inc. Delaware
Blount Canada Ltd. Canada
Blount Europe, S.A. Belgium
Blount Holdings Ltd. Canada
Blount Industrial LTDA Brazil

The names of certain subsidiaries have been omitted because when considered in the aggregate or as a single subsidiary
they would not constitute a “Significant Subsidiary” as of December 31, 2007.
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EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, James S. Osterman, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2007 of Blount
International, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and we have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including
its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) designed such internal controls over financial reporting, or caused such internal controls over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case
of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of
directors:

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal controls.

Date: March 13, 2008

/s/ James S. Osterman

James S. Osterman
Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Calvin E. Jenness, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2007 of Blount
International, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and we have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including
its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) designed such internal controls over financial reporting, or caused such internal controls over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case
of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of
directors:

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal controls.

Date: March 13, 2008

/s/ Calvin E. Jenness

Calvin E. Jenness
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
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68 BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL, INC.

Rules adopted by the SEC require that the Company include in the annual report a line graph presentation comparing the
cumulative five-year shareholder return on the Company’s common stock on an indexed basis with the cumulative return
of a broad equity market index that includes companies whose equity securities are traded on the same exchange as the
Company’s and either a published industry index or an index of peer companies selected by the Company. Since the Com-
pany is not included in the Standard and Poor’s 500 Stock Index and its equity securities are traded on the New York Stock
Exchange, the New York Stock Exchange Composite (US) Index was selected as the broad equity market index. (As a re-
sult of a change in New York Stock Exchange procedures, its Composite (US) Index has been manually recreated for years
prior to December 31, 2003.) The Company created a peer group index with which to compare its own stock performance
since a relevant published industry or line-of-business index does not exist. A list of these follows the graph below.*

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Blount International, Inc., The NYSE Composite Index 

and a Peer Group

* $100 invested on 12/31/02 in stock or index-including reinvestment of dividends.

Fiscal year ending December 31.

12/02 12/03 12/04 12/05 12/06 12/07

Blount International, Inc. 100.00 206.56 457.22 418.11 353.28 323.10

NYSE Composite 100.00 131.73 151.45 165.62 199.52 217.21

Peer Group 100.00 133.44 186.65 210.10 299.76 336.98

The stock price performance included in this graph is not necessarily indicative of future stock price performance.

*The companies in the Peer Group are Actuant Corp., Kaydon Cap, Kennametal Inc, Lincoln Electric Holdings Company, Regal Beloit Corp., Snap-On Inc,

Terex Corp. and Toro Corp.
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R. Eugene Cartledge
Retired Chairman,  
Savannah Foods & Industries, Inc.
Retired Chairman and Chief Executive  
Officer of Union Camp Corporation
Savannah, Georgia
Director since 2002
Audit Committee Chairman, Compensation  
Committee member, Nominating & Corporate 
Governance Committee member

Joshua L. Collins
Principal,  
Angler Capital Management LLC
New York, New York
Director since 2005
Nominating & Corporate Governance  
Committee member

Eliot M. Fried
Retired Managing Director,  
Lehman Brothers Inc.
San Francisco, California
Director since 1999
Lead Director since 2005
Executive Committee Chairman, Compensation 
Committee Chairman, Audit Committee member, 
Nominating & Corporate Governance  
Committee member

Thomas J. Fruechtel
President and Chief Executive Officer,  
Leupold & Stevens, Inc.
Portland, Oregon
Director since 2003
Audit Committee member, Nominating &  
Corporate Governance Committee member

E. Daniel James
Managing Director,  
Lehman Brothers Inc.
New York, New York
Director since 1999
Executive Committee member, Compensation 
Committee member

Robert D. Kennedy
Retired Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, 
Union Carbide Corporation
New Canaan, Connecticut
Director since 2005
Nominating & Corporate Governance Committee 
Chairman, Compensation Committee member

Harold E. Layman
Retired President and Chief Executive Officer, 
Blount International, Inc.
Ormand Beach, Florida
Director since 1999
Audit Committee member

James S. Osterman
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer,  
Blount International, Inc.
Portland, Oregon
Director since 2002
Executive Committee member
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James S. Osterman
Chairman and Chief 
Executive Officer
Elected CEO 2002
Elected Chairman 2005
Joined the Company 1959

Calvin E. Jenness
Senior Vice President and 
Chief Financial Officer
Elected 2002
Joined the Company 2000

Richard H. Irving, III
Senior Vice President 
General Counsel and 
Secretary
Elected General Counsel 
1995
Elected Secretary 1999
Joined the Company 1995

Kenneth O. Saito
Senior Vice President –  
Manufacturing and 
Operations
Elected 2008
Joined the Company in 1973

James “Jake” L. 
VanderZanden
Senior Vice President –  
Business Development 
and President – ICS
Elected 2008
Joined the Company in 1987

Cyrille B. Michel
Senior Vice President – 
Sales and Customer 
Support
Elected 2008
Joined the Company 1983

William C. Alford
President 
Gear Products, Inc.
Joined the Company in 2002

Dale C. Johnson, Jr.
Vice President Human 
Resources
Elected 2004
Joined the Company 2003

Mark V. Allred
Vice President –  
Corporate Controller
Elected 2005
Joined the Company 2005

Matthew D. Clark
Vice President of Finance
Elected 2008
Joined the Company in 2005

Wendy J. Gilligan
Treasurer
Elected 2005
Joined the Company 1987

Chad E. Paulson
Assistant Secretary
Elected 2007
Joined the Company 2006



Blount International, Inc. is a leading provider of equipment, accessories 

and replacement parts to the global forestry, lawncare and construction 

industries. Blount manufactures and markets branded products in focused end markets, serving pro

fessional loggers, construction workers and homeowners through a distribution network consisting of 

equipment dealers and distributors, original equipment manufacturers and mass merchants. We believe 

we are a global leader in chainsaw chain, guide bars and related accessories. The Company sells its 

products in over 100 countries around the world with approximately 64% of 2007 sales generated outside 

the United States. Blount is headquartered in Portland, Oregon.

sawchaIn and 

guIdeBars

page 6

outdoor 

care

page 9
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page 9

concrete cuttIng 

systems

page 8

The Company’s primary business is the Outdoor Products Segment. This segment manufactures and markets 
sawchain, guidebars, sprockets and accessories for the chainsaw industry, outdoor care products for the lawn and 
garden industry and concrete cutting systems for the construction industry. The segment operates six manufacturing 
facilities and distributes its products through a diverse network of distributors, dealers, mass merchants and original 
equipment manufacturers. The segment sells its products under the Oregon, ICS and Windsor brand names. The 
Company also owns and operates Gear Products, Inc., a manufacturer of rotational bearings, hydraulic pump drives 
and winches used by heavy equipment manufacturers for the forestry, construction and utility industries.

1 Financial Highlights

2 Letter to Stockholders

10 Worldwide Locations

11 Form 10K,  

 Board of Directors 

 Management Team 

 Corporate Information

Inquiries
Stockholders with questions about 
their stockholdings are invited  
to call 1-877-498-8865 between 
8am and 7pm Eastern Time, 
Monday through Friday. Internet 
account access is available at  
www.computershare.com. 
Inquiries for general information 
about Blount International, Inc., 
including stock records or address 
changes, should be directed to 
Richard H. Irving, III, Senior  
Vice President, General Counsel 
and Secretary, at the Corporate 
office. Security analysts, portfolio 
managers and others seeking 
financial information, should 
contact Calvin E. Jenness, Senior 
Vice President and Chief Financial 
Officer, at the Corporate office. 
Also, please see Blount’s Website 
at www.blount.com.

Year End
The Company’s fiscal year ends 
December 31.

Annual Meeting of Stockholders
A Proxy Statement and Notice of 
Annual Meeting is being mailed  
to stockholders of record as of 
March 25, 2008.

Please see page 1 of such statement 
and notice for information regard -
ing the date, time and location of 
the annual meeting of stock holders.

Blount International, Inc.  
Common Stock
The common stock is traded on  
the New York Stock Exchange 
under the ticker symbol “BLT”. 
Blount International, Inc. is 
incorporated under the laws of  
the State of Delaware.

Trademarks
The following are trademarks  
of the Company: Oregon®, 
Windsor™, Power-Match®, 
INTENZ®, Jet-Fit™, Gator 
Mulcher™, Magnum Gatorline™, 
ICS®, FORCE4™, PRK®, SealPro  
and Speedhook. Some forms of 
Windsor® are used under license 
from affiliates of Snap-On, Inc.

Registrar and Transfer Agent
Computershare Investor Services
250 Royall Street 
Canton, MA 02021
1-877-498-8865

Independent Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Portland, OR

Corporate Office
4909 SE International Way
Portland, OR 97222 U.S.A.
Ph: 503-653-8881
Fx: 503-653-4201

ForwardLooking Statements
Forward-looking statements in  
this report, as defined by the 
Private Securities Litigation 
Reform Act of 1995, are based 
upon available information and 
upon assumptions that the 
Company believes are reasonable; 
however, these forward looking 
statements involve certain risks 
and uncertainties and should not  
be considered indicative of actual 
results that the Company may 
achieve in the future.
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Blount International, Inc.
4909 SE International Way
Portland, Oregon 97222-4679
Telephone: 503-653-8881
www.blount.com
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